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1. Introduction  

The purpose of the Statement of Accounts is to summarise the financial performance for the financial year 2012/13 
and the overall financial position of the Council. This foreword aims to give a general guide to the main f eatures of 
the information reported within the rest of the Acco unts and provides a summary of the Council’s overall financial 
position. 
 
The Statement of Accou nts for 201 2/13 has been prepared on an International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) basis. The framework within which these Accounts are prepared and published is regulated by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), the Financial Reporting Advisory Board and the Government. 
 
Whilst these accounts are presented  as simply as possible the use of some technical terminology cannot be 
avoided. To aid a better understanding of the terminology used a glossary of the terms is set out on pages 124 to 
126 at the e nd of the do cument. An explanation of the key financial statements including explanatory notes and 
other relevant supplementary information is also provided. 
 
The key financial statements set out within this document include: 

 
 Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) – This Statement sets out th e movement on the different 

reserves held by the Co uncil as these are a nalysed into usable and un usable reserves. It analyses t he 
increase or decrease in net worth of the Authority as a result of incurring expenses, gathering income and 
from movements in the fair value of the assets. It also analy ses the move ment between reserves in 
accordance with statutory provisions.  

 
 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) – This Statement brings together all of t he 

functions of the Co uncil and summarises all the re sources it  h as generated, consumed or set asid e in 
providing services during the year. As such, it i s intended to show the true financial position of the Council, 
before allowing for the concessions provided by statute to raise council tax according to different rules and 
the ability to divert particular expenditure to be met from capital resources.  

 
 Balance Sheet – This records the Council’s year-end financial position. It shows the balances and reserves 

at the Councils disposal, its long term debt, net current assets or liabilities, and summarises information on 
the non-current assets held. It excludes the Pension Fund.  

 
 Cash Flow Statement – This summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with 

third parties for both capital and revenue.  
 
 Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide more detail about the items contained in the key 

financial statements, the Council’s Accounting Policies and other information to aid the understanding of the 
financial statements.  

 
 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – This records the Council’s statutory obligation to account separately 

for the cost of the landlord role in respect of the provision of Council Housing.  
 
 Collection Fund – The Council is responsible for collecting council tax and non-domestic rates, the latter on 

behalf of the  Government. The procee ds of council tax are di stributed to the Council and the G reater 
London Authority (GLA). The Fund shows income due and the application of the proceeds.  

 
 Pension Fund – The Pension Fund Accounts show the contributions from the Council, participating 

employers and employees for the p urpose of paying pensions. The Fund is separately managed with the 
Council acting as trustee and its Accounts are separate from those of the Council.  
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2. Review of the Financial Year 
 
This section sets out some of the key features of the Council’s financial performance for 2012/13. 
 
Financial performance in 2012/13 must be seen within the context of the considerable financial challenges faced by 
local government as it has responded to the Government’s programme set to reduce the UK’s budget deficit through 
significant cuts in public sector spending. 
 
The Council set its spending plans for 2012/13 against a backdrop of considerable national economic uncertainty, 
significantly reduced Government grant funding, and the rising demand for services such as care support for adults 
and children as well as the high demand for pupil places within the Borough’s schools placing both revenue and 
capital budgets under pressure. In setting the Budget for 2012/13, the Coun cil’s aim was to set a balanced and 
deliverable budget that would effectiv ely address spending pressures whilst protecting frontline services wherever 
possible and deliver a continued freeze in Council Tax for the third year running. 
The 2012/13 provisional Local Government Finan ce Settlement was an nounced on 8  December 2011. Th e 
Government undertook statutory consultation and the final settlement was announced on 31 January 2012 without 
change. The final figures were then included in the Council’s Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 
Enfield’s Formula Grant funding was cut by 6.7% in  2012/13. . The Council’s Formula Grant comparison is set ou t 
below along with other core grants. 

 

Table 1: 2011/12 2012/13 Change 

Enfield’s Core Grants £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Formula Grant 131,038 122,292 (8,746) -6.7%
Council Tax Freeze Grant 2011/12 3,032 3,032 0 0.0%
Early Intervention Grant 14,514 15,838 1,324 9.1%
Learning Disabilities Health Reform 4,882 5,004 122 2.5%
Housing Benefit Administration 3,451 3,447 (4) -0.1%
Local Service Grant 803 892 89  11.1%

Continuing External Funding 157,720 150,505 (7,215) -4.6%

New one-off funding      

Council Tax Freeze Grant 2012/13 0 3,050 3,050 N/A

 Total External Funding 2012/13 157,720 153,555 (4,165) -2.6%
 

 
 
 
At the Council meeting on 29 February 2012 the Council approved spending proposals that included: 
 

 Spending reductions of £11.8 million - of which most were delivered through efficiencies/back office savings 
with minimal impact on frontline services   

 Continuing the freeze in Council Tax - 0% incre ase for 3rd consecutive year  Average Band D l evel - 
£1,100.34 (excluding GLA precept) 

 A Revenue Budget Requirement of £243.7million - almost £10 million less than the previous year  
 A Capital Programme of £94 million funded from internal and external resources. 

 
3. Revenue and Budget Outturn 

 
The final outturn position for the year against the revised budget is set out in the table below together with the 
sources of income from which the Council’s net revenue expenditure was financed. 
 



                                 EXPLANATORY FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 

 
 

7  
London Borough of Enfield 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

During 2012/13, the Council’s revenue expenditure against budget was monitored monthly and reported to Cabinet 
in some detail.  The Co uncil was committed to containi ng its expenditure within budget and, wh ere pressures 
became evident, action was taken to minimise the impact on the overall position whilst ensuring that the delivery of 
key services was not jeopardised.  The accounts reflect the following:- 
 
 

 On-going reductions public expenditure and Government funding in 2012/13 

 A freeze in Enfield’s council tax.  

 Growing demand for services and expectations 

 Service levels and performance maintained and savings targets all delivered  within the reduced 2012/13 
budget. 

 General Fund balances and re serves maintained which are vital to t he Council’s financial resilience in the 
face of reductions in public spending and increasing service demands from Enfield’s growing population 

 Capital investment in schools to meet  increasing demand for primary school places, regeneration to meets 
housing and economic demand and maintaining and improving roads  

  

As a result of the Council’s tight budget control it has been able to maintain services, invest in capital infrastructure 
whilst setting aside additional resources within earmarked reserves to  provide for futu re expenditure/risks in 
connection with: 

 Potential service restructuring costs as part of the Council’s proposals to achieve long term efficiencies and 
address future savings targets (£600k). 

 Repair and Maintenance Reserve (£1.220m) 

 ICT Investment Reserve and Invest to Save Initiatives for  2012/13 (£1.1m) 

The Council’s General Fund balance remains the same as 2011/12 at £14.0m (excluding the amount attributable to 
schools’ delegated budgets). This has been assessed by the Director of F inance, Resources and Customer 
Services as being the minimum needed to protect the Council from future financial risks.  
 
The Service expenditure headings and figures reported above reflect the Council’s  organisational and management 
structure. These are n ot consistent with the Servi ce headings reported within the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement which conform to the Service Re porting Code of Practice requirements. However, 

Service Expenditure: 
Budget Actual Variance
2012/13 2012/13 2012/13

£’000 £’000 £’000 
Housing, Health and Adult Social Services  103,999 102,779 (1,220)
Schools and Children’s Services 60,477 60,477 0
Environment  32,800 33,194 394
Finance Resources and Customer Services 44,953 44,825 (128)
Regeneration Leisure and Culture 9,813 9,813 0
Chief Executive 4,579 4,527 (52)
Corporate (9,796) (9,968) (172)
Sub Total  246,825 245,647 (1,178)
Contribution to Reserves 1,178 1,178
Total  Net Expenditure 246,825 246,825 0

Funded by: 

Budget Actual
2012/13 2012/13 
£000’s £000’s 

Formula Grant (125,325) (125,325)
Council Tax Receipts (121,500) (121,500)

Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 0 0
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information is provided in Note 25 to reconcile the financial position against the Council’s management structure to 
that of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
The financing and surplus figures reported above are also not the same as those reported in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. This i s because of a number of statutory accounting adjustments that a re 
required to be reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
 
The Statement of Accou nts also in cludes the ri ng-fenced Housing Revenue Account for the provi sion of council 
housing. The HRA made a net surplus of £1.108m and increased its working balance by the same amount. The full 
details of the Housing Revenue Account and the movements on that account are set out on pages 87 to 92. 
 
Borrowing 
 
The Council undertakes long term borrowing for periods in excess of one year in order to finance capital spending 
and to replace maturing debt. The Council satisfies its borrowing requirement for this purpose by securing external 
loans. The Council is able to temporarily defer the need to borrow externally by using the cash it has set aside for 
longer term purposes; this practice means that there is not always a direct link between the need to borrow to pay 
for capital spend and the level of external borrowing. The effect of using the cash set aside for longer term purposes 
to temporarily defer external borrowing is to reduce the level of cash  the Council has available for investment. 
 
In 2012/13, t he Council was requi red to make provision to borrow £19 million towards th e cost of financin g the 
General Fund capital programme. 
 
Investments 
The Council’s s Annual Investment Strategy, which is incorpo rated in the Tr easury Management Strategy, outlines 
its investment priorities as the security and liquidity of its capital. 
 
The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return on investments commensurate with appropriate levels of 
security and l iquidity. In the current economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep i nvestments short term, 
and only invest with high credit rated financial institutions. A list of counterparties with whom funds could be invested 
was compiled with reference to the credit ratings issued by the credit agencies Fitch, Moodys and Standard and 
Poors.  
 

4.   Forward Look 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan 
 
The Medium Term Financial Plan is based on an analysis of the key influences on the Co uncil’s financial position 
and an assessment of the main financial risks facing the Council. The financial forecast set out in the table below 
models income and expenditure and resources available over the next four years and is considered to be the most 
likely outcome based on f orecasts and assumptions for pay and price inflatio n, etc. It also build s in p roposed 
savings that the Council must make in order to restrict later year tax increa ses to an assume d 2%. The latest 
forecast is set out below. 
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  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
Medium Term Financial Plan £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Council Tax Base 121,500 96,343 96,864 98,899 
Inflation  4,500 4,457 6,000 6,000 
Additional costs of population growth  3,000 2,210 1,410 1,580 
Other cost increases 12,629 1,706 2,066 3,300 
Savings Identified (22,437) (17,829) (2,760) (1,267) 
Reductions in Government Funding 4,229 14,386 11,547 6,900 
New Local Council Tax Benefit Grant (25,992) 0 0 0 
Council Tax Collection (1,086) 1,086 0 0 
Savings still to be achieved 0 (5,495) (16,228) (14,535) 
Budget Requirement 96,343 96,864 98,899 100,877 
Taxbase (110,420 2012/13) 87,557 88,031 88,118 88,118 
Band D Charge £1,100 £1,100 £1,122 £1,145 

% tax change 0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 2.0% 
 
To freeze and restrict tax increase to 2% will require the Council to find annual sa vings of approximately £80m 
over the next four years a nd probably well beyond.  Work is und erway to i dentify how to achieve this level of  
saving, but whilst every effort will be made to protect services, the scale of the cost reductions makes it impossible 
for the Council to guarantee that all services can be protected.  

 
In recent years capital expenditure has increased significantly with a large proportion of the programme funded by 
borrowing. As such the revenue i mpact of funding the capital programme is a major cost in the  medium term 
financial plan. The cut in government funding has only added to the pressure to finance investment by borrowing 
paid for by the council tax. The Council is reviewing the existing programme to ensure that the capital programme 
delivers key objectives but is also affordable and borrowing requirements are minimised.  

 
The revenue outturn for 2012/13 was positive in that serv ices and costs were contained within budget, even with 
challenging saving targets. Balances and reserves have been kept at a suffici ent level to e nable the Council to 
plan with the resources needed to invest in improvements necessary to implement innovative solutions to service 
and financial challenges. 
 
The Schools’ Budget 
 
An indicative schools’ budget for 20 13/14 was developed and was presented to the  Schools Forum on 1 3th 
February 2013. This budget was based on the data provided in the autumn 2012 school pupil census, estimates of 
children in early years settings during 2013/14 and an assumption of post 16 pupils with high needs, 
 
The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is currently estimated to be £292.073m. However the final allocation of the 
DSG allocation will not be determined until the end of the financial year when Early Years numbers are finalised. 
The distribution of the DSG was set out in the February schools Forum and will be monitored during the year. 
 
Under Department for Education regulations, certain specific decisions are reserved to the Schools Forum and the 
Council makes the final decision on the allocation of available resources taking account of any decisions made by 
the Forum and any comments they wish to make. Cabi net agreed that Members for Children and Young People 
and Finance and Property take the decision on the schools budget for 13/14 when the final position is known, 
taking into account the comments of the Schools Forum and any relevant decisions which the Forum make. 

 
5. OTHER MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS, PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 
The financial statements include the one significant transaction relating to claims previously underwritten by 
Municipal Mutal Insurance. This is covered in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

 
6. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT  

 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) consists of expenditure on council-owned housing, which is offset by rental 
income and government subsidy. The 1989 Local Government and Housing Act requires the Housing Revenue 
Account to be kept separately from other accounts; in particular, funding of HRA expenditure must be met from 
within the HRA and not as a call on General Fund resources. 



                                 EXPLANATORY FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 

 
 

10  
London Borough of Enfield 

Since 1st April 2008, the Council’s housing stock has been managed by Enfield Homes, a wholly owned subsidiary 
management company.  

 
7. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND INCOME 

 
The principal elements of the capital programme in 2012/13 were further investment in school buildings particularly 
to meet forecast dema nd for new primary school places through both temporary arrangements and permanent 
expansions across the school s portfolio and imp rovements to the hou sing stock throug h the De cent Homes 
programme.  Major regeneration plans are also in place to meet increasing demand for housing and jobs. Road 
infrastructure is also a vital factor in the plans to improve local conditions. 

 
Table 3 below shows the capital expenditure incurred in 2012/13 compared to the ap proved programme. The 
capital outturn will require some re-profiling of the capital programme which will impact on the 2013/14 and future 
years’ budgets. 

 

Capital Expenditure: Projected 
£000s 

Outturn 
£000s 

Schools and Educational Establishments 54,816 55,952
Council Dwellings 43,143 31,203
Housing Grants 2,736 2,628
Waste Services 1,272 1,335
Residential and Day Care Services 358 283
Transport and Environmental Schemes 17,519 17,313
Leisure and Culture 6,434 5,825
Corporate Buildings and Improvements 2,006 1,905
Regeneration Projects 2,246 2,036
Housing Regeneration Projects 4,700 4,724
Community Safety 1,117 1,020
Parks and Open Spaces 1,235 1,096
Vehicles and Moveable Plant 531 498
Improvements to Community Halls 862 678
Residents Priority Fund 1,532 458
IT infrastructure and programmes 120 120
Total Capital Expenditure in 2012/13  140,627 127,074

 
 

Sources of Finance: Projected 
£000s 

Outturn 
£000s 

Unsupported borrowing (38,639) (19,106)
Capital Receipts (10,000) (11,401)
Major Repairs Reserve (13,185) (13,158)
Government Grants/Reimbursements and Other Contributions (73,803) (79,919)
Revenue (5,000) (3,410)
Increase in Finance Lease Liabilities 0 (80)
Total Capital Funding (Needs Updating) (140,627) (127,074)

 
The Council generated new capital receipts in the year of £13.6m (net of disposal costs) largely from the disposal 
of surplus property within the HRA (£5.0m) and the General Fund (£8.6m) including net receipts of £2.9m from the 
sale of Council Housing Stock under Right to Buy provisions.  

 
The Council’s Capital Fi nancing Requirement (CFR) which represents the amount of accumul ated capital 
expenditure to date for which resources have yet to be set aside has increased from £408.3m to £417.0m during 
year. The increase is reflected in amount of capital expendi ture funded from borrowing shown in table 3 . This is 
analysed between the HRA (£157.7m) and General Fund (£256.7m). Under statutory regulation, the Council is 
required to set aside each year an amount from its revenue budget to reduce its General Fund CFR. The Council 
has kept its use of borrowing within its existing plans agreed in the budget setting process and has provided for the 
statutory reduction in its existing General  Fund CFR in the Medium Term  Financial Plan. The HRA CFR will be 
managed through the HRA Business Plan under the HRA Self Financing framework. 
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At 31st March 2013, the Council had capital resources available to fund futu re expenditure of £6.1m (unapplied 
capital grants), £12.2m (unapplied capital receipts) and £13.9m (revenue reserves earmarked for capital funding). 

 
The Council is continuing to review its property asset base to identify future disposals to generate more capital 
receipts over the medium term subject to achieving targeted proceeds in the current  economic circumstances. In 
light of Central Government fiscal plans, there is uncertainty over the future  levels of Government capital grant 
funding – similarly, it is not expected the re will be any supported borrowing allocations within the RSG process in 
the medium term.  As a consequence, the review and close monitoring of the capital programme is a key Council 
priority. 

 
8. PENSION LIABILITY 

 
The Statement of Acco unts incorporates in full th e accounting requirements of IAS19 (Employee Benefits) as 
contained in the Local Authority Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. Further information and details 
are provided in Note 42 to the Core Financial Statements. 
 
The Pension Liability reflects th e underlying commitments the Council has in the long run to p ay retirement 
benefits. The net pension liability has increased from £401.9m as at 31 March 2012 to £440.7m as at 3 1 March 
2013.  This movement is predominantly due to Actuarial losses of £32.8m, whereby actual experience and events 
on scheme assets and liabilities during the financial year differed from the earlier acco unting assumptions made 
for those areas. 
The adjustments made to the CIES to comply with  IAS19 have had the followin g effect on the 2012/1 3 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account: 

 
 Reported expenditure within the Net Cost of Servi ces has been reduced by £1.2m, representing the 

difference between employers pension contributions made in the  year to the co st of pensi on benefits 
actually earned under the Accounting Standard; 

 The figure for Finan cing and Investment Income and Expenditure has received a net cha rge of £7.2m 
due to the difference between pension interest costs and the expected return on pension assets; 

 Actuarial losses of £32.8m, as explained above. 

 
However, there is no effect on the Council’s overall capital or revenue resources arising from these adjustments, 
as they a re reversed out in the Movem ent in Reserves Statement, with the contra e ntry posted to the Pension 
Fund Reserve. 

 
9. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

 
There have been no changes in a ccounting, in p reparing the Statement of Account s for 2 012/13 and no prior 
period adjustments. 
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 2012/13 
 

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. 
The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s 
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are 
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing 
Revenue Account for council tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The Net Increase /Decrease before 
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account 
Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 
 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 2012/13 

 
Analysis of General Fund 
Balance 

31March 2012 
£’000 

31March 2013 
£’000 

School Balance 17,587 15,835 
General  Balance 13,966 13,966 
General Fund Balance 31,553 29,801 
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 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Balance b/fwd  (31,553) (11,559) (66,857) (8,836) (11,376) (7,562) (17,636) (155,379) (415,431) (570,810) 

(Surplus ) / Deficit on the 
provision of services 

15,365 7,607 0 0 0 0 0 22,972 0 22,972 

Other comprehensive 
income and expenditure 

(162) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (162) (108,260) (108,422) 

Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 

15,203 7,607 0 0 0 0 0 22,810 (108,260) (85,450) 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
regulations -  Note 9 

(17,966) (16,575) 0 0 (2,169) (124) 5,703  (31,131)  31,131 0 

Net increase or 
decrease before 
transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves: 

(2,763) (8,968) 0 0 (2,169) (124) 5,703 (8,321) (77,130) (85,450) 

Transfers to/from 
Earmarked Reserves 

4,512 6,590 (4,512) (6,590) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Increase/decrease in year 1,749 (2,378) (4,512) (6,590) (2,169) (124) 5,703 (8,321)  (77,130)  (85,450) 

Balance carried forward 
31st March 2013 
 

(29,802) (13,936) (71,369) (15,426) (13,545) (7,686) (11,933) (163,698) (492,563) (656,260) 
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 2011/12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2011-12 
 

G
en

er
a

l F
u

n
d

 &
 

S
ch

o
o

ls
 B

al
a

n
c

es
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 R
ev

en
u

e 
A

cc
o

u
n

t 
B

al
an

c
e 

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 G
e

n
er

al
 

F
u

n
d

 R
es

er
ve

s
 

 E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 
R

ev
en

u
es

 A
c

co
u

n
t 

R
es

er
ve

s
 

C
ap

it
a

l R
ec

ei
p

ts
 

R
es

er
ve

 

M
aj

o
r 

R
e

p
ai

rs
 

R
es

er
ve

 

C
ap

it
a

l G
ra

n
ts

 
U

n
ap

p
lie

d
 

T
o

ta
l 

U
sa

b
le

  
R

es
er

ve
s

 

T
o

ta
l 

U
n

u
sa

b
le

 
R

es
er

ve
s

 

T
o

ta
l 

R
es

er
ve

s
 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Balance b/fwd (24,331) (8,740) (60,195) (9,250) (7,547) (7,927) (24,209) (142,199) (581,962) (724,161) 

(Surplus ) / Deficit on the 
provision of services 62,649 45,941 0 0 0 0 0 108,590 0 108,590 

Other comprehensive income 
and expenditure (29) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (29) 44,790 44,761 

Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 

62,620 45,941 0 0 0 0 0 108,561 44,790 153,351 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and funding 
basis under regulations – 
Note 9 

(76,504) (48,346) 0 0 (3,829) 365 6,573 (121,741) 121,741 0 

Net increase or decrease 
before transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves: 

(13,884) (2,405) 0 0 (3,829) 365 6,573 (13,180) 166,531 153,351 

Transfers to/from Earmarked 
Reserves 6,662 (414) (6,662) 414 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Increase/decrease in year (7,222) (2,819) (6,662) 414 (3,829) 365 6,573 (13,180) 166,531 153,351 

Balance carried forward 
31st March 2012 

(31,553) (11,559) (66,857) (8,836) (11,376) (7,562) (17,636) (155,379) (415,431) (570,810) 
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in acc ordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, rather than the a mount to be funded from taxa tion. The Council raises taxation to cover  
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is 
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

    2012/13 2011/12 
On its services the council spent: Note Gross 

expenditure 
£000 

Gross 
income    

£000 

Net 
expenditure  

£000 

Net 
expenditure*  

£000 

        
Adult social care  121,703 (34,073) 87,630              83,131 

Central services  28 101,453 (77,182) 24,271 20,926 
Children's and education services  450,189 (311,557) 138,632 138,930 

Cultural and Related services  33,655 (3,321) 30,334             24,578 

Environmental and Regulatory Services  33,017 (5,578) 27,439             26,697 
Highways and transport services  40,423 (14,692) 25,731 22,027 
Housing services  426,942 (406,276) 20,666 35,109 

Planning Services  11,817 (4,147) 7,671 6,959 

Exceptional Items  0 0 0 35,030 

COST OF SERVICES  1,219,199 (856,826) 362,374 393,387 

        

Other Operating Expenditure       

(Gain) Loss on disposal of non-current assets    (3,827) 10,985 

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool    971 21 

Precepts and Levies    6,857 7,663 
Sub total    4,001 18,669 

      
Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure  5   2,799 12,165 

       
Taxation and non-specific grant income 6   (346,202) (315,631) 

      
(Surplus) / Deficit on the Provision of Services    22,972 108,590 
      
(Surplus) / Deficit on revaluation of non-current assets     24  (140,280) (34,744) 
      
Actuarial (gains) / losses on pension fund assets 
and liabilities 42   32,774 79,534 
Other comprehensive (gains) / losses    (916) (29) 
      

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure    (85,450) 153,350 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in of the Council during the reporting period. The statement shows 
how the Council has generated and used cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as op erating, 
investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities shows how the 
Council has funded its operations from taxation and grant income or from the  recipients of services provided by 
the Authority. Investing activities refer to expenditure that contributes to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash 
flows arising from financing activities refer to the raising and repayment of loans and other long term liabilities. 
 

2011/12  
£000’s 

  
2012/13    
£000’s 

108,590 
Net (Surplus)/Deficit on the provision of services 
 

22,972

(132,841) 
Adjust net (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services for non-cash 
movements 
 

(60,764)

12,415 
Adjust for items in the net (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services that 
are investing or financing activities 
 

14,205

(11,836) Net cash flow from operating activities (23,587)
  

25,067 Investing activities (see Note 26) 
 49,425

(48,200) Financing activities (see Note 27) 
 (27,727)

(34,969) Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,889)
  

2,633 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 
 

32,335

32,335 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period: (30,446)
 
 
 
 
Cash Flow Statement - Adjustments to net (surplus)/deficit on the 
provision of services: 

2011/12   
£000s 

2012/13       
£000s 

Capital Charges Debited to the CIES (148,227) (129,052)
Increase in provision for  impairment of debts (108) 5,015
Movement in creditors 339,002 (7,660)
Movement in debtors (339,558) 23,428
Increase in stock 304 1,076
Increase in provisions (906) (2,263)
Grants Received to fund capital expenditure 41,670 69,336
Pension liability (4,422) (5,999)
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold (20,596) (10,700)
Other Non- Cash Movements 0 (3,945)
Total adjustments to net (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services (132,841) (60,764)
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NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
1.1 GENERAL PRINCIPLES 

 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for th e 2012/13 financial year and its 
position at 31st March 2013. This Note sets out the accounting policies and the basis o f estimation the 
Council has selected in preparing the Statement. The general principles adopted in compiling the Statement 
of Accounts for 2012/13 are consistent with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2012/13 and the CIPF A Service Reporting Code of Pr actice 2012/13, based on  
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory regulation. All balances are stated in GBP 
pounds rounded to the nearest thousand (£000s). Consequently, rounded balances in the n otes may not 
agree exactly to the pr imary statements. The principal accounting policies have been applied consistently 
throughout the year. 
 
Monetary Assets and Liabilities, Non-Monetary Assets and Non-Monetary Liabilities 
The valuation of specific a ssets and liabilities is detailed in the following accounting policies. Where not 
specified, assets and liabilities are recorded at historical cost. 
 
Revenues and Expenses 
Income is recognised in the determination of the results for the reporting period when, and only when, there 
is reasonable certainty that the inflow of economic benefits or service pote ntial has occurred and can be  
measured reliably.  An expense is r ecognised in the determination of the results for the reporting period 
when, and only when, there is reaso nable certainty that the consumption or loss of eco nomic benefit or 
service potential has occurred resulting in a r eduction in assets or an increase  in liabilities and can b e 
measured reliably. 
 
Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for as income and expenditure 
respectively on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the 
cash flows set out in the relevant contract. 
 
Judgements 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use and determination of accounting estimates and 
the application of management assumptions that have the potential to cause mater ial adjustments to the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities during the course of the financial year. Such estimates, judgements 
and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and critical judgements made in applying Accounting 
Policies are shown in Note 3. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised.  
 

1.2 DEBTORS AND CREDITORS 
 
The accounts are prepared on the bas is of accrued income and expenditure and include  sums due to the 
Council and sums payable by the Council for work done or goods received – subject to the de minimis level 
for recognising accrued income and expenditure (£5,000 for revenue items and £10,000 for capital items).  
Exceptions to these levels are made where the expenditure is funded by a time limited grant.  
 
Impairment of debt is deducted from debtors’ balances.  If there is evidence that debts are irrecoverable, 
they are written off against the appropriate provision.   
 
Impairment of debts are main tained at levels that reflect the age profile of the outstanding arrears and the 
likelihood of recovery based on expected collection rates.  

 
1.3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, cash comprises cash in ha nd, deposits 
held on call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or 
less from the date of acquisition and bank overdrafts which are used in the treasury management function 
on a day to day basis to the extent that none of these represent cash sums held against a specific liability 
such as refundable deposits. Cash held on behalf of other parties under non Council controls are not cash 
related. 
 
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method as recommended by the CIPFA 
Code. 
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1.4 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 

  
Where exceptional events have taken place, the amounts involved are reported on a separate line within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with further information provided in a disclosure note. 
 

1.5 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 
 
 Prior period adjustments are accounted for by restating the comparative figures for the preceding period 

in the Statement of Accounts and relate either to changes in accounting policy required by the Code or 
to the correction of material errors in previous ye ars’ accounts. There are no prior year adjustments for 
2012/13. 
 
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for in the year in which the estimate is revised and are not 
treated as prior period adjustments. 
 

1.6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
 Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
 Short term employee benefits relate to amounts expected to be paid to employees for annual leave, leave in 

lieu of statutory holidays and flexitime untaken at the year end wh ich can be carried forward into the next 
financial year. 

 
 Accrued annual leave, leave in lieu and flexitime is recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement and r epresents the amount that the Council has a present oblig ation to pay 
resulting from employees’ services provided up to the Balance Sheet date. The accrual is calculated at 
nominal amounts based on the remuneration rates that will be paid when the liability is settled. 

 
 In accordance with statutory regulation, the accrual is reversed out in the Movement in Reserves Statement 

and disclosed in the Accumulated Absences Account in the Balance Sheet. The expenditure is a charge to 
the General Fund when the liability is settled. 
 
The Council has concluded that there is no material benefit in undertaking an annual determination of the 
accrual and has established a policy to undertake a review of the accrual every three years unless, in the 
intervening period, there is  evidence of a change in ci rcumstances which would affec t the amount to be 
disclosed. A review was carried ou t as part of the 2012/13 Accounts.  The next re view is due to be  
undertaken for the 2015/16 Accounts. 
  
Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are payable when the Council decides to terminate the employment of a member of 
staff or a member of staff accepts voluntary redundancy. Costs are accrued in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement (Non Distributed Costs) once the Council is committed to the termination of the 
employment or an offer of voluntary redundancy is made. 
 
Post Employment Benefits 
 
The Council participates in three separate schemes.   
 
The three schemes provide members with defined benefits related to pay and service. They are as follows: 
 

 Teachers – Teachers employed by the Council ar e members of th e Teachers’ Pensions Scheme, 
administered by Teachers Pensions (TP). It provides teachers with defined benefits upon their retirement. 
The Council contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a  percentage of members’ 
pensionable salaries.  

 
The pension cost charged to the accounts is the contribution rate set by TP on the basis of a notional fund. 
The arrangements for the Teachers’ sc heme mean that the liabilities for the benefits payable cannot be 
identified to the Council. The scheme is, therefore, accounted for as if  it were  a define d contributions 
scheme – no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the balance sheet. 
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 London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA) Scheme – One member of staff employed by the Council has 
retained membership of the above fund, which is a funded scheme. The LPFA is designated an  
 
‘Administering Authority’ w ithin the Local Government Superannuation Regulations 1995. The LPF A 
maintains the Fund and a dministers the terms of the scheme in respect of those who participate in it. Th e 
pension costs that are charged to the Council’s accounts in respect of the relevant employee are equal to 
the employer’s contribution rate paid to the funded scheme.  

 
In addition, the Council pays a levy to the LPFA each year to meet expenditure on premature retirement 
compensation and oth er outstanding personnel matters relating to the former employees of the Greater 
London Council, the Inner London Educ ation Authority and the London Residuary Body. The Council also 
makes a contribution to the deficit of the LPFA pension fund. 

 
 Other employees - Subject to certain qualifying criteria, all other employees are eligible to join the Council’s 

Local Government Superannuation Scheme.  
 

The Council’s Local Gover nment Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined bene fit scheme. The 
financial statements reflect the Council’s liabilities, calculated on an actuarial basis, to increase contributions 
to the pension fund to make up any shortfall in attributable net assets, rather than the employer’s 
contributions actually payable to the pension fund in the year. 
 
Liabilities are assessed us ing assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and projected 
earnings for current employees, discounted to their value at current prices. In addition an assumed take-up 
of commutation has been allowed for in the calculations; this refers to the options available to employees to 
receive a higher lump sum on retire ment in return for a lower an nual pension. The discount rate used is 
based on the yield available on long dated high quality corporate bonds of equivalent currency and term to 
scheme liabilities.  
 
The assets o f the pens ion fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Shee t at their fair 
value: 
 

 Quoted securities – current bid price; 
 

 Unquoted securities – professional estimate; 
 

 Unitised securities – current bid price. 
 
The change in the net pension liability is analysed as follows: 
 

 Current service costs – the increase in liabilities as a result of the years of service earned in the year 
allocated to service revenue accounts within the Cost of Services; 

 
 Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from decisions made in the year where the effect 

relates to years of service earned in earlier years included as part of Non Distributed Costs within 
the Cost of Services; 

 
 Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move 

one year closer to being paid charged to the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services; 
 

 Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on fund a ssets based on an average of 
the expected long term return credited to the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services; 

 
 Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the outcome of actions that relieve the Council of 

liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees (e.g. 
the transfer of operations to other bodies) included as part of Non Distributed Costs within the Cost 
of Services; 

 
 Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not 

coincided with assumption s made at th e last ac tuarial valuation or because th e actuaries have 
updated their assumptions – charged in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure; 

 
 Contributions paid to the Council’s pension fund by way of employer’s contributions; 
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 Assumptions with regard to the take up of commutation. 
 

   
Statutory provisions limit the Council to raising council tax only to cover the amounts actually payable by the 
Council to the pension fund in the year rather than the above calculations under the relevant accounting 
standards. Consequently, there is an appropriation to the Pensions Reserve within the Movement in 
Reserves Statement to adjust the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits to match the actual 
amount payable to the pension fund. 
 
Where employees retire early and are able to receive their pension immediately, the cost to the pension fund 
is debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year the decision is made. 
 
These accounting policies have not been applied to t he Council’s share of the LPFA scheme on the bas is 
that this is n ot material to an unders tanding of the Council’s financial position. The financial statements 
reflect the actual amounts payable in the year by the Council in connection with this scheme.  
 

1.7 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
 
 Events after the Balance Sheet date refer to developments that have taken place between the end of the 

financial year and the date the Statement of Accounts is issued for publication.  Th e accounts reflect 
adjustments for events that provide further information on the conditions that existed at 31st March.  

 
 The accounts are not adjusted for a change in conditions taking place after 3 1st March although the nature 

and estimated effect of the change is reported in the notes to the accounts. 
 
1.8 GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
 Revenue Grants and Contributions 
 

Service revenue grants and contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis and are credited as income 
to appropriate service hea dings within th e Comprehensive Income and Expen diture Statement once the 
Council has satisfied conditions of the grant/contribution to the extent that the grant/contribution does not 
have to be repaid to the awarding body and there is reasonable certainty that the funding is receivable.  

 
Specific grants not received at the balance sheet date but where the related expenditure has been 
incurred and the gra nt conditions have been complied with are re corded in the Balan ce Sheet a s 
debtors. 

 
When grants have been received but the related expenditure has not been incurred and it is expected 
that the gran t conditions will be complied with i n the following or a subsequent financial year a re 
recorded as Receipts in Advance.  

 
Grants received at the bal ance sheet date but the related expenditure has not been incurred and it is  
expected that the grant condition s will not be com plied with a re recorded a s creditors as there i s 
reasonable certainty that the grant will have to be repaid. 
 
General non-specific grants (Revenue Support Grant, National Non-Domestic Rates) are credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as sources of funding under Taxation and Non-Specific 
Grant Income. 

  
 Capital Grants and Contributions 

 
Grants and contributions to capital expenditure are accounted for on an accruals basis and are credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expen diture Statement under Taxation and N on-Specific Grant Income 
when the grant conditions have been met to the extent that the grant/contribution does not have to be repaid 
to the awarding body. They are then reversed out in the Movement in Reserves Statement and transferred 
to Capital Grants Unapplied. 
 
Capital grants received where conditions have been met are transferred from Capital Grants Unapplied 
to the Capita l Adjustment Account when they are a pplied to fund capital expenditure.  Capital grants 
received but the grant condition s have not bee n met are recorded as Capital Grants Re ceipts in 
Advance where conditions are expected to be met in a future year or Capital Grants Creditors where the 
conditions are not expected to be met and it is expected the grant/contribution will have to be repaid. 
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Grants received in respect of PFI Contracts are accounted for as gener al revenue grants in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year in which  they become receivable under 
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income.  

 
1.9 COST OF SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

The cost of central overheads and support services including the surplus/deficits on internal trading services 
is fully allocated to departments in proportion to the benefits received and in accordance with the C IPFA 
Service Reporting Code of Practice. The basis of these allocations is as follows: 
 

COST BASIS OF ALLOCATION 
Administrative buildings Areas occupied 
Computer services Actual usage 
Central offices services Actual usage 
Central/professional services Staff time 

 
 Certain costs are held centrally and not allocated to services. These are: 
 

 Corporate and Democratic Core - costs relating to the Council’s status as a  multi-functional, 
democratic organisation; 

 
 Non-Distributed Costs – largely employment termination costs and the cost of discretionary benefits 

awarded to employees retiring early.  
 

1.10 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 
 Contingent liabilities refer to possi ble material obligations at 3 1 March 2013 that cann ot be readily 

quantified properly at the balance sheet date and there is a high level of uncertainty over the extent of 
the Council’s liability. No entries in the accounts are made for contingent liabilities but they are reported 
in Note 43 to the Financial Statements. In the main, they refer to contractual matters that are subject to 
legal proceedings.  
 
Contingent assets refer to transactions that may give rise to future  economic benefits to the Council but 
cannot be estimated with reasonable certainty at the balance sheet date. A contingent asset may be a sum 
owed to the Council but which at the balance sheet date is subject to the resolution of legal proceedings. 
 
The Council has adopted a de minimis level of £250k for the disclosure of contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities. 

 
1.11    COUNCIL TAX 
 

The amount of council tax income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is the Council’s share of the accrued council tax income for the year and not the tax de mand for the 
year. 

 
This treatment recognises the role of the Coun cil as a billing Authority a cting as an agent of the 
precepting Council - Greater London Authority (GLA) and of itself for the collection and distribution of 
council tax income. 

 
This does not affect the  Collection Fund Statement itself since the preparation of thi s statement is 
prescribed by legislation. 

 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account records the difference between the amount of council tax 
income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required to 
be credited to the General Fund by regulation – the Council Tax Demand.  
 
The movement on the Collection Fund Adjustment Account is a reconc iling item in the M ovement in 
Reserves Statement. The  balance on the Colle ction Fund Adjustment Account reflects the Council’s 
share of the accumulated net surplus/deficit on the Collection Fund. 

 
 The GLA’s share of the net surplus/deficit on the Collection Fund, council tax arrears, coun cil tax 

overpayments and impairment of debt is disclosed as a net debtor/creditor in the Balance Sheet. 
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1.12 NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES 
 

The Council carries out the collection of National Non Domestic Rates as an agent on behalf of Central 
Government. The Council accounts for its share of the redistribution of the National NNDR Pool and the 
cost of collection allowa nce it receives from Central Government through the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 

 
NNDR arrears, provision for imp airment of debt, prepayments and over payments and the Central 
Government debtor/creditor for the am ount due from/to the national pool are consolidated into a single 
debtor/creditor for amounts due from/to Central Government for the purposes of presenting the financial 
statements. 

 
 The Council accounts for the GLA’s Business Rate Supplement on an agency basis through the Collection 

Fund and only accounts for the receipt o f the associated cost of collection allowance in its Comprehens ive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. The year end balances attributable to the collection of the  Business 
Rate Supplement including arrears, overpayments and impairment of d ebt is di sclosed as a net 
debtor/creditor with the GLA in the Balance Sheet. 

 
1.13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 
Intangible fixed assets re fer to items of expenditure from wh ich the Cou ncil expects to obtain future 
economic benefits but which do not have physical substance. Generally, they refer to the acquisition and 
implementation costs of major new IT systems. 
 
Intangible assets are capitalised at cost and are amortised to revenue over the expected economic life of the 
expenditure (3-10 years) and reviewed annually. Where there is evidence of impairment at the end of the 
financial year, the impairment loss is written off against any revaluation gain held in the Revaluation Reserve 
for the relevant asset with any excess charged in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
The impairment loss is re versed out in the Movemen t in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital  
Adjustment Account so there is no impact on the General Fund. 

 
1.14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Acquisition and Recognition 

Items of property, plant and equipment are recognised as non-current assets when future economic benefits 
or service potential are expected to flow to the Council. Relevant accrued costs comprise initial acquisition, 
construction and subsequ ent enhancement or replacemen t (whole or in part) of the asse t and include 
incidental costs such as p rofessional and technical fees attributable to bringing the asse t into working 
condition for its intended use. Expenditure necessarily incurred in either maintaining the operational capacity 
of the assets or ensuring that their original estimated lives are achieved is considered maintenance and is 
treated as an expense as incurred. 

 
Valuation 

Property, plant and equipment assets including items acquired under finance leases are valued at fair value 
except as stated below an d are subject to ongoing review and re-valued as necessary so that the carrying 
amount of each asset class does not mater ially differ from its fair value (where applicable) at the reporting 
date. 
 

 operational land and buildings including operational facilities in Parks – are include d in the ba lance 
sheet at fair value in existing use (non-specialised) or depreciated replacement cost (specialised) 
adopting the Modern Equivalent Asset methodology, car parks and  parks concessions having an 
operational purpose are valued according to their income generation potential, residential 
establishments are valued on bed capacity with reference to market values; 
 

 infrastructure assets - are included at depreciated historic cost; 
 community assets – Parks land is recorded at a nominal value per hectare as market values cannot 

be economically and reliably measured – this represents a departure from the code which requires 
community assets to be r eported at historic cos t – the use o f nominal values per hecta re is 
considered to give a fairer representation of value for these assets; expenditure on parks (other than 
in connection with material operational facilities) is recorded at historic cost; 
 

 Council dwellings are valued at Existing Use Value - Socia l Housing using beacon property values 
in accordance with the guidance published by the DCLG in January 2011; 



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

23  
London Borough of Enfield 

 
 Vehicles, Plant and Equipment are valued at historic cost less depreciation as an approximation to 

current value. 
 
The freehold and leasehold properties that comprise the Council’s property portfolio are sub ject to a five 
year rolling programme of valuation inspections. This ensures that where market conditions or  rebuilding 
costs alter, all affec ted assets are considered over a reasonable period of time. A desktop re valuation is 
carried out annually of a ll property assets subjec t to the Moder n Equivalent Asset approach to DRC 
valuations that have not been formally inspected in the year. 
 
Where assets are re-valued, the effective date is 1st April at the start of the financial year.  
 
Where appropriate, the Council also uses indexation as part of its valuation process where there is evidence 
of material changes in market values subsequent to the asset valuation date. This may refer either to in year 
changes that would affect the carrying value of assets at 31st March or to interim measures to index asset 
values between planned revaluations during the life of the five year revaluation programme.  

 
Infrastructure and Community assets are recognised in  the Balance Sheet as the expenditure is incurred. 
Other operational assets a re recognised from the date they become operationa l. Until that time, they are 
included as assets under construction and valued at cost.  

 
The Council has adopted the following de minimis levels for the recognition of new assets and for assessing 
the effect of additional expenditure on the value of existing assets in the Asset Register. The Asset Register 
forms the basis for recording the carrying value of Non-Current Assets in the Balance Sheet. Expenditure is 
not recognised in the Asset Register where it falls below the following criteria: 

 
 Purchases of short life (up to 5 years) single item assets having a value of less than £10,000 at the 

date of acquisition; 
 Capital schemes costing less than £50,000 relating to construction projects. 

 
Revaluations 

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the  Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains 
which are shown under Other Comprehensive Income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 
For a revaluation loss, the carrying value of the asset is written down against any balance for the asset 
in the Revaluation Reserve in the first instance. Where there is no balance or insufficient balance in the 
Revaluation Reserve, the loss or balance of the  loss is debited to the  relevant service line in the 
Comprehensive Income a nd Expenditure Statement and reversed out in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Where a revaluation loss that has been debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
and is subsequently reversed by a revaluation gain, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is credited u p to the amount of the original debit less the a mount of depreciation that would have been 
charged had the loss not taken place. The revaluation gain is reversed out in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
The Revaluation Reserve records the effect of the revaluation of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible fixed assets. The reserve was created with a zero balance on 1st April 2007. The historic cost of 
assets was taken to be their current value at that date. The balance on the Revaluation Reserve therefore 
includes only the net effect of revaluations subsequent to 1st April 2007. 
 
Impairment 

The balance sheet valuation of all Property, Plant and Equipment assets is reviewed annually to determine 
whether there is an indication that impairment has occurred as o pposed to a downward valuation. An 
impairment loss may be  due to the consumption of econo mic benefits e.g. physical damage or 
obsolescence, an adverse change in the statutory or regulatory environment relating to the use of the asset 
or a material deterioration in the service potential of the asset beyond normal depreciation. 
 
An impairment loss is determined as the amount by which the carrying va lue of the asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount being determined as the h igher of its fair value (less costs to sell) or its depreciated 
replacement cost.  
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An impairment loss is rec ognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement unless the 
asset is carried at a re-valued amount. Where the asset is measured at a re-valued amount, the impairment 
loss is offse t against any available amount in the Revaluation Reserve in th e first instance. Where an 
impairment loss or balance of an impairment loss is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, it is reversed out to the  Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reser ves 
Statement. 
 
Where an impairment loss is subsequently re-estimated as a consequence of a reassessment of the factors 
giving rise to the impairment, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount provided that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in previous years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is credited in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement unless 
the asset is carried a t a re-valued amount in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation increase to the extent that no impairment losses have been previously recognised in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where a re versal of an impairment loss is credite d to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, it is reversed out to the  Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reser ves 
Statement. 

 
Disposals 

Where an asset is dispos ed of, decommission ed or transferred, the carrying value of the asset in the 
balance sheet is written o ff to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Receipts from 
disposals are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The net figure is reported 
as the gain or loss on disposal after taking into account costs incurred incidental to the disposal. However, in 
accordance with s tatutory financing arrangements, the carrying value o f disposals is appro priated to the  
Capital Adjustment Account and the receipts appropriated to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve as a 
reconciling item through the Movement in Reserves Statement. Any revaluation gain held in the Revaluation 
Reserve in respect of a disposal is transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Capital receipts arising from the disposal of assets held in the General Fund are used to finance new capital 
expenditure where the total amount of the receipt is in excess of £10,000. Regulations enable up to 4% of 
each receipt to be used  in the funding of the costs associated with, and incidental to, the disposal of the 
asset. In accordance with statutory regulation, receipts of £10,000 or less in total are credited to the relevant 
service heading in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Under the Local Government Act 2003, 75% of the proceeds arising from the sale of Council dwellings 
under right to buy legislation and 50% of the proceeds arising from the sa le of land held in the HRA for 
housing purposes were pr eviously paid over to Central Government for red istribution. However  new  
guidance in 2012/13 has enabled local authorities to retain further amounts of right to buy receipts upon 
agreement with Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG). 
 
These funds must be sp ent on the provision of n ew build dw ellings. The total amount payable to 
Government is disclosed in Other Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and offset by a contribution from the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve in th e Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  
 

1.15 DEPRECIATION 
Depreciation represents the consumption of th e service potentia l embodied in the asset. To achieve a  
systematic and rational allocation of their value, property, plant and equipment assets (excluding land) are 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives reviewed annually – estimated useful lives are s ummarised in 
the table below.  The Council uses the Reducing Balance method of depreciation. 
 
Property, plant and equipment assets are depreciated from the date acquired or installed ready for use or in 
the case o f constructed assets from the time t he asset is comple ted and commission ed.  Charges for  
depreciation are included as charges to service revenue accounts. Estimated useful lives are reviewed as  
part of the asset revaluation exercises, or where, in the interim there has been an enhancement to an asset 
that has extended its useful operational life, or wher e as a  result of ph ysical damage, obsolescence or 
similar impairment, its estimated operational life has reduced.  
 
Where revaluation gains are deprecia ted, the amount is transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the 
Capital Adjustment Account.  The Council’s general policy is to pro vide for the depreciation of assets over 
the following periods (by the straight line method) unless in the opinion of the Council’s Valuation Officer or 
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the responsible service manager in the case of vehicles and equipment a lesser period sho uld be used 
having regard to the nature of the expenditure incurred. 

 
Council Dwellings* and Operational Buildings 35-50 years 
Infrastructure 40 years 
Vehicles 3-10 years 
Plant and machinery 3-7 years 

 
The land element of Community Asse ts e.g. parks, are held in perpetuity and have an indefinite useful life.  
As such no depreciation charges are made.  However, where a building is present on Community Asset 
Land – e.g. a Pavilion, it is classed as an Operational Asset and depreciation is charged based on its useful 
economic life, consistent with Operational Buildings.   
 
*In accordance with CIPFA guidelines Council Dwellin gs are depreciated by an a mount equal to the Major  
Repairs Allowance as being a prox y for deprecia tion. Other Hou sing properties are depreciated in the  
normal manner. 
 
Components or a group of components that form part of a larger parent asset are recognised separately 
from the rest of the asset and may be  replaced during the useful life of the par ent. Each component or 
groups of components are depreciated over their individual life or the life of the parent asset if shorter. To 
qualify as a componen t or a group of componen ts, all the following conditio ns must be satisfied . The 
component has: 

 
 a significantly different life from the rest of the parent asset; 
 a significant cost (above £0.5m) in relation to the whole asset ; 
 an economic or service potential to the Council in a different pattern to the rest of the asset. 

 
The carrying value of items within a parent asset not identified as a component, are de-recognised when the 
capitalised cost of a replacement is incurred. 

 
Components or groups of components having the same expected life are identified and reviewed at the time 
the asset is inspected.  

 
1.16 HERITAGE ASSETS 

Heritage Assets are those that the Council holds in trust for future generations because of their cultural, 
environmental or histor ical associations – the y include historical buildings (Forty Hall and Broomfield 
House), Civic regalia, museum and art gallery collections and works of art. 

 
Heritage Assets excludes listed buildings which are held for operational purposes. 

 
Heritage Assets are generally recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and 
losses) in accordance with the Counc il’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. Similarly, 
impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Council’s general policy on impairme nt – 
with regard to Heritage Assets, this refers to circ umstances where an ite m has suffered deterioration, 
physical damage or where doubts have arisen over the item’s authenticity. 
 
The civic reg alia, museum collections and works of art are reported in the balance sheet at insurance 
valuation based on market values . These items ar e deemed to have indeterminate lives; the Council, 
therefore, does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation.  
 
The balance sheet valuation of the museum collection, which is carried out by external valuers, is based 
only on artefacts that are considered to have a material financial value – the balance sheet value therefore 
only reflects some 250 i tems. This comprises the whole of the Coun cil’s art collection, furniture and coins 
and a small proportion of the rest of the collection as recommended by the museum staff. 
 
 
 
Acquisitions are rare but should they occur they are initially recognised at cost. If the item has been donated 
to the Council, it is recognised at market valuation.  
 
Historical buildings are re-valued in accordance with the five year rolling programme of property valuations; 
other items including civic r egalia, the museum coll ections and wor ks of ar t (where material) are valued 
every five years – the date of the most recent valuation of these artefacts was October 2010. 
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1.17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

Investment properties are held either for earning rental income or for capital appreciation; they do not have a 
function that supports the delivery of council services. 

 
 They are valued at fair value annually reflecting the market conditions at the balance sheet date; they are 
not depreciated. Rental income and reva luation gains or losses are recognised in the Co mprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement under Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure. Disposal and 
revaluation gains and losses are reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 

1.18 CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND SURPLUS ASSETS 

 Current Assets Held for Sale comprise those assets that the Council has determined are for immediate sale 
in their present condition and are expected to be sold in the next twelve months.  These assets are valued at 
the lower of their carrying value or their fair value less costs to sell. Fair values are determined on the basis 
of current market conditions. The assets are not depreciated. 

 
 Assets that are not in operational use and do not meet the definition of investment properties, nor current 

assets held for sale, are classified as surplus assets. They are valued according to their most recent use by 
the Council. Generally, they refer to properties where the Council has yet to proceed with the disposal of the 
properties or is considering developing them for alternative use. 

 
1.19 CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON CURRENT ASSETS 

 The charges made to General Fund services equate to the sum of: 
 depreciation on property, plant and equipment;  
 amortisation of intangible assets attributable to services; 
 revaluation and impairment losses, where there is ins ufficient revaluation gains held for the a ssets 

concerned in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off; 
 capital expenditure below de minimis levels or deemed as non-enhancing by Council valuers. 

 
Depreciation, amortisations and impairment losses are not charges that affect the overall level of 
expenditure to be met from the council tax. However, the Council is required to set aside an annual provision 
from revenue to reduce its over all underlying borrowing requirement.  Th is is known as the minimum 
revenue provision and must be determined prudently in accordance with guidance provided by DCLG. For 
2012/13, the Council has set aside: 
 

 4% of the Council’s adjusted General Fund Capital Financing Requirement at 1st April 2012 where 
this relates to capital expenditure funded from borrowing as a t 31st March 2008 and ca pital 
expenditure incurred thereafter and funded from supported borrowing (i.e. where there is re venue 
provision recognised in the Council’s Revenue Support Grant Settlement); 

 Provision for the amor tisation of unsupported borrowing incurred at 31st March 2013 reflecting the 
estimated life of the related expenditure. 

 
An adjustment is made to  reconcile depreciation, amortisation and impairments to the min imum revenue 
provision through a contribution from th e Capital Adjustment Account.  Cap ital charges to the HRA are 
based on the HRA capital financing requirement (the amount deemed to have been borrowed to fund capital 
expenditure in the HR A) multiplied by the Consolidated Rate of Interest (the rate calculated in accordance 
with a direction on the HRA by the Department for Communities and Local Government). 

 
1.20 REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE  

Legislation allows some expenditure to be classified as capital for funding purposes even though it does not 
result in the expenditure being carried on the Balance Sheet as a non current asset. The purpose of this is to 
enable the expenditure to be funded from capital r esources rather than be charged to the General 
Fund/HRA and impact on that ye ar’s council tax or rent income from council house tenants. For example, 
the Council pays Housing Assistance Grants to owner-occupiers. These are recorded as expenditure for 
capital purposes, but such expenditure does not result in the Council acquiring an asset.   

 
Such expenditure and any grant receivable is debited/credited to the relevant service he ading in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Statutory provisions that allow capital resources to 
meet the expenditure are accounted for by deb iting the Capital Adjustment Account and crediting the 
General Fund/HRA Balance and are shown as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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1.21 PFI CONTRACTS 
 
PFI contracts are agreements for the provision of assets or enhancements to assets that are then used by 
the PFI contractor to deliver services. The Council has three PFI contracts:  
 

 Highlands Secondary School; 
 Starksfield Primary School and the refurbishment and extension to Tottenhall Primary School and 

Lea Valley Secondary School; 
 The provision of street lighting services. 

 
 As the Co uncil controls/regulates the services provided under the above PF I contracts and acquires 

ownership of the assets at the end of the contract term at no add itional charge, the Council has concluded 
that these arrangements meet the definition of Service Concessions.  

 
 The accounting policy for PFI contracts: 

 
 recognises on the Council’s Balance Sheet the assets/enhancements provided and a 

corresponding liability for the amounts due to the contractor to pay for the assets; 
 

 recognises on the Council’s Balance Sheet all non-current assets that were transferred to the PFI 
contractor at the start of the contract and used directly in the delivery of services; 

 
 provides for the depreciation and revaluation of assets in the same way as other property, plant and 

equipment owned by the Council. 
 

 The amounts payable to the PFI contractor annually are therefore analysed into the following five elements: 
 

 the value of services provided during the year charged to the relevant service in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement; 

 
 an interest charge on the outstanding balance sheet liability charged to Interest Payable in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 
 

 a payment towards the liability applied to write down the balance sheet liability to the PFI contractor 
equivalent to Minimum Revenue Provision under statutory regulation; 

 
 a contingent rent represe nting increases in the amount paid for the assets du ring the contract 

charged to Interest Payable in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 
 

 Lifecycle replacement costs recognised  as non-cu rrent assets where ma terial or expens ed to 
revenue where immaterial. 

 
1.22 LEASING  
 

Finance Leases 
 
Leases of property, plant and equipment under which the Council substantially assumes all the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases where an evaluation of the lease arrangement meets 
the criteria set out in the Code and the net present value of the minimum lease repayments is greater than 
80% of the asset value.  
 
All leases of land and buildings for a period of fifteen years or less, or equipment for a period of three years 
or less are treated as operating leases without further evaluation. In addition, leased out properties are 
considered to be operating leases where the current passing rental income is less than £30,000 per annum. 
 
Assets acquired under finance leases are recorded in  the Counc il’s balance sheet as non-cur rent assets 
and are valued and de preciated in the same way as other assets of the same classification; they are 
depreciated over the lease term where this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life. The acquisition 
of the interest is recorded as a liability at the commencement of the lease and written down as the leasing 
charges become payable at a consta nt rate of return. The finance element of the leasing charge is debited 
to external interest payable in th e Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; the principal 
repayment of the lease liability is accounted for as part of Minimum Revenue Provision within the Movement 
in Reserves Statement under statutory regulation.  
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Amounts due to the Council under finance leases are accounted for as long term debtors; the related asset 
is not recognised in the Balance Sheet. The repayment of the principal element is applied in reducing the 
long term debtor and classified as a capital receip t. The interest element of the lease repayment is credited 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as interest receivable. In accordance with 
statutory regulation, an amount equivalent to the to tal principal repaid to the Council under finance leases 
taken out prior to 1st April 2010 is transferred from the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve to the General Fund 
through the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Lease rentals payable or r eceivable under operating leases (including all leases of land) ar e debited or  
credited to service revenu e accounts in  equal insta lments over the term of the lease ne t of incentives 
contained in the lease (such as rent free periods). Assets acquired under operating leases are not recorded 
as assets in the financial statements.  
 
Assets leased out under operating leases are recognised in the Ba lance Sheet and depreciated over their 
expected useful life consistent with similar owned pr operty, plant and equipment. Lease rentals receivable 
are credited to Financ ing and Investment Income an d Expenditure in the Co mprehensive Income and  
Expenditure Statement over the life of the lease on a straight line basis. 
 

1.23 INVENTORIES 
 

Inventories, where material, are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 
 
1.24 PROVISIONS, RESERVES AND BALANCES 

 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, that it is probable that an outflow of resources will be requ ired to settle the obligation, and that a 
reasonable estimate of the provision can be made. Provisions are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect current available information. When it is considered very likely that the provision is no 
longer needed, the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant revenue account.  
 
Provisions are also crea ted in respec t of impairment of deb t where there is s ome uncertainty over the 
Council’s entitlement to receive income. This may arise in connection with changes in the eligibility criteria of 
Central Government grant programmes or as a result of the interpretation of new legislation.  
 
Reserves and Balances 
 
Reserves and balances a re amounts set aside fr om Council funds, including unapplied revenue grants 
where conditions ha ve been met at the Balance Sheet date, at the discretion of the Council for either 
general or e armarked purposes to meet future expenditure. Earmarked Reserves are created by 
appropriating amounts in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
When expenditure is incurred in conne ction with a r eserve, the expenditure is charged to the service  
heading in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and met by an appropriation from the 
reserve so there is no charge against council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Capital Grants Unapplied, the Capital Receipts Reserve and the Major Repairs Reserve can only be used to 
fund capital expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves do not represent usable resources for the Council and can only be used for sp ecific 
statutory purposes. The purpose of these reserves is explained in the relevant policies e.g. the Revaluation 
Reserve represents the surplus balance arising from the periodic revaluation of prop erty, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets; the Capital Adjustment Account represents the amounts se t aside from 
revenue, capital grants and usable capital receipts to finance new capital expenditure and for the statutory 
repayment of the Cou ncil’s underlying borrowing r equirement. The Capital Adjustment Account a lso 
includes the contra entries to the debits/credits posted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
Statement for depreciation, impairment and revaluation, the carrying value of assets disposed of a nd 
REFCUS expenditure. 
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1.25 TRUST FUNDS  

 
Certain sums of money are administered by the Council as custodian on behalf of others, in particular where 
the Council acts as the trustee of a Charitable Bo dy.  Such sums are not included in the Financial 
Statements but are detailed in Note 44 for information purposes. The investments of the Funds are shown 
both at cost and market value as at 31 March.  
 
Similarly funds administered by the Council arising from receivership or appointeeships and other funds held 
by the Council such as residents property accounts and other miscellaneous funds held on behalf of social 
services establishments are also not included in the Financial Statements but are also disclosed in Note 44 
for information purposes. 
 

1.26 INTEREST ON BALANCES 
 
Interest is added to balances held on Trust Funds and the Housing Revenue Account as well as some other 
specific accounts and reserves to preserve the purchasing power of the funds. 

 
1.27 SCHOOLS 

 
The Council receives a Dedica ted Schools Grant from the Government.  The Council a llocates this from a 
central budget to individual schools (“delegated school budgets”) .  Schools who have a Deleg ated Budget 
are said to be `LA Main tained’ because the Local Authority funds their re venue expenditure. All L A 
Maintained Schools in the Boroug h operate their own bank accounts and keep th eir own financial records 
independent of the Council’s corporate financia l systems. At the end of the financial year, all LA Maintained 
Schools submit annual returns for consolidation into the Council’s Statement of Accounts and their 
expenditure is inclu ded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under Children’s and 
Education Services.  The balances of LA Maintained Schools are included in the Council’s Balance Sheet.   
 
The Accounting treatment of land and buildings for each type of school is based on the legal framework and 
practical obligations underlying each type of school. The Council owns the land and buildings of Community 
Schools and t heir value is included in the Council’s Balance Sheet under Non-Current Assets.  For 
Foundation Schools, whilst legal title technically lies with the school’s Foundation Trust, the Council carries 
the bulk of risks and rewards associated  with ownership and therefore the value of land and buildings for 
these schools is also inclu ded in the Council’s Balance Sheet under Non-Current Asse ts.  The land an d 
buildings of Voluntary Aided schools are  not ow ned by the Council and are therefore not shown on the  
Council’s Balance Sheet.  Any resources which the C ouncil might choose to allocate to a Voluntary Aided 
School for the purpose of Capital Expenditure is treated in the Council’s accounts as Revenue Expenditure 
Financed from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) and charged to the Co mprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement under Children’s and Education Services.  
 
Four LA Mainta ined Schools occupy b uildings which have be en constructed or re-furbished under PF I 
contracts.  The values of these buildings are s hown on the Council’s Balance Sheet under Non-Current 
Assets with the liability for the lease repayments shown under Long Term Liabilities.     
   
Former LA Maintained Schools which have become Academies are de-recognised fr om the date the 
Academy is created and the school no longer receives funding directly from the Council.  For Community 
and Foundation Schools transferring to Academy Status, this includes writing out the carrying value of the 
related assets from the Balance She et through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
under Other Operating Expenditure as part of the gain/loss on disposal of assets.   At the end of March 2013 
Oasis Hadley Academy occupied a newly constructed Council building under a shor t term lease 
arrangement pending the arrangement of a long term lease of 125 years. The contract will not be completed 
until the defects liability pe riod has e xpired in J anuary 2014 and as such the asset remains within the 
Council’s ownership. 
 
As at 31 March 2013 the Council has 22 Maintained Schools which are classified as Voluntary Maintained. 
Whilst the income, expenditure and balances pertaining to Voluntary Maintained Schools are consolidated in 
the Council’s Accounts, the value of the land and property is not.  This is the Council’s interpretation of the   
requirements of the Code of Practice.  Cipfa ar e currently re viewing the accounting and reporting 
requirements for schools which might result in future changes to the Code of Practice.  
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1.28 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expen diture Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying  
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  
 
Gains or losses on the repurchase or early settle ment of borrowing are credited and debited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where 
repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification and 
exchange of existing instruments, the premium and discount is respectively added to or deduc ted from the 
amortised cost of the new or mo dified loan, and the write down to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is spread over t he life o f the loan b y an a djustment to the effec tive interest rate.  
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund to be spread over future years. The council 
has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the 
premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. With regard to the HRA, premiums and 
discounts on the repurchase of HRA debt is amortised to the HRA over the remaining life of the debt repaid 
or ten years, whichever is the lower. 
 
The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net 
charge required against the General Fu nd Balance is managed by a tra nsfer to, or fr om, the Financial 
Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

1.29 FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
 Financial assets are classified into two types: 
 

 Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed and determinable payments but are not quoted in 
an active market; and  

 
 Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 

determinable repayments. 
 
Loans and receivables 

 
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying  
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective interest rate for the instrument. For all of the loans that the 
Council has made, this means that the amount presented in the Ba lance Sheet is the outstanding principal 
receivable and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expend iture Statement is the amount 
receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Available-for-sale assets 
 
Available for sale assets a re initially measured and ca rried at fair value. Where the asset ha s fixed or  
determinable payments, annual credits to the Comp rehensive Income and Expen diture Statement for 
interest receivable are base d on the amo rtised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective interest rate for 
the instrument. Where there are no  fixed or d eterminable payments, income is credi ted to th e 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council.  
 
Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following principles: 
 
 Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price; 
 
 Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis; 
 
 Equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company valuations. 

 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an en try in the available-for-sale reserve and the gain/loss is 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. The exception is where impairment losses 
have been incurred – these are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure, along 
with any net gain/loss for the asset accumulated in the reserve. 
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Where assets are identified as impaired, because of a likelihood arising from past events that payments due 
under the co ntract will n ot be made , the asset is written down a nd a charge made to Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
Any gains and losses that arise on de-recognition of the asset are credited/debited to Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with 
any accumulated gains/losses previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure and 
transferred from the Available for Sa le Reserve. Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the 
instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment losses). 

 
1.30 VAT 
 
 The financial statements exclude the effect of VAT other than any amount that is irrecoverable from HM 

Revenue and Customs. 
 
1.31 FINANCIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH COMPANIES AND OTHER ORGANISATIONS 
 

Where the Council has controlling interests in Subsidiaries, Associates or Jo int Venture Companies, the 
Council consolidates its interests into a set of Group Accounts, unless the interests are considered not 
material to the Council’s financial position. Where the Council has interests which fall within the Group 
Boundary, a professional judgement is made as to whether it is economic to prepare Group Accounts 
compared to the additional benefits accruing to the reader of the Accounts in understanding the 
Council’s financial activities and obligations. This judgem ent has due regard to the impact of 
consolidation on the  Council’s financial statements; if the professional ju dgement is that the time and 
cost of consolidating the interest would not justify any ad ditional benefit, then the i nterest in that 
Company is not consolidated. 

 
The Council has undertaken a review of its interests in other bodies in accor dance with the rele vant 
accounting tests contained in the CIPFA Code of Practice and has concluded that it does have a group 
relationship with the following companies: 

 
Enfield Homes Ltd  

 
With effect from 1st April 2008, the Council established a manage ment company (Enfield Homes Ltd) to 
manage its Housing Stock. This compa ny is a who lly owned sub sidiary of the Council and as such the  
Council’s interest in it falls within the Group Boundary. However, a professio nal judgement on the  
materiality, size and impact of incorporating this interest into the Group Accounts concluded that the time 
and cost in doing so wo uld not be justified by the additional benefits to the  users of the accounts.  
Information on the financial performance and standing of Enfield Homes and how this relates to the Council 
is provided in Note 35 to the Core Financial Statements.   

 
Enfield Norse Ltd 
 
On 1st May 2009, the Council entered into an agr eement with Norse Commercial Ser vices Ltd (the trading 
arm of Norfolk County Co uncil) to establish Enfield Norse Ltd. The company provides building cleaning 
services to the Council and its Schools.  As a Joint Venture, the Council’s interest in Enfield Norse Ltd falls 
within the Group Boundary. However, a professional judgement on the ma teriality, size an d impact on 
incorporating this interest into the Group Accounts concluded that the time and cost in doing so would not be 
justified by the additional benefits to the users of the accounts.  Information on the financial performance and 
standing of Enfield Norse a nd how this relates to the Council is provided in No te 35 to th e Core Financial 
Statements.   

 
 New River Services Ltd 
 

In 2011, the Council set up New River  Services Ltd, a company wholly owned by the Authority with the 
Board made up of Co uncillors and Senior Officers.  The purpose of the Company is to provide a legal 
platform which will enable the Authority to trade its services with other public bodies on a commercial basis. 
As and when the Company becomes operational, its inclusion into the Group Accounts will be dependent on 
materiality and cost versus benefit considerations as outlined in the Policy above.    
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Other Organisations 
 

In addition, the Council has a financial relationship with a number of other bodies and this is explained in 
Note 35 to  the Core Financial Statements; these relationships do not give rise to a significan t degree of 
influence or control. 

 
1.32 INSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS  
  

It is the Council’s policy to pro ject estimated in-year insurance related expenditure, which includes both 
internal and external arrangements.  Ins urance related transactions are initially recorded in a  Corporate 
Insurance Account and subsequently re-allocated to departments so that the charge to each Service area 
reflects the economic cost of providing cover for their activities.  
 
It is also the Council’s Policy to hold an Insurance Fund – a type o f Earmarked Reserve – the purpose of 
which is to set aside resources to cover projected claim incidents incurred but not reported at the balance 
sheet date, as informed by Independent Actuarial Reviews. 

 
NOTE 2. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED. 

 
For the 2013/14 Financial Statements, the CIPFA Code will adopt Accounting Standard IFRS7 (Financial 
Instrument Disclosures) and amendments to Accounting Standard IAS19 (Employee Benefits).  
 
IAS19 – Employee Benefits.  The changes to this Standard include more detailed Disclosures and a change 
to the point at which Termination Benefits are recognised.  Other than the additional time taken to prepare 
the extra Disclosures, the changes to th is standard are not expected to ha ve any material effect to the 
Council’s Accounts, therefore  a change to our Accounting Policy is not anticipated.  
 
IFRS7 – F inancial Instrument Disclosures. Under this Standard, additional information is required to th e 
Financial Instrument Disclosures so as to give the reader a better understanding regarding the effec t, or 
potential effect, of netting figures on the balance sheet.  Adoption of this Standard is not expected to have 
any material effect to the Council’s Accounts and a change to our Accounting Policy is not anticipated 

 
NOTE 3. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

In applying the accounting policies as set out in Note 1, the Council has had to make judgements about 
certain complex transactions. These are: 
 

 The Council had £5m deposited with the Heritable Bank of Iceland at the time the bank went into 
administration in 20 08. The Council has made provision for the estimated impairment of the 
investment based on the most recent advice from the bank’s administrators on the likely amount 
recoverable and the timing of those receipts; 

 
 The Council has reviewed its PFI contracts for the provision of schools and street lighting services 

and has concluded that the Council controls these services and the residual values of the assets 
at the e nd of the contra cts. The accounting policies for PFI an d similar contracts have been 
applied and the related assets are recorded on the Council’s Balance Sheet; 

 
 In accounting for the Council’s exposure to possible future losses and obligations, provisions have 

been made where there is sufficient objective evidence to en able the exte nt and timing  to be 
reasonably estimated; where there is a high degree of uncertainty, a contingent liability has been 
disclosed where material (above £ 250k). Accruals are mad e in the financi al statements for 
estimated liabilities arising from the Council’s normal business activities including those which may 
be subject to dispute or negotiation with the supplier; 

 
 In classifying assets as Investment Properties, the Council has done so on  the ba sis of the 

purpose for which these assets are held in maximising the generation of income at market rents or 
capital appreciation for th e benefit of i ts services. Investment Properties include council owned 
retail, commercial and industrial premises; 

 
 The recognition of th e assets of the  different categories of school in l ocal authority accounts 

continues to be a matter of debate nationally in the context of what should constitute the overall 
accounting framework for maintained schools. In particular, this concerns whether the assets of 
Foundation Schools and Voluntary Aided Schools should be recognised on local authority balance 
sheets. As at 31st March 2013, Enfield had 22 Voluntary Aided Schools (18 Primary; 4 Secondary) 
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and 1 Fou ndation School (1 Seco ndary). For 201 2/13, the Cou ncil has continued to ap ply its 
existing accounting policy of not recognising VA School assets on balance sheet on the basis that 
the Council does not directly control the economic benefits of these assets. Further clarification on 
this issue is expected to be provided in future updates of the CIPFA Accounting Code of Practice;  

 
 In considering whether a lease is an operating or finance lease, the Council has taken into 

account the length of period of the agreement, the net present value of the lease payments in 
relation to the value of the assets involved, the degree of control the Council has over their use 
and its residual interest in them at the end of the agreements. Leases are therefore recognised as 
finance leases where the agreements are long term and reflect more than 80% of the assets value 
at the time of inception. Leases of land are all deemed to be operational leases; 

 
 The Council has considered its rel ationships with other entities and has concluded that the 

inclusion of such interests in a set of group financial statements should only be made where there 
is a material effect on the Council’s financial position and its obligations and therefore material for 
an understanding of its financial affairs;  

 
 The Council has considered its cont racts for t he supply of serv ices to determine wh ether such 

arrangements provide for the Coun cil to specify, control and utilise a significant proportion of the 
assets deployed in the service provision and also provides the Council with a residual interest at 
the end of the contract. Such contracts might th erefore contain a lea se. No su ch contracts 
meeting this definition have been identified; 

 
 The Council uses the HRA Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) as a proxy for the depreciation charge 

on Council Dwellings on the basis that the MRA  is not mate rially different to the calculated 
depreciation charge. 

 
NOTE 4. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF 

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
The Statement of Acco unts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the  
Council about the future and otherwise uncertain events.  
 
Estimates are made ta king into a ccount recent experience and current trends and other objective 
factors. Since balances cannot be determined with complete certainty, actual events could be materially 
different from the assumptions and estimates that have been made. 
 
The principal items in th e Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2013 which may materially be affected 
by future events are set out below; 

 
Item Uncertainty Effect If Actual Results Differ From 

Assumptions 
Property 
Plant and 
Equipment 

Assets are depreciated over estimated 
useful lives reflecting the cu rrent 
condition of the assets.  Asset u seful 
lives may need to be reduced if there is 
a deterioration beyond the currently 
assessed future p erformance of the se 
assets.   

A reduction i n useful lives will i ncrease the 
annual depreciation charge and reduce asset 
carrying values. An increase in useful lives 
will give rise to a corresponding reduction in 
annual depreciation charges. 

Provisions Provision has been made for e stimated 
insurance claims to be met from the 
Council’s own internal insurance 
arrangements. The Council has taken 
actuarial advice on the Council’s claims 
exposure in determining the p rovision. 
This includes actual and IBNR (incurred 
but not reported) claims. 

 

An actuarial review is undertaken every three 
years to re-assess the Council’s exposure. 
An increase of 10% in the value of estimated 
outstanding claims would require an 
additional provision of £ 591k. The Coun cil 
has a separate earmarked insuran ce fund 
reserve (£3.491m) which may be  used to 
address such losses.  

 
Pensions 
Liability  

Estimation of the net li ability to pay 
pensions depends on a number of 
judgements relating to the discount rate 
used, the rate at whi ch employee 
earnings are proj ected to increa se, 
changes in retirem ent ages, mortality 

The effects on th e pension liability of 
changes in i ndividual assumptions can be 
measured. For example, a 0.5% increase in 
the discount rate assumption would give rise 
to a decrease in the pen sion fund liabil ity of 
£90m. 
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Item Uncertainty Effect If Actual Results Differ From 
Assumptions 

rates and expected returns on p ension 
fund assets. The Council has enga ged 
an actuary to advise on these 
assumptions and judgements. 

 

However, other factors are less qu antifiable 
and changes in some assumptio ns may be 
affected by future le gislation. Further 
information on the movement in the pension 
liability is included in Note 41.  

 
 
 
NOTE 5. FINANCE AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
 

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:  2012/13 2011/12 

Interest payable and similar charges  17,313 17,621
Pensions Interest Cost  47,471 47,958
Interest and investment income  (6,329) (5,356)
Return on Pension Assets  (40,256) (39,807)
Dividend Income from Joint Venture  (210) (221)
Impairment on Investments  68 (135)
Investment Properties: Income, 
expenditure, valuation changes and gain 
on disposal  (15,258) (7,895)

Total  2,799 12,165
 
 
NOTE 6. TAXATION AND NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME 
 

Taxation and non-specific grant 
income:  2012/13 2011/12 

Income from Council Tax  (121,903) (121,400)
NNDR Distribution  (122,941) (100,098)
PFI Revenue Support Grant  (6,800) (6,800)
General Government Grants  (25,221) (49,974)
Capital Grants and Contributions  (69,337) (37,359)

Total  (346,202) (315,631)
 
 
NOTE 7. MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENSE 

 
The following item ha s been recognised as expenditure in the Net Cost of Service s within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Information is provided in this Disclosure because 
of its unusual nature rather than its material significance.   
 
Clawback Levy – Municipal Mutual Insurance £427k 
 
This relates to a liability t he Council has to cove r the cost of settled claim payments and potential  
subsequent claim payments that were previously underwritten by Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) –  
who fell into Administration in 1993.  
 
The 2011-12 Statement of Accounts referred to a Contingent Liability of £1.6m.  This represented 75% 
of Actuarial estimated potential claims which could be made – which the Council might have to fund due 
to the financi al plight of MMI. The £1.6m was disclosed as a Contingent Liability because, as at 31 
March 2012, the Administrators had n ot placed MMI into liquidation and a ny actual Cla wback was 
subject to one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Authority.  
 
In November 2012 Ernst and Young LLP, the MMI  Administrators, formally declared a ‘Scheme of 
Arrangements’ had been triggered.  This effectively is a formal announcement to the effect that they see 
no prospect of the former company avoiding liquidation.  As such, they have to Clawback money from 
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Local Authorities to enabl e them to fund settled claim payments and al so potential subsequent claim 
payments, as MMI do not have sufficient resources to cover these themselves.   
 
A letter from Ernst and Young in April 2013 declared an initial Clawback of 15%.  This i s effectively a 
levy and refers to payments the Council will be required to make equal to:- 
 
i)  15% of the actual value of settled claims between September 1993 and 31 March 2013.   
 
Based on th e actual value of cumulative claims settled in thi s period, £227k was recognised as 
expenditure in the accounts with a corresponding liability on the Balance Sheet*. 
 
ii)  15% of estimated subsequent claims from 1 April 2013. 
 
Based on an Actuarial Estimate of £1.3m of future  possible claims previously underwritten by MMI, 
£200k was recognised as expenditure in the a ccounts with a corresponding liability on the Balance 
Sheet (see Note 23- Provisions) 
 
It should be noted that the levy percentage is subject to review by Ernst and Young.  Any change will 
result in the actual Clawback amounts paid being different to the £427k recognised as expenditure in the 
2012-13 Accounts.   
 
Despite Ernst and Young having declared a 15% levy, there is a possibility that up to 75% of the value of 
actual settled claims and potential subsequent claim payments could be clawed back.  In recognition of 
this possibility the Council has disclosed a Contingent Liability of £1.7m as at 31.03.2013. 

 
NOTE 8. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD  

The unaudited Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by James Ro lfe, Director of F inance, 
Resources and Customer Ser vices on 30 June 2013. Where events taking place before this date wou ld 
have provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2013, the figures in the financial statements 
and notes would have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect th e impact of this information. 
However, no known events took place during this period, therefore no adjustments have been made to the 
Financial Statements or Notes.   

  
NOTE 9. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS  UNDER 

REGULATIONS 
This note sets out the ad justments that need to be made to the Comprehens ive Income and Expend iture 
Statement prepared on the basis of pr oper accounting practices in order to reco ncile the Statement to the 
resources available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure as specified by statute. 
The note analyses the amounts shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

2011/12 
Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 

Regulations 2012/13 

£000  £000 
108,590 Deficit on Provision of Services 22,972

  

 Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
but required by statute to be excluded when determining the Movement in 
General Fund Balance: 

(114,514) Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets - General Fund (108,278)

(21,685) Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets - HRA (17,062)

217 Investment Properties: Gain/Loss on Disposal and Movements in F air and Market 
Value 

9,600

41,670 Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES 69,336

(37,421) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (8,750)

(10,985) Net gain or loss on sale of non-current assets 3,827

276 Amount by which finance costs calculated in accordance with the Code are different 
from the amount of finance costs calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 

2,268
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2011/12 
Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 

Regulations 2012/13 

£000  £000 
(4,422) Amount by which pension costs calculated in accordance with the Code (IAS 19) ar e 

different from the contributions due under the pension scheme regulations 
(5,999)

127 Amount by which council tax income and residual community charge adjustment 
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from 
the amount taken to the General Fund in accordance with regulation 
 
 
 
 

403

(146,737) Sub Total (54,655)
 Amounts not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement but required to be included by statute when determining the 
Movement on the General Fund Balance 

10,509 Statutory provision for repayment of debt 10,367

3,525 Repayment of lease obligations 2,568

8,038 Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund and HRA 8,447

(21) Transfer from Capital Receipts Reserve equal to the amount payable into the Housing 
Capital Receipts Pool 

(971)

(164) Other Contributions from the Capital Receipts Reserve (298)

21,888 Sub Total 20,113

(124,850) Total (34,542)
 
 
The above figures inc lude a loss o n disposal o f Investment Properties in 2012/13 of £822k (gain on disposal of 
£1,936k in 2011/12).  Further information on Investment Properties is set out in Note 12. 
 
NOTE 10.  TRANSFERS TO/ (FROM) EARMARKED RESERVES 
 
 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves 
to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to 
meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2012/13. 
 
Reserves and Balances Balance at 

31 March 
2013  

£000's 

Net 
Transfers 
2012/13  
£000's 

Balance at 
31 March 

2012  
£000's 

Net 
Transfers 
2011/12 
£000's 

Balance at 
31 March 

2011  
£000s 

Housing Revenue Account  
HRA Repairs Fund 3,346 (1,942) 5,287 (414) 5,701
HRA - Capital Reserve 12,081 8,533 3,548 0 3,548
Total HRA 15,427 6,592 8,835 (414) 9,249
General Fund  
Commitments Reserve 9,018 (6,802) 15,820 4,922 10,898
Risk Reserve 2,409 (259) 2,668 2,668 0
ICT Investment Fund 6,636 513 6,123 (571) 6,694
Interest Rate Equalisation Reserve 4,004 (250) 4,254 0 4,254
Insurance Fund 3,491 332 3,159 563 2,596
Council Restructuring Reserve 2,226 943 1,283 (451) 1,734
General Fund - Capital Reserve 6,857 1,402 5,455 (922) 6,377
Sustainable Service Development 1,741 (159) 1,900 0 1,900
European Social Fund 1,274 (226) 1,500 0 1,500
Repair & Maintenance 1,795 863 933 (326) 1,259
Residents Priority Fund 1,183 253 930 930 0
Welfare Benefits Reserve 3,656 3,656 0 0 0
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Reserves and Balances Balance at 
31 March 

2013  
£000's 

Net 
Transfers 
2012/13  
£000's 

Balance at 
31 March 

2012  
£000's 

Net 
Transfers 
2011/12 
£000's 

Balance at 
31 March 

2011  
£000s 

Projects Reserves 21,589 3,520 18,070 (153) 18,223
Sub Total 65,881 3,785 62,095 6,661 55,435
Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve 4,916 811 4,105 (43) 4,149
S106 Receipts 572 (84) 656 46 610
Total General Fund Reserves 71,369 4,512 66,856 6,663 60,193
Total Earmarked Reserves 86,795 11,104 75,692 6,249 69,442

 
A brief description of each reserve is as follows: 
HRA Repairs Fund 
The fund provides resources to help fund the maintenance of the council’s social housing stock. 
HRA - Capital Reserve 
The reserves helps fund c apital investment to improve the counc il’s social hous ing stock and  meet the 
Decent Homes Standard. 

 
Commitments Reserve 
Funding for revenue projects that are not completed by the year end is carried forward to  meet any 
outstanding expenditure commitments in the following year. This includes revenue grants not fully spent in 
2012/13.  
Risk Reserve 
The Council has a numbe r of known pressures tha t cannot be qu antified exactly but will require one-o ff 
funding in year. This reserve is held to meet any costs over and above the budgets set at the start of the 
financial year to meet these pressures. 
ICT Investment Fund 
This fund is used to finance the Counc il’s investment in new IT which will resu lt in efficiency and service 
improvements. 
Interest Rate Equalisation Reserve 
This fund has been set aside to meet in year fluctuations in market interest rates that may result in additional 
costs to the Council either because of higher interest on shor t term borrowing or reductions in in terest 
earnings on short term deposits. 
Insurance Fund 
This is set aside to meet the Council’s self-insured risks and other insurance related pressures. 
Council Restructuring Reserve 
The Council is constantly looking to improve efficiency and this fund helps meet any one-off related 
expenditure including staff severance costs 
General Fund - Capital Reserves 
This reserve helps fund the Council’s c apital investment (excluding social hous ing) and also a vehic le 
replacement programme. 
Sustainable Service Development 
This fund is available to help build the capacity of communities in the borough. 
European Social Fund 
This fund aims to attract European funding into the borough to improve the employability of the unemployed 
and economically inactive people in Enfield. 
Repair & Maintenance 
This reserve meets fluctuations in the cost of maintaining council buildings that is in excess of the annual 
budgetary provision for building maintenance.  
Residents Priority Fund 
This balance is the carry forward of approved but unspent monies awarded to improve local communities 
Welfare Benefits Reserve 

A new reserve to mitigate new pressures arising from reforms to Housing & Council Tax Benefit. 
Projects Reserves 
Various reserves held by services to finance projects to mee t Council priorities and improve services to  
residents. 
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NOTE 11.       PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT MOVEMENT IN BALANCES 2012/13: 
 

2012/13 
Cost or Valuation £000’s 
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At 31.03.2012 442,242 522,404 33,794 250,722 7,984 4,151 36,083 1,297,380 88,647
Reclassification of assets*: 0 603 (1,149) 1,149 (603) 0 0 0 8
As at 01.04.2012 442,242 523,007 32,645 251,871 7,381 4,151 36,083 1,297,380 88,655
Additions 12,112 52,760 3,939 3,503 88 366 45,243 118,011 180
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 

42,871 43,628 0 0 51,439 0 0 137,938 2,860

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Income and Expenditure 

(34) (56,831) 0 0 (1,866) 525 0 (58,206) (6,660)

De-recognition - Disposals (2,412) (602) 0 0 0 (2,645) 0 (5,659)  0
De-recognition – Other** 0 (410) (1,331) (55) 0 0 0 (1,797)  0
Assets reclassified (to)/from  
Held for Sale 

(1,012) 127 0 0 0 0 (1,247) (2,132)  0

Other movements in cost or valuation *** (10,351) 2,055 145 10,240 (88) 3,462 (43,772) (38,308)  (114)

As at 31.03.2013 483,416 563,734 35,398 265,559 56,955 5,858 36,306 1,447,226 84,921

 
* Following the implementation of a new asset register several assets have been reclassified into different categories from 2011/12. 
**De-recognition-Other. Amounts net off to zero against the same line in the Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Table and relate to the removal of nil balance        

assets no longer owned by the Council 
 
*** Other movements in cost or valuation relate to the transfer of assets between classes (including AUC) and the De-recognition of non-enhancing expenditure. 
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2012/13 
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment £000’s 
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At 31.03.2012 (10,319) (30,517) (20,535) (48,869) (23) 0 0 (110,264) (10,113) 
Reclassification of assets*: 0 (24) 124 (124) 23 0 0 (1) (1) 
As at 01.04.2012 (10,319) (30,542) (20,411) (48,993) 0 0 0 (110,265) (10,114) 
Depreciation charge for 2012/13 (13,296) (13,660) (5,333) (6,950) 0 0 0 (39,239) (2,636) 

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Depreciation written out to the Income and 
Expenditure 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the 
Income and Expenditure 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

De-recognition - disposals 55 21 0 0 0 0 0 76 0 
De-recognition - Other 0 318 1,331 55 0 0 0 1,704 0 
Other movements in depreciation and impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

As at 31.03.2013 (23,560) (43,863) (24,413) (55,887) 0 0 0 (147,724) (12,750) 

 
 

Net Book Value          

at 31 March 2013 459,856 519,870 10,985 209,672 56,955 5,858 36,306 1,299,502 72,172 

at 31 March 2012 431,923 492,465 12,234 202,878 7,381 4,151 36,083 1,187,115 78,541 



 

40  
London Borough of Enfield  

 
Comparative Movements in 2011/12: 
 

2011/12 
Cost or Valuation £000’s 
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As at 01.04.2011 445,198 570,192 46,819 233,340 6,170 4,998 14,709 1,321,426 79,790 
Additions 24,212 22,370 6,574 19,253 1,601 0 31,004 105,015 5,552 
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 

4,557 28,218 0 0 1,851 175 0 34,800 11,974 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Income and Expenditure 

(11,235) (64,653) 0 (98) (2,191) 62 0 (78,115) (8,669) 

De-recognition - Disposals (1,703) (17,003) (1,238) 0 0 0 0 (19,944) 0 
De-recognition – Other** 0 (5) (19,012) (1,774) 0 0 0 (20,790) 0 
Assets reclassified (to)/from  
Held for Sale 

(931) (602) 0 0 0 (1,641) 0 (3,174) 0 

Other movements in cost or valuation *** (17,856) (16,114) 652 0 553 556 (9,630) (41,838) 0 

As at 31.03.2012 442,242 522,404 33,794 250,722 7,984 4,151 36,083 1,297,379 88,647 
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2011/12 
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment £000 
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As at 01.04.2011 (9,782) (21,868) (32,167) (44,912) 0 0 0 (108,728) (7,100) 
Depreciation charge for 2011/12 (10,319) (12,594) (8,517) (5,731) (23) 0 0 (37,186) (3,062) 

Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Depreciation written out to the Income and Expenditure 9,782 3,415 0 0 0 0 0 13,197 49 

Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the 
Income and Expenditure 

0 41 0 0 0 0 0 41 0 

De-recognition - disposals 0 484 1,138 0 0 0 0 1,622 0 
De-recognition - Other 0 4 19,012 1,774 0 0 0 20,790 0 
Other movements in depreciation and impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

As at 31.03.2012 (10,319) (30,517) (20,535) (48,869) (23) 0 0 (110,264) (10,113) 

Net Book Value  

At 31 March 2012 431,923 491,887 13,259 201,853 7,960 4,151 36,083 1,187,115 78,542 

At 31 March 2011 435,417 548,323 14,652 188,429 6,170 4,998 14,709 1,212,698 72,690 
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Capital Commitments 
 
At 31st March 2013, the Authority has entere d into a numbe r of contracts for the con struction or 
enhancement of Property, Plant and Eq uipment. In 2013/2014 these are budgeted to cost £34.8m. 
Similar commitments at 31st March 2012 were £59.5m. The major 2013/14 commitments are: 
 
 

SCHEMES 

Contracted 
£m 

Budgeted 
Committed  

£m 

Total 

   £m 
Housing Revenue Account: 

 Decent Homes Programme 7.0 5.0 12.0
 General Works 2.0 - 2.0

Schools  Programme 4.6 15.0 19.6
Depot Relocation 0.8 0.4 1.2
Total 14.4 20.4 34.8

 
 
Schools 
 
As at 31 March 2013 there were 82 Local Authority Maintained Schools.  The table below analyses 
these schools by type and category. 
 
 

Community Voluntary 
Aided

Foundation Total

Primary 46 18 0 64
Secondary 7 4 1 12
Special 6 0 0 6

Total 59 22 1 82  
 
In addition, as at 31 March 2013 there were 8 Academy Schools located within the Borough as 
follows:- 
 
Hadley Academy 
Enfield Academy 
Aylward Academy 
Cuckhoo Hall Academy 
Nightingale Academy 
Kingsmeade Academy 
Enfield Grammar School Academy 
Oasis Hadly Academy 
 
Academies are totally independent from the Authority and do not form part of the Council’s Accounts. 
 
NOTE 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 

The following items a re included in t he Investment Property lines in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement and Balance Sheet 

 

 
2012/13 
 £000s 

2011/12  
£000s 

Rental and Service Charge Income from Investment 
Property (8,108) (8,612)

Related Operating Expenses 2,399 2,376

Changes in Fair Value (10,206) 277
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2012/13 
 £000s 

2011/12  
£000s 

(Gain) / Loss on Disposal 657 (1,936)

Net (gain)/loss (15,258) (7,895)
 

 
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over 
the year: 

 
2012/13   
£000s 

2011/12   
£000s 

Balance at the start of the year 95,721 97,589

Additions:   

Subsequent Expenditure 31 1,375

Disposals (4,303) (2,229)
 

Nets gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments 10,206 2,954
 
Losses arising from the buy back of commercial interests 
– Highmead and Ladderswood regeneration projects 0 (1,129)

Impairment of Highmead commercial properties 0 (2,102)

Transfers:   

From  Assets Held for Sale 0 375
To Property, Plant and Equipment (198) (2,277)

From Assets Under Construction 237 1,164
Balance at the end of the year 101,694 95,721  

 
 
NOTE 13. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 

The CIPFA Code of P ractice requires the Statement of A ccounts to in clude a five y ear 
summary of transactio ns relating to Heritage Assets but stipulates this is no t required for 
accounting periods commencing before 1st April 2 010 where it is not practi cable to do so or 
not material to an understanding of th e Council’s financial position. In vie w of the recent  
recognition of Heritage A ssets in the Council’s accounts, the curre nt re-development and 
change in use of Forty Hall, and the recent valuation of the museum collections, civic regalia 
and silverware, as explained below, Heritage asset transactions taking place prior to 1st Ap ril 
2010 have not been disclosed.  

 
 Heritage 

Properties  

£’000 

Museum 
Collections 

£’000 

Civic 
Regalia 

£’000 

Total 
Assets 

£’000 

Balance B/Fwd – 1 April 2011 4,138 848 232 5,218 
Depreciation charge for 2011/12 (122) 0 0 (122) 

Balance C/Fwd – 31 March 2012 4,016 848 232 5,096 
 
 Heritage 

Properties 

£’000 

Museum 
Collections 

£’000 

Civic 
Regalia 

£’000 

Total 
Assets 

£’000 
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Balance B/Fwd – 1 April 2012 4,016 848 232 5,096 

Acquisitions 20 0 0 20 

Revaluations 2,333 0 0 2,333 

Depreciation charge for 2012/13 (211) 0 0 (211) 

Balance C/Fwd – 31 March 2013 6,159 848 232 7,238 
 
 
NOTE 14.   INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 
The intangible assets of the Autho rity include software, licences and a number of key systems.  
There is one princ iple intangible asset, MSS/ESS SAP Software Licences, which carries a net 
book value at 31 March 2013 of £576k.  
The carrying amounts of all intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis and this 
amounted to a £ 747k charge to revenue in 2012/13. The movement on Intangible Assets 
balances during the year is as follows: 

 

  
2013         

£000’s 
2012         

£000’s 
Balances at 1st April   
Gross carrying amounts 6,154 9,388
Accumulated amortisation (3,735) (6,398)
Net carrying amount at 1st April 2,419 2,991
Additions: 
Acquisitions 0 32
Other Transactions: 
Revaluations increases/(decreases) 0 130
Amortisation for the period (747) (734)
Net carrying amount at 31 March  1,672 2,419
Comprising: 

 Gross carrying amounts 6,154 6,154
 Accumulated amortisation (4,482) (3,735)
  1,672 2,419

 
No items of capitalised software are individually material to the financial statements. 
 
The Council revalues its software assets annually based on their remaining economic useful life. 
The accumulated revaluation reserve balance at 31st March 2013 pertaining to intangible assets 
is £205k 

 
NOTE 15.  NON CURRENT ASSETS VALUATION 
 

The freehold and le asehold properties which co mprise the Council’s property portfolio are 
subject to annual review. Properties are inspected over a five year rolling p rogramme. For the 
2012/13 financial statements, 20% of properties representing a cross section of the po rtfolio 
were inspected ensuring the annual inspection properly reflects the Council’s asset holding. 
 
Valuations have been commissioned from external valuers havi ng specialised knowledge in 
particular property types and categories e.g. heritage and listed buil ding properties. The 
valuation of green belt and retail portfolios were outsourced to the Council’s managing agents 
for these properties. 
 
All valuations have been prep ared and verified by Drivers Jo nas Deloitte – the Council’s 
Property Review Contractor and were carried out in accordance with the requ irements of t he 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors as incorporated in the Red Bo ok. Valuations were 
approved by Oliver Saun ders MRICS and David Taylor MRICS from Drivers Joans Deloitte.   
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Valuations are determined as at 1 st April 2012 and subsequently reviewed in the light of actual 
capital investment in the year.  

 
The whole of the Council’s investment portfolio has been re-valued to reflect market variations. 
 
Specialist buildings valued at DRC follo wing the MEA approach that have not been inspected 
have been re-valued by adjusting asset lives and updating building costs from the BCIS Index. 
 
An impairment review has been undertaken to consider circumstances where there have been 
indications of a reduction in the service potential of assets through physical deterioration.  
 
For Council Dwellings, the Council’s housing stock has been divided into five geographical areas 
for inspection purposes ov er the five year rolling valuation progr amme – the Council’s valuers 
therefore inspect one geographical area each year. The remaining postal areas and property 
types not inspected were valued by Drivers Jonas Deloitte. This is a desktop evaluation exercise 
only. 
 
In January 2011, the DCLG published a Valuation Guide for Council Housing Stock. The guide 
set out factors for adjusting the total vacant possession value of council housing stock to give a 
social housing valuation for the pu rposes of di sclosure in the finan cial statements. The guide 
advises the adoption of an adjustment factor to apply to the g ross stock value to arrive at the 
social housing stock value – t his adjustment reduces the carrying value of the stock down to 
25% of the market value. There has been no change in the adjustment factor from that use d in 
2011/12.  
 
The Council uses indexation where appropriate to reflect ch anges in asset values du ring the 
course of the year. For council dwellings, the Council uses market trend information provided by 
a local independent valuer. The use of local information is considered to give a more accurate 
reflection of property values in the borough. 
   
All assets th at were in spected in the year were considered for componentisation for the 
purposes of determining depreciation for the year.   
 
The Council’s housing stock has not been com ponentised as t he Council adopts the M ajor 
Repairs Allowance as the proxy for d epreciation charges. This approach is being reviewed for 
the preparation of the 20 13/14 financial statements as a re sult of the endin g of the hou sing 
subsidy system of which the MRA was an integral part.  
  
Intangible asset values and estimated useful liv es have been reviewed with senior officers in 
Finance, Resources and Customer Services. 
 
The Council’s vehicle fleet values and estimated useful lives have been reviewed by senior 
officers in Environmental Services. 

 
NOTE 16.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS    
 

Financial Instruments - Classifications  
 
The definition of a financial instrument is: ‘Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity’.   
 
The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial liabilities. These range 
from straightforward trade receivables and trade payables. The Council’s borrowing, service 
concession arrangements (PFI and finance leases), and investment transactions are classified 
as financial instruments.   
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Financial Liabilities 
  
A Financial Liability is an obligation to transfe r economic benefits controlled by the Council and 
can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation 
to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that are potentially unfavourable to 
the Council. 
   
The Council’s loan portfolio at year end consisted of PWLB, local autho rity loans and market 
debt. During the year te mporary borrowing from the money markets was also undertaken.  
These forms of borrowing are measured at amortised cost which does not change the amount of 
cash paid under the te rms of the loan but can  impact on the charge made to in the  
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
   
Financial Assets 
    
A Financial Asset is a ri ght to future  economic benefits controlled by the  Council that is 
represented by cash or other instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or another 
financial asset.  
 
The two classifications for financial assets under the Code of Practice are: 

 
 Loans and Receivables;  
 Available for Sale.   

 
The Council’s portfolio of investments consists of fixed term deposits, money market funds and 
call/notice accounts. Term deposits where the date from acquisition to maturity is greater than 
three months and call accounts are classed as ‘Loans and Receivables’ and are measured at 
amortised cost. This form of measurement does not change the amount of cash received under 
the terms of the investm ent.  Trad e Receivables (Debtors) are classified as L oans and 
Receivables. As these a re considered immaterial, they have be en measured at cost on the 
Balance Sheet. Money Market Funds are classified as Available for Sale.  
 
Balances on money ma rket funds, and call a ccounts and short term i nvestments (including 
accrued interest) at 31 st March 2013 having a maturity date of three mo nths or less from  the 
date of acquisition are shown under ‘Cash and Cash Equivalents’ in the Balance Sheet, as they 
represent highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
The Council does not have any investments required to be measured at Fair Value through 
Profit and Loss.  
 
Transaction costs  
 
Measurement at amortised cost permits transaction costs related to financial instruments to be 
attached to the loan or investment and charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement over the life of the instrume nt. However, they are cha rged in full to the  
Comprehensive Income a nd Expenditure Statement in the financial year in which they a re 
incurred where the costs are below £250k.   
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Financial Instruments - Balances  

 
The financial assets and liabilit ies disclosed in the Balance Sheet are analysed across t he 
following categories: 

 
         Long Term Current 
 31 March 

2013        
      £000s 

31 March 
2012 

  £000s 

31 March 
2013 

 £000s 

31 March 
2012 

  £000s 
Borrowing (262,846) (244,136) (31,358) (20,000) 
Accrued Interest 0 (3,224) (3,271) (155) 
Trade Creditors 0 0 (48,020) (61,244) 
PFI Contract Liabilities (54,532) (56,958) (2,425) (2,308) 
Finance Lease Liabilities (541) (715) (226) (232) 
Total Financial Liabilities (317,919) (305,033) (85,300) (83,939) 
Termed Deposits# 0 0 22,500 5,700 
Call Accounts 0 0 14,700 12,900 
Money Market Funds 0 0 3,000 25,000 
Impaired deposit 0 0 500 1,018 
Accrued Interest 0 0 52 48 
Long Term Loans 750 750 7 11 
Finance Lease Debtors 1,629 1,652 23 21 
Trade Debtors 3,075 2,080 75,923 49,335 
Total Financial Assets 5,454 4,482 116,705 94,033 

 
# The termed deposits are less than three months in duration so are classed as a cash or cash 
equivalent. 
 
The portion of long-term liabilities and investments due to be se ttled within 12 months of the 
Balance Sheet date a re presented in the Balan ce Sheet under ‘current liabilities’ or ‘current 
investments’. This would include accrued interest on l ong term liabilities that is 
payable/receivable in 2012/13. 

 
Financial Instruments - Gains and Losses  
 
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
relation to financial instruments consists of the following items: 
 

2012/13 Financial Liabilities Financial Assets  
Gains and Losses Liabilities measured 

at amortised cost 
£000s 

Loans and 
receivables 

£000s 

Available-for-sale 
assets 
£000s 

2012/13 
Total 
£000s 

Interest expense 17,313 0 0 17,313
Impairment losses 0 67 0 67
Interest payable and 
similar charges 

17,313 67 0 17,380

Interest income# 0 (6,329) 0 (6,329)
Interest and 
investment income 

0 (6,329) 0 (6,329)
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2011/12 Financial Liabilities Financial Assets  

Gains and Losses Liabilities measured 
at amortised cost 

£000s 

Loans and 
receivables 

£000s 

Available-for-sale 
assets 
£000s 

2012/13 
Total 
£000s 

Interest expense 17,621 0 0 17,621
Impairment losses 0 (135) 0 135
Interest payable and 
similar charges 

17,621 (135) 0 17,756

Interest income# 0 (5,356) 0 (5,356)
Interest and 
investment income 

0 (5,356) 0 (5,356)

# Includes recharges 
 

Financial Instruments - Fair Values  
 

The Council’s long term financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet 
at amortised cost. The portion of borrowings and investments due to be settled within 12 months 
of the Balance Sheet date are presented in the Bal ance Sheet under short term borrowings or 
short term investments. This also includes accrued interest fo r long term i nvestments and 
borrowings, as well as accrued interest for cash and cash equivalents. 
  
The Code of Practice requires the Fair Values of these assets and liabilities to be disclosed for 
comparison purposes.  Fair Value is defined as the amount for which asset could be exchanged, 
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  The 
Fair Value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally the transaction price.  The 
Council’s debt outstanding at 31 March  2012 and 3 1 March 2013 consisted of loans from the 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and market loans.  The PWLB has provided the Council with 
Fair Value amounts in relation to its debt portfolio.  The PWLB has assessed the Fair Values by 
calculating the amou nts the Council would have had to pay to extinguish the l oans on th ese 
dates. In the case of market loans, in the absence of information to the contrary, the Council has 
calculated the fair value based on equivalent swap rates at the Balance Sheet date. 
 
In the case o f the Council’s investments, these consisted almost entirely of term depo sits with 
Banks and Money ma rket Funds.  The maturity dates of the se investments were within 12 
months of th e Balance Sheet date.  The co ntracts of term depo sits do n ot permit pre mature 
redemption. None of the investments were impaired (i.e. at risk of default).  

 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair value  
Carrying 
amount 

Fair value 

31 March 
2013 

£000’s 

31 March 
2013 

£000’s 
 

31 March 
2012 

£000’s 

31 March 
2012 

£000’s 

  Financial Liabilities:   
(297,475) (368,568) Total Borrowing (267,514) (360,143)

(54,532) (54,532) Deferred Liabilities (PFI 
Contracts and Finance Leases) (60,213) (60,213)

(52,013) (52,013) Trade Payables (Creditors) (60,315) (60,315)

(404,020) (475,113) 
Total 

Financial Liabilities 
(388,042) (480,671)

  Financial Assets:  
500 500 Short Term Investments 1,018 1,018
750 750 Long Term Loans 761 761

1,652 1,652 Deferred Income (Finance 
Leases) 1,673 1,673

73,021 73,021 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 49,546 49,546
75,923 75,923 Total Financial Assets 52,998 52,998

 



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

London Borough of Enfield 49

 Financial Liabilities 
The fair value of long-term borrowing is higher than the carrying amount because the authority’s 
portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the 
rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date.  

 
Premiums and Discounts  
Premiums and discounts arising from loan extinguishments from 1 April 2006 are charged in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in full. Where t ransactions meet the 
definition of a modification, any premiums or discounts are added to the carrying value of the 
loan and are then amortised to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over the 
life of the new loan.  A modification exists where the terms of the new debt are not “substantially 
different” from those of the old debt. 
 
In the case of premiums and discounts relating to transactions occurring prior to 1 April 2 006, 
these are classified between those that are ov erhanging and those that are n ot overhanging. 
Overhanging premiums and discounts are tho se that cannot be associated with a continuing 
loan.  These  were written off in full as an adj ustment to the General Fu nd Balances Brought 
Forward at 1 April 2007.  
 
In the case of overhanging premiums or di scounts, or those relating to l oan extinguishments, 
statutory provisions exist to override the requirements of the Code of Practice.  The charges are 
reversed out in the Movement in Re serves Statement and p remiums and discounts are 
amortised to revenue over a p eriod of year s.  Where premiums and discounts are not 
overhanging or are lin ked to transa ctions meeting criteria of a loan modification the statutory 
provisions relating to the General Fund do not apply.  
 
Premiums amortised under statutory provisions can be charged to the General Fund over either 
the remaining life of the original loan or the life of the replacement loan, whichever is the greater 
period. Discounts must be credited to the General Fund over 10 years or the life of the original 
loan, whichever is the shorter period.   
 
In the case of the Housi ng Revenue Account premiums and discounts are applied ov er a 
maximum 10 year period in all circumstances in accordance with statutory requirements.   
 
The Council have taken the de cision to write-out all outstanding premiums and discounts in 
2012/13. This amounted to £2.268m. This will result in a savin g to the Revenue A ccount in 
future years.  

 
NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS     
 
The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Re vised Code of Practice on Treasury Management and 
complies with The Revised Prud ential Code of Capital Finance for Lo cal Authorities (both 
updated in November 2009). 
 
As part of the adoption of the T reasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury 
Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out 
the parameters for the management of risks associated with Financial Instruments. The Council 
also produces Treasury Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be  
followed to manage these risks.  
 
The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in compliance with 
the Government’s Investment Guidance for l ocal authorities.  This Guidance emphasises that 
priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather than yield.  The Council’s Treasury Strategy, 
together with its Trea sury Management Practices are based on seeking the highest rate of 
return consistent with the proper levels of security and liquidity. 
 
The main risks covered are: 
 
A Credit Risk: The possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to meet t heir 
contractual obligations, causing a loss for the other party. 
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A Liquidity Risk: The possibility that a party will be unable to raise funds to m eet the 
commitments associated with Financial Instruments. 
 
Market Risk: The possibility that the value of an instrument will fl uctuate because of changes in 
interest rates, market prices etc. 

 
Credit Risk 
 
Loans and Receivables 
 
The Council manages credit ri sk by ensuring that investments are pla ced with the Debt 
Management Office, other local authorities, AAA-rated money market funds or Banks and 
Building Societies having sufficiently high credit worthiness as set out in  the Trea sury 
Management Strategy.  
 
A limit of £ 7.5m is pla ced on the amount of money that can be invested with a single 
counterparty. The Council also sets a total group investment limit for institutions that are part of 
the same banking group. 
 
It must also be noted that although credit ratings remain a key source of information, the Council 
recognises that they have limitations and investment decisions are based on a range of market 
intelligence. All investments have been made in line with the Co uncil’s Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement for 2012-13, approved by Full Council.  
 
As conditions in the fina ncial sector had begun to show signs of improve ment, albeit with 
substantial intervention by government authorities, the Authority decided it would be appropriate 
to diversify the counte rparty list in 2012/13, th rough the inclusion of comparable non-UK Banks 
for investments. The sovereign states whose banks were included were Australia, Canada, 
Finland, France, Germany, Netherlands, Switzerland and the US.  Th ese countries, and the 
Banks within them, were selected after analysis and careful monitoring of: 
 
 Credit Ratings (minimum long-term A)  
 Credit Default Swaps 
 GDP;  Net Debt as a Percentage of GDP 
 Sovereign Support Mechanisms / potential support from a well-resourced     parent institution 
 Share Price 
 
Throughout 2012/13 the minimum criteria for new investments has been a long term rating of 
A/A2/A+ (Fitch/Moody’s/SandP) and a short term rating of F1/P-1/A-1 (Fitch/Moody’s/SandP).  
 
The table below summarises the nomi nal value of the Council’s investme nt portfolio at 31st 
March 2013, and confirms that all i nvestments were made in line with the Council’s approved 
credit rating criteria: 
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Counterparty Credit Rating   

Criteria Met When 
Investment Placed 

 

Credit Rating 
Criteria Met on  
31 March 2013 

Balance Invested 
as at 

31 March 2013 
£000s 

   
>  1 month 
and < 3 
months 

> 3 
months 
and < 6 
months 

> 6 
months 

and < 12 
months 

   £000s £000s £000s 

Local 
Authority 
 

Yes Yes 22,500 0 0 

Money 
Market 
Funds 
 

Yes Yes 3,000 0 0 

Call 
Accounts Yes Yes 14,700 0 0 

Total   40,200 0 0 

 
The above analysis shows that all deposits outstanding as at 31st March 2013 met the Council’s 
credit rating criteria on the 31st March 2013. 
 
The above analysi s excludes the esti mated carrying value after impairment of the Council’s 
Icelandic Bank investment of £1.0m. 
 
Trade Receivables 
The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure credit risk, based 
on the experi ence gathered over the la st five financial years o n the level of default on tra de 
debtors, adjusted for current market conditions. As per the Code of Practice requirements, the 
disclosure below includes details only of debtors that have arisen as a result of trading activities. 
Balances and transactions arising from statutory functions (i.e. council tax and NNDR payments) 
are excluded from this di sclosure note, as t hey have not ari sen from co ntractual trading 
activities. The increase in Sundry Debtors relates primarily to an increase of £18.5m in Grants 
and Contributons falling due to the Council.  As Grants and Contributions are predominantly 
receivable from Central Government and other Public Sector Bodies, credit risk is minimal.    

 
 Gross 

Debtors 
 31 March 

2013 
£000’s 

Bad Debt 
Provision    
31 March 

2013 
£000’s 

Gross 
Debtors 
31 March 

2012 
£000’s 

Bad Debt 
Provision       
31 March       

2012            
£000’s 

     
Sundry Debtors 60,915 (7,035) 35,407 (8,647) 
Housing Tenants 5,425 (2,039) 5,302 (2,272) 
PSL/BandB 6,681 (6,196) 6,757 (6,174) 
Total 73,021 (15,270) 47,466 (17,093) 

 
 
 
 
 

Liquidity Risk 
 
The Council has access to borr owing facilities via t he Public Works Loan B oard, commercial 
banks, bond issues, medium term notes, tax incre ment financing, the Euro pean Investment 
Bank, and other local authorities. 
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There is no  perceived risk that the  Council will be unable to raise fina nce to meet  its 
commitments.  The Council also ha s to manag e the risk t hat it will n ot be exposed to 
replenishing a significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The 
Council’s strategy is to en sure that no more than 15% of loans are due to mature within any 
rolling three-year period through a period of careful planning of new loans taken out and making 
early repayments. 
 
The Council would only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business case for 
doing so and will only d o so for th e current capital programme or to fin ance future debt 
maturities.  
 
The maturity analysis of the nomin al value of the Council’s debt at 31st March 20 13 was as 
follows: 
 

  
Years 

31 Mar 2013 
£000s 

% of Total 
Debt 

Portfolio 

Short Term Borrowing Less than 1 year 31,358 10.7%

Accrued Interest  47 
Total as per Balance Sheet  31,405 

Long Term Borrowing Over 1 but not over 2 2,358 0.8%

 Over 2 but not over 5 6,463 2.2%
 Over 5 but not over 10 40,889 13.9%
 Over 10 but not over 15 0 0.0%
 Over 15 but not over 20 0 0.0%
 Over 20 but not over 25 20,069 6.8%
 Over 25 but not over 30 10,000 3.4%
 Over 30 but not over 35 9,258 3.1%
 Over 35 but not over 40 94,020 32.0%
 Over 40 but not over 45 45,000 15.3%
 Over 45 34,789 11.8%

Total Long Term Borrowing  262,846 89.3%

Accrued Interest  3,224 

Total as per Balance Sheet  266,070 

Total Borrowing (excluding accrual 
of interest) 

 294,204 100.00% 

 

Loans and other long term liabilities outstanding 
(nominal value) 

31 Mar 2013 
£000s 

31 Mar 2012 
£000s 

Public Works Loans Board 234,136 214,136
Market Debt 31,068 30,000
Temporary Borrowing 29,000 20,000
Deferred Liabilities – PFI and finance leases 57,725 60,213 

Total 351,929 324,349 
 

Market Risk 
 
Interest Rate Risk: The Council is exposed to risks arising from movements in interest rates.  The 
Treasury Management Strategy aims to  mitigate these risks by set ting an upper limit of 25% on  
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external debt that can be subject to variable inte rest rates.  At 31 March 20 13, 100% of the debt 
portfolio was held in fixed rate instruments, and none in variable rate instruments.  
 
Investments are also subject to movements in interest rates.  As investments are made at fixed 
rates, but for shorter periods of time, there is greater exposure to interest rate movements.  This 
risk has to be balanced against actions taken to mitigate credit risk. 
 
Price Risk: The Council does not invest in equity shares and therefore is not subject to any price 
risk (i.e. the risk that the Council will suffer loss as a result of adverse movements in the price of 
financial instruments).  
 
Foreign Exchange Risk: The Council has no financi al asset or liabilities denominated in a foreign 
currency. It therefo re has no exposure to lo ss arising as a result of adverse movements in 
exchange rates. 
 
If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect 
would be: 

 
 £000s 
Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 0 
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 177 

 
The approximate impact of a 1% fall in intere st rates would be as above but with the movements 
being reversed. 

 
Impairment of Investments 
 
Early in October 2008, certain Icelandic Banks collapsed and the UK subsidiaries of the ban ks 
went into administration. The Authority had £5m deposited in one of these institutions for one year 
with effect from 11th January 2008, namely the Heritable Bank of Icelan d. At the time the  
investment was made, the bank’s credit rating was F1 (short term) and 1 (support). These 
favourable indicators were within th e parameters set within the C ouncil’s approved Treasury 
Management Strategy.  All monie s within these institutions are currently subject to the respective 
administration and receivership processes. The amounts and timing of p ayments to depositors 
such as the Council are determined by the administrators/receivers. 
 
Based on t he information available, th e Council considered it a ppropriate to make imp airment 
adjustments for the deposit in it s Statements of A ccounts for 2008/09, 2010/11 2011/12 and 
2012/13. The 2012/13 Statement took into a ccount the creditors’ report issued by the 
administrators in February 2011. Based on this report, the Council projected an 88p in the £ return 
to creditors.  
 
During 2012/13, the Auth ority actually received £0.487m from the administrators (9.74%). This 
brings total recovered as at 31 March 2013 to £4.021m (80.4%). The administrator has indicated 
the total re coverable amount will be between 86%-90%. In view of thi s the estimate of the 
recoverable amount is based on a total repayment of 88% based on the mid-point of the base 
return. 

 
 Current 

Assumptions on 
recovery 

2012/13 (Actual to Date) 77.2% 
July 2013 2.0% 
January 2014 8.8% 

 
Recoveries are expressed as a percentage of the Authority’s claim in the administration process, 
which includes interest accrued up to 6th October 2008.   It is likely that further adjustments will be 
made to the accounts in future years in the light of actual receipts.  
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Details of the Council’s Heritabl e Bank investment are set out  below. The investment is reported 
in the current assets figure in the Balance Sheet.  

 
 
 

Date 
Invested 

Maturity 
Date 

Amount 
Invested 

£000s 

Interest 
Rate 

% 

Carrying 
Amount     
£000s 

Impairment   
 

£000s 

Cash      
Received 

£000s 
11/01/08 09/01/09 5,000 5.5 499 480 4,021

 
The carrying amount of the investme nt in t he Balance Sheet has b een calculated using the 
present value of the expected repayments discounted using the investment’s original interest rate.  
 
Interest credited to the Comprehe nsive Income and Expenditure Statement in re spect of the 
investment is as follows: 

 
 

Credited 
2007/08 
£000s 

Received 
2007/08 
£000s 

Credited 
2008/09 
£000s 

Received 
2008/09 
£000s 

Credited 
2009/10 
£000s 

Received 
2009/10 
£000s 

61 0 275 0 188  188 
 

Credited 
2010/11 
£000s 

Received 
2010/11 
£000s 

Credited 
2011/12 
£000s 

Received 
2011/12 
£000s 

Credited 
2012/13 
£000s 

Received 
2012/13 
£000s 

115 115 74 74 36 36 
 
NOTE 17.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash also includes bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and that are integral to the Authority’s cash management. 
 
Balances classified as ‘Cash E quivalents’ fit the d efinition of b eing short-term, highly li quid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and  which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
The Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets and Liabilities held by the Council are as follows.  

 
Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets 

 
Type 31 March 2013    

£000s 
31 March 2012   

£000s 
Call Accounts (same day access accounts) 40,252 43,648
Cash and Bank Current Accounts 11,295               12,660

                                                                     Total 51,547 56,308
 

Cash and Cash Equivalent Liabilities 
 

Type 31 March 2013    
£000s 

31 March 2012  
£000s 

Client Deposits held (779) (760) 
Main Bank Clearing Accounts (20,322) (23,213) 

Total (21,101) (23,973) 
  
NOTE 18. INVENTORIES 

 
The council holds a diverse range of inventory items.  Purchases of these items are added to the 
carrying value of  current assets in the Balance Sheet with related expenditure being recognised 
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at the time the item is allocated for use.  The value of inventory items a re carried at the lesser of 
cost or net realisable value and is shown in the table below. 
 
 
 
 
 

Nature of stock held: 

Value as at 31 
March  
2013 

Value as at 31 
March 
 2012 

£000’s £000’s 
Beverages 5 4 
Catering 121 113 
Fuel 37 58 
Golf Equipment 16 15 
ICT 845 0 
Museum/Shop Merchandise 7 1 
Libraries Equipment 10 16 
Park and Cemetery Equipment 8 17 
Printing Materials 5 1 
Refuse Materials 7 3 
Security Equipment 42 40 
Training Materials 0 4 
Social Services Equipment 506 261 

Total 1,609 533
 
 
NOTE 19.  DEBTORS, PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE AND LONG TERM DEBTORS 
 

  

31 March 
2013  
£000s 

31 March 
2012  
£000s 

Amount due from Central Government re NNDR 390 122
Council Tax 25,163 26,387
Council tax/Community charge/NNDR costs 3,187 3,080
Trade Debtors account ledger/debtor accruals 30,300 25,333
Enfield Homes 2,015 1,939
Grants and Contributions 24,362 5,828
HMRC 8,082 10,609
Housing Benefit Overpayments 1,982 1,246
Housing Rents 18,344 19,652
Other Debtors 3,307 3,265
Impairment of Debt (26,262) (31,278)
Payments in Advance 5,414 5,392
Total Debtors 96,284 71,575

 
LONG TERM DEBTORS AND LONG TERM PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE 

 
 31 March 

2013 
 £000s 

31 March 
2012 

 £000s 
Loan to Enfield Enterprise 750 750
Secured Debt – Social Services 1,630 1,763
Secured Debt – Other Debt 1,328 230
Amounts receivable under Finance Leases 1,629 1,652
Sub Total 5,337 4,395
Long Term Payments in Advance 117 87
Total 5,454 4,482
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NOTE 20. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 

Assets held for sale refers to the carrying value of assets which are being actively marketed and are 
expected to be disposed of during the next financial year.  
 
In particular, they include va cant properties that will transfer to the Council’s development 
partner as part of the  re-development of t he Ladderswood and Highmead Estates. Further 
details are provided in the note below. 

 
 

 
2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Balance at 01 April  2,173 1,731 
Assets newly classified as held for sale:  
- Property, Plant and Equipment 0 3,174 
- Investment Properties 0 (375) 
- Council Dwellings 1,012 0 
Expenditure in year 0 0 
  
Transfers from Assets Under Construction 1,247 1,723 
  
Impairment Losses (1,438) (4,014) 
  
Assets sold (813) (66) 
  
Other movements (410) 0 
  
Balance at 31 March 1,771 2,173 

  
 
NOTE 21. REDEVELOPMENT OF LADDERSWOOD AND HIGHMEAD ESTATES 
 

In conjunction with development partners, the Council is in the process of implementing major 
new projects to redevelop and regenerate the Highmead and Ladderswood communities located 
in the south and south west a reas of the borough. The objectives of these projects are to re-
provide residential housing on the sites including both private and affordable housing, to provide 
new community facilities and to develop new commercial space.  
 
The Council has sought to secure the  full vacant possession of the sites by decanting existing 
council tenants and n egotiating with re sidential and commercial leaseholders and other third 
parties to release their interests in the sites.  A s at 31st March 2013, the decanted/empty 
premises are disclosed as Asset Held for Sale i n the Council’s Balance Sheet pending the 
commencement and implementation of the dev elopment agreements during 2013/14. Further 
decants and the buying out of leaseholder interests will continue into future years as the projects 
proceed. Assets will be formally de -recognised in the financial statem ents as they  are 
transferred to the d eveloper during the implementation phases of the p rojects. The carrying 
value of the assets associated with the new developments that are vacant and have no fu rther 
operational use to the Co uncil as at 31st March 2013 have been written down in the finan cial 
statements to reflect the estimated recoverable amounts receivable by the  Council for these 
assets under the respective development agreements. Further details are provided in Note 39. 
 

NOTE 22. CREDITORS, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
 

SHORT TERM LIABILITIES  
This refers to amounts due to be paid within one year of the balance sheet date. 
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31 March 
2013  
£000s 

31 March 
2012 
£000s 

Trade 43,943 51,858
HMRC 9,056 9,051
NNDR 44 44
Council Tax Refunds 2,998 2,818
Grants and Contributions  1,235 6,549
Enfield Homes 2,154 1,272
Finance Leases (incl. PFI Contracts) 2,652 2,540
Other 1,639 1,567
Receipts in Advance 9,190 9,518

Total Creditors and Receipts in Advance 72,911 85,217
 
 

LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
The balance of Long Term Creditors represents outstanding amounts payable (beyond 1 year of 
the balance sheet date) under PFI Contra cts and Finance Leases. The i n-year movement in 
Long Term Creditors is due to ca pital expenditure on those assets ex ceeding the pri ncipal 
repayments made. 

 
 31 March 

2013   
£000s 

31 March 
2012    
£000s 

31 March 
2011   
£000s 

Amounts due to be paid under PFI Contracts 54,532 56,958 54,168

Amounts due to be paid under other Finance Leases 540
 

715 642

Other Long Term Creditors  
231  

Total 55,303 57,673 54,810
 
NOTE 23. PROVISIONS 

 
Provisions are liabilities which have arisen as at the Balance Sheet Date wherein the Council 
has an obligation for future transfer of economic benefit.  Whilst there is some uncertainty on the 
amount and timing of the  eventual tra nsfer of economic benefit, the obligat ions have been 
recognised as expenditure in the accounts. 
 
Provisions are classified as either Short Term (those expected to be settled within 12 months of 
the balance sheet date) or as Long Term (those estimated to be settled after 12 months of the 
balance sheet date).  All Provision s which have been recognised as at 3 1 March 20 13 are 
shown in the following table. 
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Classification and Description

Balance 
b/fwd @ 31 
March 2012 

Additional 
Provisions & 

Reclassifications

Provisions 
Utilised in 

Year
Reclassifications & 

Write Backs

Balance c/fwd 
@ 31 March 

2013
Short Term £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Building Dilapidations 478 87 0 277 288
Payment of discretionary grants 60 89 60 0 89
Redundancy payments & associated costs 360 152 360 0 152
Claims from internal insurance fund 2,842 0 522 0 2,320
School Equipment Leases 25 0 0 25 0
Compensation due to Operating Partner 0 272 0 0 272
Performance Related Pay* 1,250 1,579 1,250 0 1,579
Accumulated Staff Absences 7,847 0 0 0 7,847
Carbon Reduction Commitment Levy 341 400 341 0 400
Regeneration Property Buy-Backs 328 88 186 0 230
Backdated Heating Costs 353 0 353 0 0
Capital Grant Payment obligations 0 2,036 0 0 2,036
MMI Clawback Levy 0 427 0 0 427
Corporate Landlord Repair Obligations 0 425 0 0 425
Other 45 25 45 0 25

Sub Total 13,928 5,580 3,117 302 16,089

Long Term

School Leasing Payments 92 0 0 92 0
Liability for Building Dilapidations 106 279 0 70 314
Claims from internal insurance fund 3,609 0 13 0 3,595

Sub Total 3,808 279 13 162 3,910
0

Total 17,736 5,859 3,130 464 19,999

 
The largest Provisions relate to:- 
 

i) Accumulated Staff Absences at £7.847m.  This amount represents the estimated value 
of untaken annual leave as at the 31 March 2013 

 
ii) The combined short and long term Insuran ce provisions total of £5.916m re presents the 

estimated cost of claims against the Council’s Internal Insurance Fund projected to be 
made for all insured events at the b alance sheet date.  This figure is i n line with 
conclusions made by the Insurance Actuary. 

 
*Note:  This figure does not reflect th e additional net cost to the Co uncil of the introdu ction and 
subsequent extension of performance related pay in that it does not take account of the reductions in 
other elements of pay that arose as a direct consequence of the changes to the contractual terms 
and conditions of staff that accompa nied the intro duction of perform ance related pay. Whe n full 
account is taken of these changes the net cost of PRP to the Council is estimated to be £548,542 

 
NOTE 24.   UNUSABLE RESERVES 
 

The table below summarises the Unusable Reserves as disclosed in the Balance Sheet: 
 

  

31 March 
2013   
£000s 

31 March 
2012    
£000s 

Revaluation Reserve (245,991) (114,025)
Capital Adjustment Account (691,872) (710,760)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account (841) (256)
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 0 2,268
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve (2,409) (2,434)
Accumulated Absences Account 7,847 7,847
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31 March 
2013   
£000s 

31 March 
2012    
£000s 

Pensions Reserve 440,701 401,928
 Total (492,563) (415,432)

 
Revaluation Reserve 
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the 
value of its Property, Plant and Equi pment. The balance is reduced when assets having 
accumulated gains are: 
 
 Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are reduced or lost; 
 Depreciated in the provision of services and the gains are consumed; 
 Disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 
The Reserve only com prises revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007 when the 
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains before that date are consolidated in the balance of 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 

 

  
2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Balance at 1 April (114,027) (85,244)
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted 
to the (Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services  

Downward / (Upward) revaluation of assets (158,257) (50,419)
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 17,977 15,618

Sub total (140,280) (34,801)
 
Total Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation  6,504 1,930

Accumulated gains on assets disposed of in the year 729 3,093
Other Adjusting Amounts Written Off to the Capital Adjustment 
Account 1,083 995

Sub total 8,316 6,018
  
Balance at 31 March (245,991) (114,027)

 
Capital Adjustment Account 
 
The Capital Adjustment Account reconciles the timing differences between the different 
accounting arrangements for the consumption of non-current assets and for the financing of 
the acquisition, construction and enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  
 
The Account is debited with the cost of depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations that 
have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with reconciling 
items from the Revaluation Reserve to write off the depreciation, impairment and amortisation 
of re-valued amounts. 
 
The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of 
acquisition, construction and enhancement. 
 
The Account contains the accumulated net gain s and losses on Investment Properties that 
have yet to be consumed by the Council. 
 
The Account also contains the net a ccumulated revaluation gains on P roperty, Plant and  
Equipment prior to 1st April 2007 – the date when the Revaluation Reserve was first created to 
hold such gains. 
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2012/13  
£000s 

2011/12 
 £000s 

Balance at 1 April (710,760) (821,616)
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement   
Charges for depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 25,956 26,817
Charges for depreciation of Heritage Assets 211 122
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 747 734
Revaluation and Impairment Losses on Property, Plant and  
Equipment                 95,853 107,498
Revaluation and Impairment Losses on Assets Held for Sale 1,401 1,041
Transfer of Major Repairs Allowance to Major Repairs Reserve 13,282 10,309
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute  9,938       37,421
Amounts of Non-Current Assets written off on disposal as part of 
the Gain/Loss on Disposal in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statements 10,916 20,598
Amounts of outstanding liabilities under finance leases written off 
on disposal of the related asset as part of the Gain/Loss on 
Disposal in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 0 (2)

 Sub Total 158,304 204,538
Adjusting Amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve2  
Valuation of assets disposed of in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement (729) (3,093)
Other adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve (7,496) (2,925)
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets 
consumed in the year 150,079 198,520
   
Capital financing applied in the year   
Capital receipts applied  (11,401) (8,618)
Revenue contributions to fund capital expenditure (3,410) (8,038)
Major Repairs Reserve applied (13,158) (10,675)
Capital grants and contributions applied (79,919) (48,018)
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 
charged against the General Fund and HRA balances (12,935) (14,034)
  (120,823) (89,383)
Movement in the market value of Investment Properties debited 
or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (10,368) (383)

 Movement in the carrying value of Investment Properties Held 
For Sale debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 0 2,102
Balance at 31 March (691,872) (710,760)

 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the difference between the Council’s share 
of council tax income in the year shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and the statutory arrangement for transferring amounts from the Collection Fund to 
the General Fund based on the council tax demand. The 2011/12 credit to the CIES is restated 
by £181k to reflect reinstated secured debt whi ch had previously been writte n off in earli er 
years. 

, 
 
 
 
                                            
2 £8,317k net of £92k derecognition of duplicate asset. 
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 2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
 £000s 

Balance at 1st April (437) (129)
Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income 
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements (404) (308)

Balance at 31 March (841) (437)
 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 
 
The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account reconciles the timing differe nce between the 
accounting arrangements for the income and expenditu re relating to certain financial 
instruments and the statu tory provisions for the recognition of g ains or losses in respe ct of 
those instruments in the HRA and General Fund. 
 
The Council uses the Account to man age premiums paid on th e early settle ment of loan s. 
Premiums are debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when 
incurred but reversed out of the  General Fund and HRA balances in the M ovement in 
Reserves Statement. The expense is posted back to the  General Fund and HRA i n the 
Movement in Reserves Statement over the unex pired term outstanding at the t ime the loans 
were redeemed.  The balance on th e Account at 31st March 2013 will be charged to th e 
General Fund and HRA over the next 16 years.  

 

  
2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Balance at 1 April 2,268 2,544

Premiums incurred in the year charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 0 0

Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be 
charged against the General Fund and HRA Balances in 
accordance with statutory requirements. 

(276) (276)

Premium written out in-year (1,992) 0
Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement are different from the finance 
costs chargeable in accordance with statutory requirements. 

(2,268) (276)

Balance at 31 March 0 2,268
 
 

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the p roceeds from the disposal of non-current 
assets for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Unde r statutory arra ngements, the 
Council does not treat these re sources as usable for financing new capital expenditu re until 
they are backed by cash receipts. Once cash settlement takes place, amounts are transferred 
to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
Deferred Capital Receipts include amounts repayable to the Council under mortgage and loan 
advances and from the disposal of assets under finance leases. 

 

  
2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Balance at 1 April (2,434) (3,337)
Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 
- Council Mortgages 
- Amounts Received Under Finance Leases 
De-recognition of Amounts Receivable Under Finance Leases 

 
4 

21 
0 

33
22

848
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Balance at 31 March (2,409) (2,434)
 
 

Accumulated Absences Account 
 
The Accumulated Absences Account holds the costs of accrued compensated absences not 
taken in the  year e.g. annual leave and flexitime entitlements carrie d forward at 31 March. 
Statutory arrangements require the impact on the General Fund to be neutralised by transfers 
to or from the Account. 

 

  
2012/13  
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Balance at 1 April 7,847 7,847

Cancellation of accrual made in the previous year (7,847) (7,847)

Amount accrued in the current year 7,847 7,847
Amount by which employee remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different 
from remuneration chargeable in the year according to statutory 
regulation 0 0
Balance at 31 March 7,847 7,847

 
 
Pensions Reserve 
 
The Pensions Reserve reconciles the timing diffe rences between the accounting arrangements for 
post employment benefits and the funding of benefits in accordance with statutory requirements. The 
Council accounts for post employment benefits in  the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as the be nefits are earned by employees based on accrued years of service, updating 
liabilities to reflect inflation, reviewing assumptions and investment returns on resources set aside to 
meet such costs. 
 
However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes 
employer’s contributions to pension funds or pays pensions for which it is directly responsible. The 
debit balance on the Pension Reserve means there is a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and 
current employees and the resources that have been set aside to meet them. Statutory arrangements 
ensure that the required funding will be set aside by the time the benefits actually become payable. 
 
Movement in Pension Fund Reserve 

   
2012/13 
 £000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Deficit Balance at 1 April 401,928 317,972
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pensions assets and liabilities 32,774 79,534
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 33,033 31,569
Employer’s pension contributions payable in the y ear and direct 
payments to pensioners payable in the year (27,034) (27,147)
Deficit Balance at 31 March 440,701 401,928

   
NOTE 25. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS 
. 
The analysis of income and expenditure by serv ice on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is spe cified by the Servic e Area Code of Practice (SERCOP).  Ho wever, 
decisions about resource allocation are taken by Cabinet on the basi s of budget reports analysed 
across departments.   
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These reports are p repared on a different ba sis from the accounting policies used in the financial 
statements.  In particular:- 
 

 No charges are made  in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation 
and impairment losses are charged to services in the Co mprehensive Income a nd 
Expenditure Statement) 

 
 The cost of retirem ent benefits is ba sed on cash flows (paym ent of employer’s p ension 

contributions) rather than the current service cost of benefits accrued in the year. 
 

The income and expenditure of the Authority’s Departments recorded in the budget reports for the year 
is as follows 

 
Amounts reported for Resource Allocation Decisions 2012-13: 

DEPARTMENTS 
Department 
Income and 
Expenditure 

2012-13 

Health 
Housing 

and Adult 
Social 
Care 

Finance and 
Corporate 
Resources 

Regeneration 
Leisure and 

Culture 

Schools and
Children's 
Services 

Environmental 
Services 

Chief 
Executive 

Total

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Fees, charges 
and other 
service income (70,072) (29,872) (5,319) (22,419) (37,528) (3,773) (168,983)
Government 
Grants (233) (329,227) (19) (302,069) (1,910) (19) (633,477)
Total Income (70,306) (359,099) (5,338) (324,488) (39,438) (3,792) (802,460)
                
Employee 
Expenses 35,761 28,924 7,785 251,691 31,789 5,079 361,029
Other Service 
Expenses 137,324 375,000 7,366 133,275 40,843 3,238 697,046
              
Total 
Expenditure 173,085 403,924 15,151 384,966 72,632 8,317 1,058,075

                
Net 
Expenditure 102,779 44,826 9,813 60,478 33,194 4,526 255,615
 
 

The comparative amounts reported for 2011-12 were as follows:- 
DEPARTMENT

Department 
Income and 
Expenditure  
2011-12 

Health 
Housing 

and Adult 
Social Care 

Finance, 
Resources 

and 
Customer 
Services 

Regeneration 
Leisure and 

Culture 

Schools and
Children’s 
Services 

Environment Chief 
Executive 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Fees, charges 
and other 
service income (64,549) (25,198) (3,811) (262,990) (31,033) (3,144) (390,725)
Government 
Grants (254) (3,877) 0 (298,426) (1,910) 0 (304,466)
Total Income (64,803) (29,075) (3,811) (561,415) (32,943) (3,144) (695,192)
          
Employee 
Expenses 33,331 30,126 8,346 248,025 30,510 5,039 355,377
Other Service 
Expenses 127,644 42,101 5,442 371,879 35,018 2,812 584,896
Total 160,975 72,227 13,788 619,904 65,528 7,851 940,274
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DEPARTMENT 
Department 
Income and 
Expenditure  
2011-12 

Health 
Housing 

and Adult 
Social Care 

Finance, 
Resources 

and 
Customer 
Services 

Regeneration 
Leisure and 

Culture 

Schools and
Children’s 
Services 

Environment Chief 
Executive 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Expenditure 
   
Net 
Expenditure 96,172 43,152 9,977 58,489 32,585 4,708 245,082
 

Reconciliation to the Subjective Analysis 
  
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the Department Analysis relate to the subjective analysis 
of the deficit  on Provisi on of Service s included in the Com prehensive Income an d Expenditure 
Statement. 
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Reconciliation 
to the 
Subjective 
Analysis 
2012/13 

Department 
Analysis 

Services 
not 

included 
in 

Analysis 

Amounts not 
reported to 

management 
for decision 

making 

Amounts 
not 

included in 
I&E NCOS 

Net Cost of 
Services 

(from CIES) 

Corporate 
Amounts 

Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Fees, charges 
and other 
service income (168,983) (54,366) 0 0 (223,349) 0 (223,349)
Interest and 
investment 
income 0 0 0 0 0 (61,985) (61,985)
Income from 
council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (121,903) (121,903)
Government 
grants and 
contributions (633,477) 0 0 0 (633,477) (224,299) (857,776)

Total Income (802,460) (54,366) 0 0 (856,826) (408,187) (1,265,013)

        
Employee 
expenses 361,029 0 5,982 0 367,011 0 367,011
Other service 
expenses 697,046 61,972 90 (15,197) 743,910 0 743,910
Support Service 
recharges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Depreciation, 
amortisation and 
impairment 0 0 108,278 0 108,278 0 108,278
Interest 
Payments 0 0 0 0 0 64,784 64,784
Precepts and 
Levies 0 0 0 0 0 6,857 6,857
Payments to 
Housing Capital 
Receipts Pool 0 0 0 0 0 971 971
Gain or Loss on 
Disposal of 
Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0 (3,827) (3,827)
Total operating 
expenses 1,058,075 61,972 114,350 (15,197) 1,219,199 68,785 1,287,984

               
Deficit on the 
provision of 
services 255,615 7,606 114,350 (15,197) 362,374 (339,402) 22,972
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Comparative amounts for 2011-12  
Reconciliation to 
the Subjective 
Analysis 
2011/12 

Department 
Analysis 

Services 
not 

included 
in 

Analysis 

Amounts not 
reported to 

management 
for decision 

making 

Amounts 
not 

included 
in NCOS 

from 
CIES 

Net Cost 
of 

Services 
(from 
CIES) 

Corporate 
Amounts 

Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Fees, charges and 
other service 
income (390,725) 0 (57,262) 0 (447,987) (8,116) (456,103)
Interest and 
investment income 0 0 0 0 0 (45,163) (45,163)
Income from council 
tax 0 0 0 0 0 (121,400) (121,400)
Government grants 
and contributions (304,466) 0 0 0 (304,466) (194,231) (498,697)

Total Income (695,192) 0 (57,262) 0 (752,454) (368,910) (1,121,364)

          
Employee 
expenses 355,377 0 (3,729) 0 351,648 0 351,648
Other service 
expenses 584,896 0 71,209 (9,863) 646,242 0 646,242
Support Service 
recharges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Depreciation, 
amortisation and 
impairment 0 0 147,950 0 147,950 (135) 147,815
Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 0 65,579 65,579
Precepts and 
Levies 0 0 0 0 0 7,663 7,663
Payments to 
Housing Capital 
Receipts Pool 0 0 0 0 0 21 21
Gain or Loss on 
Disposal of Fixed 
Assets 0 0 0 0 0 10,985 10,985
Total operating 
expenses 940,274 0 215,430 (9,863) 1,145,841 84,113 1,229,954

          
Deficit on the 
provision of 
services 245,082 0 158,168 (9,863) 393,387 (284,797) 108,590

 
Reconciliation of Department Income and Expenditure to Net Cost of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 2012/13 

£000s 

2011/12 

£000s 
Net Expenditure Reported in Department Analysis  255,615 245,082
Add: Items included in the Net Cost of Services but not reported to 
management in the Department Analysis 121,956 158,168
Deduct: Items not included in the Net Cost of Services but reported to 
management in the Department Analysis (15,197)     (9,863)
Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 362,374  393,387
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NOTE 26. INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
 
This note provides further analysis of the Investing Activities in the Cash Flow Statement. 
 

Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 
2012/13       
£000s 

2011/12      
£000s 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 
intangible assets 123,281 101,396

Proceeds from Short and Long Term Investments (518) (23,217)

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets (14,456) (12,469)

Capital grants and contributions received (58,882) (40,642)
Total Investing Activities 49,425 25,068

 
NOTE 27. FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 
This note provides further analysis of the Financing Activities in the Cash Flow Statement. 

Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 
2012/13      
£000s 

2011/12     
£000s 

Repayment of Short Term Borrowing 23,000 2,800
Cash receipts from Short Term Borrowing (34,358) (20,000)
Cash Receipts from Long Term Borrowing (18,710) (28,789)
Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities relating to 
finance leases and on balance sheet PFI contracts 2,487 3,525
Other payments / (receipts) from financing activities (146) (5,736)
Total Financing Activities (27,727) (48,200)

 
 
NOTE 28.  CENTRAL SERVICES 
 
The figure £ 24,271kdisclosed for Central Services in the Co mprehensive Income an d Expenditure 
Statement comprises the following distinct elements:- 
 
 2012/13       

£000 
2011/12    

£000 
Central Services to the Public 7,377 6,673
Corporate and Democratic Core Costs 10,165 7,475
Non Distributed Costs 6,729 6,778
Total:  24,271 20,926
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NOTE 29.  POOLED BUDGETS 
 
Under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006, the Council has established joint a rrangements with NHS 
Enfield for the a dministration of an Integrated Communities Equipment Service, a  Learning 
Disabilities Pool and a Drug Alcohol Action Team. 
This is contributing to an improvem ent in services for patients a nd service users and ensuring the 
most effective use of resources by working in partnership. 
 
i) Integrated Communities Equipment Service.   This provides equipment services for people with 

permanent and substantial difficulties, helping t hem to live in their o wn home. The p ool carry 
forward for 2012/13 was agreed at the ICES Steering group for use on ICES priority areas. 
 
Note: During 2012/13, the level of inventory stock held at year-end has increased to ensure supply 
of essential aids is sufficient to meet an ticipated demand, this has meant that the assets in stock 
on the 31st March 2013 have been transferred to the inventory balance sheet code, resulting in an 
underspend which has been carried forward against the section 75 Agreement.  

 
ii) The Learning Disabilities Pool enables the Council and the NHS to  maintain integrated 

provision for the delivery of servi ces to people with learning disability for whom the Council and 
the NHS hav e a respon sibility  to pro vide health and social care. The £ 212k underspend in 
2012/13 relates to services that have been reported in the LBE Ou tturn financial position. These 
are services with no NHS contribution. 

 
iii) The Drug Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) is responsible for the  implementation of the National 

Drug Strategy 2010. The DAAT board members comprise of DoH, Ministry of Justice, National 
Treatment Agency and other key organisations with the role of managing and decision making for 
all matters re lating to drug or alcohol misuse. The pool carry forwards are agreed at the DAAT 
board for use on DAAT priority areas. 

 
iv) There is a Joint Director of Public Health across the Council and NHS Enfield: 
 
v) The Council obtained the responsibility for commissioning 10 services from the Voluntary and 

Community Sector (VCS) organisations on behalf of NHS Enfield 
 
vi) Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards services for both NHS Enfield and 

the  local authority. This is in line with the Mental Capacity Act (2005) whereby the NHS and the 
Council have a duty to deal with all requests for urgent and/or standard authorisations to deprive a 
person of their liberty. 

 
vii) A Joint Commissioning Team across health and social care which seeks to work in partnership 

to manage an 'increase in demand against diminishing resources. 
 
 

A funding and expenditure statement for these pooled budgets in 2012/13 is set out below: 
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Pooled Budgets                
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 £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's 

Funding provided to the 
pooled budget:                 
LBE 1,109 3,765 536 70 0 77 539 6,096
NHSE 395 1,438 3,079 70 410 69 225 5,686
Preventative Tech Grant 7  0  0  0  0  0  0 7
Pool reserve brought forward 489 26 237  0  0  0  0 751
Client contributions  0 1,124  0  0 0  0  0 1,124
Total Funding available 2,000 6,353 3,852 140 410 146 764 13,664
Expenditure met from the 
pooled budget:            
LBE 1,563 3,940 3,852 73 410 89 483 10,410
NHSE  0 2,175  0 70 0  0 203 2,448
Total Expenditure 1,563 6,115 3,852 143 410 89 686 12,858
Net Surplus / Deficit 437 238 0 (3) 0 57 78 807

 
 

Pooled Budgets                
2011/12 
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  £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's 
Funding provided to the 
pooled budget:           
LBE 1,219 3,877 1,120  0 6,216
NHSE 415 1,438 2,864  0 4,717
Preventative Tech Grant 7  0 394  0 401
Pool reserve brought forward 187  0  0  0 187
Client contributions  0 1,739  0  0 1,739
Total Funding available 1,828 7,054 4,378 0 13,260
Expenditure met from the 
pooled budget           
LBE 1,340 4,954 1,277  0 7,571
NHSE  0 2,074 2,864  0 4,938
Total Expenditure 1,340 7,028 4,141 0 12,509

Net Surplus / Deficit 488 26 237 0 751
 
 
 



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

London Borough of Enfield 70

 
NOTE 30. MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 
 
Regulations require the annual publication of members’ allowances.  Detailed information is available at 
the Civic Centre and at all public libraries.  A summary of the information concerned is shown in the table 
below. Further details can be found at this link to the Council Website 
  

 2012/13 
 £000s 

2011/12  
£000s 

Basic allowances 667 665
Special responsibility allowances 297 290
 964 955

 
 
NOTE 31. OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION 
  
i) Senior Employee’s Earnings. Taxable remuneration, expense allowances and emplo yers pension 
contributions in respect of Senior Employees is detailed below: 
 

Senior Employee 
Designation 

  Taxable Pay Performance 
Related Pay 

(Note 1) 

Expenses 
Allowances

Pension 
Contribution 

Total 

    £ £ £ £ £ 
Rob Leak 
(Chief Executive) 

2012/13  188,954.88                    -   747.82              -   189,702.70

2011/12  188,954.88                    -   469.00 37,337.04 226,760.92

Director of Health, 
Housing and Adult 
Social Care 

2012/13  136,310.88           4,788.00                 -   29,042.82 170,141.70

2011/12  130,832.88           6,160.50                 -   27,100.65 164,094.03

Director of 
Finance, 
Resources and 
Customer Services 

2012/13  136,626.38           5,459.50            25.19 29,245.14 171,356.21

2011/12  132,725.88           4,795.50  27,204.57 164,725.95

Director of 
Schools and 
Children’s 
Services 

2012/13  135,284.13           4,788.00                 -   28,832.28 168,904.41

2011/12  125,357.88           5,818.50                 -   25,954.62 157,131.00

Director of 
Environment 

2012/13  140,975.38              684.00                 -   29,284.80 170,944.18

2011/12  121,316.88           4,790.25                 -   25,482.60 151,589.73

Director of 
Regeneration, 
Leisure and 
Culture 

2012/13  123,989.88           4,791.75                 -   26,517.75 155,299.38

2011/12  118,511.88           4,795.50                 -   24,404.49 147,711.87

  
Note 1: Directors Performance Related Pay is consolidated into their basic salaries until they reach Scale 
Point 16. From this point onwards, any PRP is unconsolidated. The consolidated element has been split 
out from Director's taxable pay in the table above. 
 
ii) Other Employee Earnings.  Th e Authority's other employees receiving more than £50,000 
remuneration for the year (excluding employer's pension contributions) were paid the following amounts: 
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 2012/13 2011/12 

 Non Schools Schools  Non Schools Schools 

Taxable 
Remuneration Band 

Current Left during 
the year 

Current Left during 
the year 

 Current Left during 
the year 

Current Left during 
the year 

  £50,000 - £54,999 74 5 116 4  80 4 112 5 

  £55,000 - £59,999 39 1 59 2  27 2 55 1 

  £60,000 - £64,999 23 2 38 2  30 3 47 - 

  £65,000 - £69,999 18 2 28 1  17 - 29 - 

  £70,000 - £74,999 5 1 20 -  3 1 19 - 

  £75,000 - £79,999 1 - 15 -  2 - 12 1 

  £80,000 - £84,999 7 1 5 -  4 - 7 - 

  £85,000 - £89,999 3 - 7 -  6 1 3 - 

  £90,000 - £94,999 4 - 1 -  4 - 4 - 

  £95,000 - £99,999 3 - 3 -  4 - 2 - 

  £100,000 - £104,999 1 - 4 -  1 - 3 - 

  £105,000 - £109,999 - - - -  - - 1 1 

  £110,000 - £114,999 - - - -  - - 1 - 

  £115,000 - £119,999 - - 2 -  - - 1 - 

  £120,000 - £124,999 - - 1 -  - - - - 

  £125,000 - £129,999 - - - -  - - 1 - 

  £130,000 - £134,999 - - - -  - - - - 

  £135,000 - £139,999 - - 1 -  - - - - 

  £140,000 - £144,999 - - - -  - - - - 

  £145,000 - £149,999 - - - -  - - - - 

  £150,000 - £154,999 - - - -  - - - - 

  £155,000 - £159,999 - - - -  - - - - 

  £160,000 - £164,999 - - - -  - - - - 

  £165,000 - £169,999 - - - -  - - - 1 

Totals 178 12 300 9  178 11 297 9 
            

TOTAL FOR YEAR 
                                        

499   495 
                    

Note: The bandings only include the remuneration of senior employees which 
have not been disclosed individually. 
 
NOTE 32. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 
 
In 2012/13 the authority h as incurred the following costs in re lation to the audit of the Sta tement of 
Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections. 
 

 2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Fees payable to the External Auditors with regard to external audit services carried out by 
the appointed auditor for the year 

206 347

Fees payable to the Audit Commission in respect of statutory inspection 0 0
Fees payable to the External Auditors for the certification of grant claims and returns for 
the year 

31 79

Fees payable in respect of other services provided by the appointed auditor during the 
year 16 0
 253 426
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NOTE 33.  DEDICATED SCHOOLS’ GRANT  
 
The council’s expenditure on schools is funded primarily by grant monies provided by the Department 
for Education, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DS G).  A n element of DSG is recoup ed by th e 
Department to fund aca demy schools in the coun cils’ area. DSG is ring fe nced and ca n only b e 
applied to m eet expenditure properly included in t he Schools Budget, as defined in the School 
Finance (England) Regulations 2011.  The Scho ols Budget includes elements for a range of 
educational services provided on an authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget (ISB), 
which is divided into a budget share for each maintained school.   
 
Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2012/13 are as follows: 
 

  

Central 
Expenditure 

Individual 
Schools 
Budget 

Total 

£000’s £000’s £000’s 

Final DSG for 2012/13    277,837

Academy Figure recouped for 2012/13    (32,917)

Total DSG after Academy recoupment 2012/13 22,801 222,119 244,920

Plus brought forward from 2011/12  4,096 4,096
Agreed initial budgeted distribution in 2012/13 22,801 226,215 249,016

In 2012/13 year adjustments (1,694) 1,694 0

Final budget distribution for 2012/13 21,107 227,909 249,016

Less actual expenditure / allocated to schools (19,796) (224,313) (244,109)
Carry forward to 2013/14, including amount of 
ISB allocated to schools agreed in advance  

1,311 3,596 4,907

 
Dedicated Schools Grant (made under section 14 of the Education Act 2002) has 
been deployed in accordance with regulations made under sections 45A, 45AA, 47, 
48(1) and (2) and 138(7) of, and paragraph 1(7)(b) of Schedule 14 to, the School 
Standards and Framework Act 1998. 
 
Cumulative balances held by schools as at 31 March 2013 were £15.596m.  
 
NOTE 34.  GRANT INCOME 
 
Grants, contributions and donations credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
are as follows:-. 
 
 31 March  31 March 
 2013  2012 
 £000s  £000s 
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income   

Early Intervention Grant 15,847  14,556
Council Tax Freeze Grant 3,038  3,032
LSS Grant 892  802
New Homes Bonus 1,248  638
LACSEG 1,808  
Other 5  5
Revenue Support Grant 2,383  30,941
General Government Grants 25,221  49,974
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 31 March  31 March 
 2013  2012 

Capital Grants and Contributions 69,337  37,359
Total Grants and Contributions 94,558  87,333

 
The Authority has receive d a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be 
recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property 
to be returned to the giver. The balances at the year-end are as follows: 

 
 31 March 31 March 
 2013 2012 
 £000s £000s

  
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 3,522 1,450

  
 
NOTE 35.  RELATED PARTIES  
 
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals 
that have the  potential to control or influence the council or to b e controlled or influenced by the  
council. Disclosure of these transactio ns allows re aders to asse ss the extent to which the council 
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability 
to limit another p arty’s ability to barg ain freely with the Autho rity. The Authority’s State ment of 
Accounts are freely available to all Related Parties via the Council’s Offices and its Website.  
 
Central Government 
Central Government has effective co ntrol over th e general operations of the Authority – it is  
responsible for providing the stat utory framework, within which the Authority operates, provides the 
majority of its funding in th e form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that 
the Authority has with other parti es (e.g. council tax  bills, housing benefits). Grants received from 
Central Government which were credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income  are set out in 
Notes 33 and 34. 
 
Other Public Bodies  
The Authority operates a pooled budget arrangement with  NHS Enfield for the admini stration of a 
Learning Difficulties Fund, an Integrate d Communities Equipment Service, a Dru g Alcohol Action 
Team and other joint arrangements   – details of which are set out in Note 29. 
 
Members and Officers 
Council Members and senior staff are required to make declarations of interest concerning third party 
transactions, both in the form of an annual statement and by disclosing interests at Cabinet and other 
Council Meetings. 
 
For financial year 2012/13 several me mbers and senior officers declared they had interests with 
Local Voluntary Bodies, Charities, schools and other organisations. Transactions between the 
Council and the vast majority of these organisations were not materially significant and in all cases 
the member or officer was not in a position to control or direct them. Details of these interests are 
recorded in t he Register of Members Interests which is open to public inspection.   A handful of 
members declared interests with the following organisations with whom economic activity in the year 
was above £250k. 
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Organisation Members / Officers Declaring an 
Interest 

Payments 
made by LBE 
to Organisation 
in 2012-13 
 

Payments 
made by LBE to 
Organisation in 
2011-12 

North London 
Waste 
Authority(NWLA) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cyprian Care Ltd 
 
 
 
 
 
Enfield 
Enterprise 
Agency 

Ian Davis – Director of 
Environmental Services, is 
employed by NLWA as an 
Environment Adviser.  His earnings 
with LBE  are shown in  
Note 31 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Ahmet Oykener is a Director of 
Cypriot Care Ltd, who provide 
Home Care Services in Enfield as 
well as other London Boroughs 
 
 
Cllr Derek Levy is a Board Member 
and Director of Enfield Enterprise 
Agency – an independent, non 
profit making Business Advisory 
and Development Agency 
 

Statutory levy 
and charge of 
£5.8m 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Payment for 
Services of 
£341k 
 
 
 
No activity above 
£250K 

Statutory levy and 
charge of £6.3m 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Payment for 
Services of £450k 
 
 
 
 
Grant of £359K 
 

 
Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority 
 
Enfield Homes Ltd is a  wholly owned subsidiary of the Authority.  During financial year 2012-13, the 
Authority paid Enfield Homes Ltd £16.3m for the provision of Housing Management Services and repair 
and maintenance of the Council’s Housing Stock (£16.5m in 2011/12).  The Authority leases premises to 
the Company and also provides various support services to them e.g. Payroll, ICT etc.  Total charges 
from the Authority to the Company in 2012/13 came to £3.3m (£3.5m in 2011/12).   Enfield Homes Ltd is 
managed by a Board of 19 Members, 6 of whom a re elected Councillors of the Authority, namely 
Councillors Marcus East, Christiana During, Lee Ch amberlain, Denise Headley, Tahsin Ibrahim, and 
Chaudhury Anwar.   
 
The Authority owns 40% of the shares in Enfield Norse Ltd – being the Trading Arm of Norfolk County 
Council.  The Company provides building cleaning services.  During financial year 2012/13 the Authority 
received dividend income from Enfield Norse of £0 .210m (£0.221m for 2011-12). Councillor Achilleas 
Georgiou and James Rolfe  (Director of Finance, Resources and Customer Services) are Directors of 
Enfield Norse Ltd. 

 
In 2011, the Council set up New River Services Ltd, a company wholly owned by the Authority with the 
Board made up of Councillors and Senior Officers.   The purpose of the Company is to provide a legal 
platform which will enable the Authority to trade its services with other public bodies on a commercial 
basis. As at 31 March 20 13, the Company h ad not commenced trading. The Management Board 
includes Councillors Doug Taylor, Andrew Stafford, Dino Lemonides and officers James Rolfe (Director 
of Finance, Resources and Customer Services) and John Austin (Assistant Director, Corporate 
Governance) 
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NOTE 36.  CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING 
 
The following analyses in year capital expenditure and how it has been financed  

  
2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Opening Capital Financing Requirement  408,276 355,836 
Capital Investment  
Property, Plant and Equipment 117,898 105,015 
Investment Properties 31 1,375 
Intangible Assets 0 32 
Heritage Assets 20  
Assets Held for Sale 113 0 
Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute* 9,012 37,336 
  127,074 143,758 
Sources of Finance  
Capital Receipts (11,401) (8,618) 
Government Grants and Contributions (93,077) (48,018) 
Direct Revenue Contributions (3,410) (18,713) 
Minimum Revenue Provision (12,935) (14,034) 
Decrease in PFI Contract Liabilities 2,308 (1,920) 
Decrease in Finance Lease Liabilities 178 (15) 
  (118,337) (91,318) 
  
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 417,014 408,276 
Increase in underlying need to borrow (supported by 
Government financial assistance) 0 14,000 
Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by 
Government financial assistance) 8,738 38,440 
Increase in Capital Financing Requirement 8,738 52,440 

 
 
*Analysis of Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute  
 2012/13  

£000 
2011/12 
 £000 

Payment to DCLG – Buy Out of Housing Subsidy 0 28,789 
Capital Contributions to VA Schools 6,261 5,010 
Disabled Facilities Grants 1,365 1,946 
Grants To Vacate 463 390 
Grants to Housing Associations 771 756 
House Repair Grants 103 225 
Youth Capital Fund 0 88 
Other 49 132 
Total Expenditure  9,012 37,336 

 
NOTE 37. LEASES 
 
The Council as Lessee 
Finance Leases 
 
The Council has acquired a number of properties, vehicles and items of equipment under finance 
leases. These assets are carried as Property, Plant  and Equipment and as Investment Properties in 
the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts. 
 

 31 March 2013   31 March 2012  

£000   £000  
 

Vehicle, plant, furniture and equipment            328            459 
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 31 March 2013   31 March 2012  

£000   £000  
Investment properties            308            289 
Investment properties held for sale         1,509         1,230 
 Total          2,145         1,978 

 
 
Investment properties refer to the development of industrial premises which the Council leases out to 
commercial tenants. The valuations shown above include the land for which the Council owns the 
freehold. Investment Properties Held For sale re fers to th e commercial premises within the New 
Southgate Industrial Estate which will  be transferred to the  Council’s development partners and 
subsequently re-provided through the regen eration of the Ladde rswood Estate. The existing third 
party lease interest in these assets will also transfer to the new commercial units. 
 
The Council is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of 
the long-term liability for t he interest in the pr operty and fin ance costs that will be paya ble by the  
Council in fu ture years while the liability rema ins outstanding. The minimum lease payments are 
made up of the following amounts: 
 

31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2012 

£000 £000 
Finance lease liabilities (net present value of minimum lease payments):  
• Current            227             232 
• Non current            541             715 
Finance costs payable in future years         2,149          2,248 
 Minimum lease payments          2,917          3,195 
 
The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods: 
 
   Minimum lease payments  Finance lease liabilities  

  31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2012 

31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2012 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 
Not later than one year            303             332             227             232  
Later than one year and not later 
than five years 

           401            611             225             399  

Later than five years         2,213          2,252             316             316  
 Total          2,917          3,195            768             947  

 
The minimum lease payments do not include rents that are cont ingent on events taking place after 
the lease was ente red into, such a s adjustments following rent reviews. In 2012/2 013 £175k 
contingent rents were payable by the Council (2011/2012 - £175k). 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Authority has a cquired a n umber of admi nistrative premises a nd vehicles by ente ring into 
operating leases, with typical lives of betwe en 5 to 15 years for buildi ngs and 3 to 5 years for 
vehicles. 
 
The future lease payments due to be paid under these leases in future years are: 
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 31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2012 

  £000 £000 

Not later than one year           528           843 
Later than one year and not later than five years           696        1,124 
Later than five years           172           252 
 Total         1,396        2,219 

 
The Council has sub-let some of the buildings and vehicles held under these operating leases.  At 31 
March 2013 the payments expected to be received under sub-leases was £94k (£117k at 31 March 
2012). The expenditu re charged to Net Co st of Services in the Comprehen sive Income and  
Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to these leases was: 
 
  31 March 

2013 
31 March 

2012 

  £000 £000 
Lease payments        1,625        1,812 
Less sublease payments receivable        (180)        (174)
 Total         1,445        1,638 

 
The Council as Lessor 
Finance Leases 
 
The Council has a number of properties it has leased out under finance leases with a range of 
different remaining lease periods.  The Council has a gross investment in the leases, made up of the 
minimum lease payments expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value 
anticipated for the p roperty when th e lease co mes to an end.  The minim um lease payments 
comprise settlement of the long-te rm debtor for the interest in the prop erty acquired by the lessee  
and finance income that will be earned by the  Council in futu re years whilst the  debt remains 
outstanding. The gross investment is made up of the following amounts: 
 

 31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2012 

£000 £000 
Finance lease debtors (net present value of minimum lease payments):    
• Current 23 21
• Non current 1,187 1,211
Unearned finance income 1,490 1,548
Unguaranteed residual property value 441 441
Gross investment in leases    

3,141  
 

3,221 
 
  
  
  

Gross investment in 
leases 

Minimum lease 
payments 

31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2012 

31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2012 

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Not later than one year 79 79 79 79
Later than one year and not later than five 
years 

317 317 317 317

Later than five years 2,745 2,825 2,304 2,383
Total  3,141 3,221 2,700 2,779

 
The Council has taken into account the possibility that worsening financial circumstances might result 
in lease payments not being made. This is reflected in determining the amounts to be set aside for 
impairment of debts.  
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Operating Leases 
 
The Council leases out land and buildings within its Investment Property portfolio under approx. 900 
operating leases of varying lease periods. These include industrial and retail properties including land 
and the land element of finance leases, Green Belt agricultural tenancies and other recreational and 
commercial buildings. The Council received £7.604m in 201 2/13 (£7.852m 2011/12) under these 
leases. The table below sets out the future income profile arising from the most significant leases that 
generate annual income in excess of £20k (approx. 60 leases). The total annual receipts generated 
from these leases was £4.265m in 2012/13 (£3.957m 2011/12).  
 
  
  

31 March 
2013 

31 March 
2012 

£000 £000 
Amount due not later than one year 3,344 3,624
Amount due later than one year but not later than five 
years 

9,030 9,789

Later than five years 111,630 117,720
 Total  124,004 131,133

 
 
NOTE 38.  PFI AND SIMILAR CONTRACTS 
 
The Council has the following obligations arising from three PFI Schemes. In each case, the Council 
specifies the minimum standards for the services and the assets to be provided by the contractor and 
has the right to make deductions from the fees payable should those standards not be achieved. The 
assets will b e transferred to the Council at the end of each co ntract for nil consideration and are  
therefore recognised on the Coun cil’s Balance Sh eet; movements in thei r value in the y ear are 
detailed in the analysis of Movement in Property, Plant and Equipment in Note 11. 
 
The Council makes agreed fixed payments each year which may be increased by inflation or reduced 
if the contractor fails to meet availability or performance standards in any y ear. Payments remaining 
to be made  under ea ch PFI contract at 31 Ma rch 2013 are shown belo w together with the  
outstanding liability to the contractor for capital expenditure incurred also as at 31 March 2013.    
 
Street Lighting Services 
 

Period Payment for 
Services  

£000s 

Reimbursement of 
Capital Expenditure  

£000s 

Interest 
£000s 

Total 
£000s 

Within one year 1,681 1,083 1,013 3,777 
Two - five years 7,186 4,490 3,505 15,181 
six - 10 years 10,176 5,539 3,110 18,825 
11 - 15 years 11,788 5,569 1,728 19,085 
16 - 20 years 8,169 3,604 369 12,142 
Total 39,000 20,285 9,725 69,010 

  
The carrying value of the Street Lighting scheme assets at 31 March 2013 was £24.3m (£25.6m as at      
31 March 2012).  
 
Outstanding Liability for Reimbursement of Capital Expenditure 2012/13   

£000s 
2011/12 
£000s 

Balance Outstanding 1st April (21,362) (18,286) 
Payments during the year  1,079 2,022 
Capital expenditure incurred in the year 0 (5,098) 
Balance Outstanding 31st March (20,283) (21,362) 
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Education – Provision of Highlands Secondary School 
 

Period Payment for 
Services  

£000s 

Reimbursement of 
Capital Expenditure  

£000s 

Interest 
£000s 

Total 
£000s 

Within one year 674 552 1,294 2,520 
Two - five years 2,936 2,865 4,546 10,347 
six - 10 years 4,185 5,289 3,736 13,210 
11 - 15 years 2,352 3,846 728 6,926 
Total 10,147 12,552 10,304 33,003 

  
The carrying value of assets held at 31 March 2013 was £20.3m (£25.9m as at 31 March 2012). 
Outstanding Liability for Reimbursement of Capital 
Expenditure 

2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Balance Outstanding 1st April (13,035) (13,491) 
Payments during the year  483 456 
Balance Outstanding 31st March (12,552) (13,035) 

 
Education – Provision of Starksfield Primary School and Refurbishment of Tottenhall Primary 
and Lea Valley Secondary Schools 
 
Period Payment for 

Services  
£000s 

Reimbursement of 
Capital Expenditure  

£000s 

Interest 
£000s 

Total 
£000s 

Within one year 1,726 791 2,390 4,907 
Two - five years 7,566 3,501 8,754 19,821 
six - 10 years 11,007 6,507 8,647 26,161 
11 - 15 years 13,035 9,436 4,852 27,323 
16 – 20 years 3,992 3,888 540 8,420 
Total 37,326 24,123 25,183 86,632 

  
The carrying value of assets held at 31 March 2013 was £27.5m (£27.0m at 31 March 2012). 
 

Outstanding Liability for Reimbursement of Capital 
Expenditure 

    2012/13 
   £000s 

2011/12       
£000s 

Balance Outstanding 1st April (24,870) (25,570) 
Payments during the year  747 700 
Capital expenditure incurred in the year 0 0 
Balance Outstanding 31st March (24,123) (24,870) 

 
NOTE 39.  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 
 
The financial statements reflect a n et impairment of £1,387k in respect of the Ladderswood Estate 
Regeneration Project – (see Note 21). The impairment reflects the overall reduction in the value of 
assets that are currently vacant and held for transfer as at 31st March 2013 in order to ensure their 
carrying value does not excee d the con sideration the Council is expecte d to receive f rom the 
development partner for these assets. 
 
The residential and commercial assets of this estate  are due to be transferred to a develop er and 
registered social landlord commencing from 2013/14 as e ach phase of the d evelopment projects 
proceeds. Over 100 p roperties within the Ladd erswood Estate remain in  occupation. These 
properties will be va cated or bo ught back as the project proceeds. Once these p roperties are 
available for transfer, their carrying values will be further im paired to m atch the consideration 
receivable. 
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As at 31st March 2013 the residential element of  the Highmead Estate has been fully vacated an d 
demolished. The commercial assets, a parade of shops on Fore Street, are due for demolition early 
2013-14.  
 
NOTE 40.  TERMINATION BENEFITS AND EXIT PACKAGES 
 
Termination Benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of the Authority’s d ecision to 
terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to 
accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. 
 
Invariably both decisions arise due to the need to make savings.  If an employee is aged 55 or over 
and is a member of the Pension Scheme they are entitled to receive their occupational pension at the 
point at which their employment was terminated.  This gives rise to an extra st rain on the P ension 
Fund, the cost of which is reimbursed from the General Fund or HRA.  Redundancy Payments and 
the Pension Strain effect are the key components of the Cost of Exit Packages.   
 
The number and cost of Exit Packages in 2012-13 and 2011-12 were as follows: 
 
 [A] Exit 
Package Cost 
Band 

[B] Number of 
Compulsory 

Redundancies 

[C] Number of 
other departures 

[D] Total number 
of exit packages 
by cost band (b + 

c) 

[E] Total cost of exit 
packages 

in each band 

  2012-13 2011-12 2012-13 2011-12 2012-13 2011-12 2012-13 2011-12 
        £000 £000 
           
0 - £20k 14 68 12 0 26 68 246         672 
     
£20k - £40k 1 33 1 0 2 33 47      964 
     
£40k - £60k 7 15 2 0 9 15 412         679 
     
£60k - £80k 3 6 1 0 4 6 259         409
     
£80k - £100k 2          0  0 0 2           0  163           0  
     
£100k - £150k 1 1 0 0 1 1 124         133 
     

Total 28          123          16           0         44        123 
  

1,251       2,857
 
 
NOTE 41. PENSION SCHEMES ACCOUNTED FOR AS DEFINED CONTRIBUTION 

SCHEMES 
 
Teachers employed by the Authority are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by 
the Department for Education. The Scheme provides tea chers with specified benefits upon thei r 
retirement, and the Auth ority contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a 
percentage of members’ pensionable salaries. 
 
The Scheme is techni cally a defined benefit sc heme. However, the Sche me is unfun ded and the  
Department for Education uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution 
rate paid by local authorities. The A uthority is not able to id entify its sha re of underlying financial 
position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the 
purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is the refore accounted for on the same basis as a defined 
contribution scheme. 
 
In 2012/13 employer contributions of £14.52m were paid to the Teachers Pension Scheme (£14.4m 
paid in 2011/12).   
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The Authority is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirement 
outside of the terms of th e teacher’s scheme.  These costs are accounted for on a define d benefit 
basis and detailed in Note 42 below. 
 
NOTE 42.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES 
 
Participation in Pension Schemes 
 
As part of th e terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority make s contributions 
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable 
until employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to m ake the payments that needs to b e 
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.  The Auth ority participates in two 
post employment schemes: 
 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by the London Borough of 
Enfield.  This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and 
employees pay contributions into a  fund, calculated at a  level intended to balance the 
pensions liabilities with investment assets. 

 
 Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early retirement.  

This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when 
awards are made. As there are no investment assets built up to meet these liabilities, at the 
point of early retirement a cash transfer is made from the General Fund to the Pension Fund 
to cover this shortfall. This transfer is real expenditure to the Gen eral Fund and is normally 
financed from a revenue reserve.   

 
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 
 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are 
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the 
charge that is required to be made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so 
the real cost of po st-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via th e 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 
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Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

 Discretionary 
Benefits 

Arrangements 
   2012/13 2011/12  2012/13 2011/12 
   £000 £000  £000 £000 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement        
         
Cost of Services        
current service cost   25,264 22,453  0 0
past service cost (gains) / losses   553 940  0 25
settlements and curtailments  0 0  0 0

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure       
interest cost  45,186 45,436  2,285 2,522

expected return on scheme assets  (40,255) (39,807)  0 0
        
Total Post Employment Benefit charged to 
the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of 
Services  30,748 29,022  2,285 2,547
        

actuarial (gains) / losses  28,300 74,919  4,474 4,615
        
Total Post Employment Benefit charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement  59,048 103,941  6,759 7,162
        
Movement in Reserves Statement       
reversal of net charges made to the Surplus 
or Deficit for the Provision of Services for 
post employment benefits in accordance with 
the code  

7,146 5,095  (1,147) (673) 

        
Actual amount charged against General Fund 
and HRA Balance for pensions in the year  

     

        
Employers' contributions payable to the scheme  (23,602) (23,927)    
Retirement benefits payable to pensioners     (3,432) (3,220)
            

 
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the 31 March 2013 is a loss of £32.7m( £79.5m in 2011/12). 
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Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits 

 
     Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 

 

 

Funded Liabilities: 
Local Government 
Pension Scheme  

Unfunded Liabilities: 
Discretionary Benefits

 2012/13 2011/12  2012/13 2011/12 
 £000 £000  £000 £000 
Opening balance at 1 April 956,942 839,446  51,375 47,433
Current service cost 25,264 22,453  0 0
Interest cost 45,186 45,436  2,285 2,522
Contributions by scheme participants 7,486 7,534  0 0
Actuarial (gains) / losses 67,087 68,074  4,474 4,615
Benefits paid (24,283) (26,941)  (3,432) (3,220)
Passed service costs 553 940  0 25
Entity combinations 0 0  0 0
Curtailments 0 0  0 0
Settlements 0 0  0 0
Closing balance at 31 March 1,078,235 956,942   54,702 51,375

 
Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets: 

  
Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

  2012/13 2011/12 
  £000 £000 
Opening balance at 1 April 606,389 568,907

Expected rate of return 40,255 39,807
Actuarial gains / (losses) 38,787 (6,845)
Employer contributions 23,602 23,927
Contributions by scheme participants 7,486 7,534
Benefits paid (24,283) (26,941)
Entity combinations 0 0
Settlements 0 0

Closing balance at 31 March 692,236 606,389
 
The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns a vailable 
on the assets underlying the current investment policy.  Expected yields on fixed interest investments 
are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date.   Expected returns on equity 
investments reflect long term real rate s of return experienced in the respective markets.  The actual 
return on scheme assets in the year was £79m (£32.9m in 2011/12). 
 
Scheme History 

  2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2008/09 2007/08 
  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
        

Present Value of Scheme Liabilities (1,132,937) (1,008,317) (886,879) (912,230) (592,830)

Fair Value of Scheme Assets 692,236 606,389 568,907 549,619 423,989
       

Surplus / (deficit) in the scheme (440,701) (401,928) (317,972) (362,611) (168,841)
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The liabilities show the u nderlying commitments that the Authority has in t he long run to pay post 
employment (retirement) benefits. The total liabilit y of £1,13 3m (1,078m+£55m) has a substantial 
impact on the net worth of the Authority as re corded in the Bal ance Sheet, resulting in a negative 
overall Pension Fund balance of £441m. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean 
that the financial position of the Authority remains healthy because: 

 
 The deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions 

over the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed by 
the scheme actuary. 

 
 Finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the pensions are 

actually paid. 
 

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the council 
in the year to  31 March 2014 is £24.6m.  Unfunded benefit payments of £1.750m are expected to the 
year 31 March 2014. 

 
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 

 
Liabilities have been a ssessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an 
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality 
rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Gove rnment Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits 
liabilities have been a ssessed by AON He witt Ltd, an i ndependent firm of actuari es, with estimates 
based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2010.  The principal assumptions used 
by the actuary are shown in the table below. 
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Actuary’s Principal Assumptions 

  

Funded Liabilities 
Local Government 
Pension Scheme 

 Unfunded Liabilities
Discretionary 

Benefits 
  2012/13 2011/12  2012/13 2011/12 
        
Long term expected rate of return on 
assets in the scheme       
       
Equity investments 7.8% 8.1%  - - 
Property 7.3% 7.6%  - - 
Government Bonds 2.8% 3.1%  - - 
Corporate Bonds 3.8% 3.7%  -  
Cash 0.9% 1.8%  - - 
Other Assets 7.8% 8.1%  - - 
       
Mortality assumptions:      

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:      
   Men 24.0 23.9  24.0 23.9% 
   Women 26.8 26.7  26.8 26.7% 
       
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:      
   Men 25.7 25.6  25.7 25.6 
   Women 28.8 28.7  28.8 28.7 

       
Rate of inflation 2.7% 2.5%  2.6% 4.6% 
Rate of increase in salaries 4.6% 5.0%  - - 
Rate of increase to pensions in payment 2.7% 2.5%  2.6% 2.4% 
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.4% 4.7%  4.1% 4.6% 
       
Take up of option to convert annual 
pension into retirement lump sum 30.0% 30.0%      

 
 

The Discretionary Benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local Government 
Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets held: 

 

Scheme Asset Type 
31 March 

2013 
31 March 

2012 

Equity investments 47.0% 45.4% 
Property 6.8% 8.5% 
Government Bonds 15.4% 15.3% 
Corporate Bonds 7.6% 8.1% 
Cash 3.1% 3.8% 

Other Assets* 20.1% 18.9% 
 

*Other assets include hedge funds, currency holdings and asset allocation futures. 
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History of Gains and Losses 

 
The actuarial losses identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2012/13 can be analysed 
into the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2013 

 

  2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2008/09 2007/08 

Experience Gains / (losses) on assets 5.60% -1.10% -5.4% 17.7% -28.6% 
Experience Gains / (losses) on liabilities 0.10% -0.60% 0.60% 0.60% 0.40% 
 
 
NOTE 43. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
A Contingent Liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which 
are not wholly within the control of the Authority. 
 
As at 31 March 2013, the Authority has Contingent Liabilities as follows:- 
 

 A potential liability estimated at  £1.7m to cover possible claims against the Council for areas 
that were previously underwritten by Municipal Mutual Insurance (now in administration) 

 
 A potential liability of up to £0.5m regarding a capital project which experienced delays.   

A Contingent Asset arises where a future inflow – to the Authority - of economi c benefits or service 
potential is probable, but whose existence will be confi rmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one o r more uncertain future events which are not wholly within the control of the 
Authority. 
 
As at 31 March 2013, the Authority has Contingent Assets as follows:- 

 
 A potential claim against a Construction Company, estimated to be in the regi on of £0.5m, 

regarding culpability to clear asbestos material on a construction contract  
 
 Clawback of pension benefits, estimated to be in the region of £0.5m, from a former member 

of staff who left the Authority in 2010. 
 
 
NOTE 44. TRUSTS AND OTHER MONEY 
 
Although not part of the Balance Sheet the Council administers certain trusts and other sums of money as 
detailed below: 

 31 March 31 March 
 2013 2012 
Funds £000s £000s 
Belling Education Trust * 93 83 
King George V Playing Field * 582 579 
New Southgate Playground * 328 326 
Other funds 76 93 
   1,079 1,081 

Receiverships and Other Clients Funds  
  Receiverships 4 2,996 
  Appointeeships 0 779 
  Funds held and administered by  
  Council’s residential care homes 10 8 
  Discretionary Funds for Council’s  
  service users 132 132 
  Other Funds 21 19 
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 31 March 31 March 
 2013 2012 
 167 3,934 
  
Total Trusts and Other Money 1,246  5,015 
  
Represented by  
  Investments at cost 25 25 
  Cash 1,221 4,990 
   

1,246
 

5,015 
  
  Market value of investments 
 (Belling Education Trust) 123 110 
  

   * These are charitable trusts for which the Council acts as trustees. 
   

The amounts above are kept within the  Council’s bank account but accounted for separately and an 
interest rate is based on the seven day rate. 
 
The Belling Trust founded by the will of C.R. Belling applies its funds to the advancement of education, 
with particular interest in promoting electrical engineering and electronics. 
 
King George V Playing Field trust has the objective of promoting the establishment of playing fields o f 
a particular style, and New So uthgate Playground Trust was established to provide and maintain 
recreational facilities.  
 
The Council holds balances in respect of these schemes but has no liabilities. 
 
From 1st January 2013, the Receivership and Appointeeship Funds are not administered by the 
Council and have been transferred to the clients own bank accounts. The residual £4,000 is currently 
being investigated and will be allocated out during 2013/14. 
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The Housing Revenue Account deals with the provision, maintenance and sales of council houses and 
flats.  The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the e conomic cost of providin g housing 
services in a ccordance with generally accepted accounting practice rather th an the amo unt to be 
funded from rents and government grants. 

 
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

 
   NOTES 2012/13  

£000s 
2011/12  
 £000s 

INCOME  
Dwelling rents (gross) (53,728) (50,604)
Non-dwelling rents (gross) (624) (631)
Charges for services and facilities (5,425) (5,398)
Contributions towards expenditure (523) (629)
Total Income (60,300) (57,262)
EXPENDITURE  
Repairs and maintenance 4 13,207 12,891
Supervision and management 19,865 21,347
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 204 261
Negative HRA subsidy payable 8 0 8,100
Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 6 30,128 31,994
Debt management costs 24 23
Movement in the provision for impairment of debts   10 65 283
Sums directed by the Secretary of State that are 
expenditure in accordance with the Code       11  29,179

Exceptional Item  0 (482)
Other Operating Expenditure 971 21
Total Expenditure 64,464 103,617
Net cost of HRA Services as included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 4,164 46,355
HRA services’ share of Corporate and Democratic Core 242 293

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES 4,406 46,646
HRA share of the operating income and expenditure 
included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement:  
(Gain) or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets 84 (4,377)
Interest payable and similar charges 6,748 4,343
Interest and Investment income 0 (82)
Income and expenditure and changes in fair value of 
Investment Properties  7 (3,654) 1,762
Pensions interest cost and expected return on 
pension assets 9 23 20
Capital grants and contributions receivable 0 (2,223)

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR ON HRA SERVICES                7,607 46,089
 

There is a statutory requirement to keep the HRA separate from other housing activities in accordance 
with Part VI and Schedule 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  Schedule 4 of the 1989 
Act prescribes all the inco me and expenditure items that are to be includ ed in the Housing Revenue 
Account.  In addition, there is a req uirement not to allow cross-subsidy to or from, the Gen eral Fund. 
The statement below reconciles the movement of the HRA balance to the (surplus)/deficit on the HRA 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT STATEMENT 

 
 31 March 2013 

£000s 
31 March 2012 

£000s 

Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year (11,558) (8,739)

  
Deficit for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement 7,607 46,089
Adjustments between accounting basis and  funding basis under 
statute:  

Difference between treatment of interest payable and premiums 31 46
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute  0 (29,179)
Difference between any other item of income and expenditure 
determined in accordance with the Code and determined in 
accordance with statutory HRA requirements  (16,845) (25,739)
Investment properties gain or loss on disposal & movements in fair 
and market value 1,472 0
Gain on sale of HRA non-current assets (84) 4,377
HRA share of contributions to or from the Pensions Reserve (17) (11)
Capital expenditure funded by the HRA 0  0
Transfers to Capital Grants Unapplied Account  0 2,223
Transfer from Capital Receipts Reserve equal to the amount                  
payable into the Housing Capital Receipts Pool                    (971) (21)
Other Contributions from the Capital Receipts Reserve (160) (28)
NET (INCREASE)/DECREASE BEFORE TRANSFERS TO OR 
FROM RESERVES (8,967) (2,243)

  
Transfers to or (from) earmarked reserves 6,590 (576)
(Increase) in year on the HRA (2,377) (2,819)

  

BALANCE ON THE HRA AT THE END OF THE CURRENT YEAR (13,935) (11,558)
 

1.   HOUSING STOCK 
 

The Council was responsible for managing a Housing Revenue Account stock of 11,152 properties at 
31st March 2013 compared with a total  of 11,297 p roperties at 31st March 2012.  An analy sis of the 
types of homes is shown below. The Council is also a freeholder of 4,582 leased homes that were 
previously sold to tenants under the right-to-buy legislation. 

 
   31 March 2013 31 March 2012 
 Number of properties Number of properties
Low-rise flats (up to 2 storeys) 1,525 1,528
Medium-rise flats (3 to 5 storeys) 3,702 3,750
High-rise flats (6 storeys and over) 2,623 2,698
Houses and bungalows 3,299 3,316
Multi-occupied and shared ownership 3                                    5
Total Housing stock 11,152 11,297

         
The figures of 11,152 and 11,297 exclude four properties classified as Council Dwellings that are not 
owned by the Council in full.  Three of these assets are jointly owned at 50% each and one at 25% by 
a third party.  The im pact this would have on the stated carrying value of Council Dwellings as at 31 
March 2013 would be £95,050 (after applying the Social Housing Factor).  
 
The movement between 11,297 in 2011/12 and 11,152 in 2012/13 is the result of 56  Right To Buy 
disposals, 67 properties being classified as surplus assets, 24 classified as held for sale and 2 
additions from the shops portfolio.   
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The Council also holds a number of vacant dwellings that are awaiting disposal or redevelopment at 
31st March 2013 as follows: 

 
   31 March 2013 31 March 2012 
 Number of properties Number of properties
Surplus Properties: 
Sheltered Housing  0 91
Jasper Close 0 18
Alma Development 71 0
New Avenue Development 6 0
Forty Hill 24 0
 
Assets Held For Sale: 
Ladderswood Estate  106 79
Highmeads  Estate  0 61
Cornerways Estate 0 18
Total 207 267

 
The vacant possession value of Surplus assets as at 31 March 2013 was  £5.351m  ( 1 Ap ril 2012 
£3.430m) and value for Assets held for sale as at 31 March 2013 was £1.770m (1 April 2012 
£1.609m). 
 

2. STOCK VALUATION 
The open market value o f the council’s dwellings was £1,826m at 31st Ma rch 2013. The difference 
between this value and the existing use value £456.6m at 31st March 2013 represents the economic 
cost to Governm ent of providin g council housing at less tha n market re nts. The social housing 
valuation is arrived at by applying an adjustment factor provided by the DCLG t o the market value of 
the stock.  

 
3 MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE 

The Major Repairs Allowance represents the es timated long term average amount of capital spending 
required to main tain the housing stock in its current condition. Any unapplied balance of the allowance 
may be carried forward into the following year in a r ing fenced reserve which can only be use d to fund 
capital expenditure on council dwellings. 

 
 2012/13

£000s
2011/12 
£000s 

Balance at 1 April  (7,561) (7,927) 
MRA for the year (13,282) (10,309) 
Amount applied in the funding of expenditure on co uncil 
dwellings during 2012/13 13,158

 
10,675 

Balance at 31 March (7,685) (7,561) 
 

4. HOUSING REPAIRS ACCOUNT 
 2012/13

£000
2011/12 

£000 
Balance brought forward (5,125) (5,701) 
Expenditure for the year 13,207 12,891 
Contribution to the Repairs Fund (11,426) (12,315) 
Balance carried forward (3,344) (5,125) 

 
The balance forms part of the Council’s earmarked reserves as se t out in Note 10 to the Core Financial 
Statements. 
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5. HRA ASSETS  

 1 April 2012 
Acquisitions 

and Transfers 
Disposal/
Transfer 

Depr’n
 

Net Reval’n 
31 March 

2013 
Operational Assets £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 

Council Dwellings 431,450 4,007 (5,547) (13,282) 42,616 459,244

Other Land and 
Buildings 17,707 0 (216) (552) (604) 16,335

Vehicles, Plant and 
Equipment 28 0 0 (28) 0 0

Surplus Assets 3,430 3,828 (2,432) 0 525 5,351
Total Property, 
Plant and Equipment 
 

452,615 7,835 (8,195) (13,862) 42,537 480,930

Aerial Sites 1,541 (11) 0 0 224 1,754

Shops and Commercial 20,697 0 0 0 1,631 22,328
Total Investment 
Properties 

22,238 (11) 0 0 1,855 24,082

Intangible  Assets 102 0 0 (34) 0 68

Assets Held For Sale 1,609 842 (428) 0 (253) 1,770

Investment Properties 
Held For Sale 655 299 0 0 (216) 738

      
TOTAL 477,219 8,965 (8,623) (13,896) 43,923 507,588

 
The Council has adopted the policy of using the Major Repairs Allowance as th e basis for calcula ting 
depreciation on council dwellings. Other HRA properties are depreciated in the same way as othe r council 
assets with the depreciation charges reversed out in the Movement on the HRA Statement.  
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Capital expenditure in the year amounted to £36.53m consisting of: 

 
Expenditure on £000s 
Works To Stock – Decent Homes 19,809 
Works To Stock – General Works 10,931 
Leaseholder Buy Backs 0 
Grants to Vacate (GTV) 390 
Community Halls 678 
Buying Out Commercial and Residential Interests (Regeneration Projects) 3,460 
Demolition Costs 1,264 
Total 36,532 
Funded by  
Supported Borrowing – Decent Homes 18,000 
Unsupported Borrowing  3,479 
Capital Grants and Contributions 1,427 
Capital Receipts 468 
Major Repairs Reserve 13,158 
 36,532 

 
6. CAPITAL CHARGES 

 
  2012/13 

£000s 
2011/12 
£000s 

Depreciation  
  Council Dwellings – MRA 13,282 10,309
  Other Land and Buildings 552 403
  Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 28 62
  
Impairment and Downward Valuation  
  Council Dwellings 11,653 18,196
  Other Land and Buildings 3,317 455
  Surplus Properties 158 (438)
  Assets Held For Sale 1,104 2,973
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 0 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 34 34
  
 30,128 31,994

 
£10,000k of impairments were charged in the year to the Revaluation Reserve as a reversal of the prior 
years upward revaluation
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7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES  

   2012/13 
£000s 

2011/12 
£000s 

Rental Income from Investment Properties (2,352) (2,456) 
Direct Operating Expenses arising from Investment Property 170 163 
Net (gain)/loss from fair value adjustments  (1,472) 824 
Losses arising from bu ying out commercial interests – 
Highmead and Ladderswood regeneration projects 

0  
1,129 

Impairment of Highmead Commercial Properties 0 2,102 

Net (Gain) / Loss (3,654) 1,762 
 

8. HOUSING SUBSIDY 
SUMMARY 2012/13 

£000s 
2011/12 
£000s 

Management and maintenance allowance  
The HRA 

Subsidy regime 
was abolished 
with effect from 
1 April 2012. 

 

25,029 
Capital Charges 6,078 
Guideline Rent (49,734) 
Major Repairs Allowance 10,309 
Negative Housing Subsidy  (8,318) 
Previous year adjustments 218 
Negative Housing Subsidy - payment to Secretary of State (8,100) 
 

 
9. CONTRIBUTION FROM PENSIONS RESERVE 

 
The HRA income and e xpenditure has been charged, as have other services, with the additional pension 
cost as re quired under IAS19. So as no t to impact on the HRA p osition and r esources, the entries are 
reversed out as a ‘contribution from the pension reserve’. See the notes to the Core Financial Statements for 
further details of IAS19. 

 
10. RENT ARREARS AND IMPAIRMENT OF DEBTS 

 
Council tenants' rent arrears as at th e 31st March 2013 were £3.110m compared to £3.178m at the 31s t 
March 2012. The provision for impairment of debts was £1.311m (2012/13 £1.542m) and £0.296m (2011/12 
£0.244m) was written off during the year.  

 
In 2012/13 a contribution to the Impairment of debt of £65k was included in this balance (£283k 2011/12). 

 
11.  SUMS DIRECTED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

 
The HRA subsidy reg ime was abolished with effect from 1 April 2012 and the Council was required to pay 
the Government £28.789m in 2011/12. In addition, HRA grants to vacate of £0.39m were also made.   

 
12.  ALMO – Enfield Homes Ltd 

 
The management of all the housing stock of the Co uncil is undertaken by Enfield Homes Ltd, an Arms 
Length Management Organisation (ALMO) wholly owned by the authority. The management agreement was 
for five years and it is currently being reviewed. 
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This account represents the transactions of the Collection Fund, a statutory fund separate from the General 
Fund of the Council. This fund accounts independently for the income relating to Council Tax and Business 
Rates on behalf of those bodies (including the Council’s own General Fund) for whom the income is raised. 
The costs of administering collection are accounted for in the General Fund.  

 
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
ACCOUNT 

  2012/13 2011/12 

  NOTE £000s £000s £000s £000s 
INCOME       
Council taxpayers 1 (158,101)  (157,514)  
Business ratepayers  2 (102,019)  (97,332)  
Business Rate Supplement 3 (3,508)  (3,489)  

    (263,628)   (258,335)
EXPENDITURE      
Precepts and demands:      
London Borough of Enfield  121,500  121,273  
Greater London Authority  33,868  34,147  

    155,368   155,420
Business rates:      
Payment to national pool   101,668  96,980  
Cost of collection allowance  351  352  

    102,019   97,332
Business Rate Supplements      
Payment to GLA  3,493  3,472  
Cost of collection allowance  15  17  

    3,508   3,489
Impairment of debt:      
Council Tax – Contribution to 
provision foor impairment of debt 

 2,220 1,933 

    2,220   1,933

Surplus For year (513)  (161)
Surplus As at 1 April    (559)  (165)
Prior years adjustment3    (233)
Surplus As at 31 March  4  (1,072)  (559)
            

 
1.  COUNCIL TAX 

 
Council Tax income derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties, which have 
been classified into 8 valuation bands estimated at 1 April 1991 values for this specific purpose. Individual 
charges are calculated by estimating the amount of income that the Council and its preceptors take from the 
Collection Fund for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the council tax base. This tax base represents 
the total number o f properties in each band, adjusted by a proportion to convert the number to a Band D 
equivalent and adjusted for discounts and estimated non-collectibles.  The tax base calculation for 2012/13 
is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
3 Reinstatement of debt written off in previous years which is secured against property and should have been 
accounted for as an adjustment to the bad debt provision. 
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BAND Chargeable properties adjusted for 
discounts 

Band D equivalent adjusted for 
estimated non-collection 

    
A 2,645 2,592
B 7,134 6,991
C 25,234 24,730
D 32,015 31,374
E 23,039 22,578
F 11,950 11,711
G 9,085 8,903
H 1,572 1,541
 112,674 110,420

 
This basic amount of Council Tax for a Band D property, £1,407.06100.34 including the GLA precept is 
multiplied by the proportion specified for the particular band to give an individual amount due. The income 
receivable is attributable to the following sources: 
 
 2012/13 2011/12 
 £000s £000s 
Billed to Council Tax Payers 121,225 120,574
Council Tax Benefits 36,876 36,940
 158,101 157,514

 
Analysis of Council Tax Impairment of debt 
 
 2012/13 2011/12 
 £000s £000s 
Council Tax Provision for Impairment of debt B/fwd 13,032 12,186
Amount written off (3,512) (1,087)
Contribution to Provision for Impairment of debt 2,220 1,933
Council Tax Impairment of debt C/fwd 11,740 13,032

 
The figures above show the total Council Tax impairment of debt reflecting both the GLA precept and 
Enfield elements of the provision.  Note 19 (Debtor s and Payments in Advance) shows the En field 
proportion of the Impairment of debt only. 
 

2. BUSINESS RATES 
 

Business rates are organised on a national basis and re-valued every five years, the latest revaluation being 
in 2010. In 2012/13 the Government specified an amount of 42.6p for small businesses who qualify for rate 
relief and 43.3p for all other businesses. Local businesses pay rates calculated by multiplying their rateable 
value by these amounts.  The Council is responsible for collecting rates due from the ratepayers in its area, 
but pays the proceeds into a Government-administered pool.  

 
The Government redistributes the sums paid into the pool back to local au thorities’ General Funds in 
proportion to their Formula Grant allocations.   
 
The total business rate pool income after reliefs and provisions of £101.668m for 2012/13 was based on the  
notified rateable values and their effective dates. 
 
The total non-domestic rateable value for the area at the year-end was £260.7m (2011/12 £258.3m).  

 
3. BUSINESS RATE SUPPLEMENTS 

 
Government legislation gives the Greater London Authority the power to levy an additional 2p Business Rate 
Supplement on London businesses as a contribution to the cost of the Crossrail scheme. As with national 
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business rates, the Council collects the 2p business rates and pays the income over to the GLA. The total 
amount due for 2012/13 after reliefs and provisions was £3.24m. 

 
4. CONTRIBUTIONS TO COLLECTION FUND SURPLUSES/DEFICITS 

 
The revenue account surplus of £1 .072m relates to Council Tax at 31 March 2013 (adjusted £0.559m 
2011/12), and will be distributed in subsequent years to the Council and its major preceptors in proportion to 
the value of the respective precepts and demands on the Collection Fund. 
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PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 

 
Introduction 
 
The London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) is part of the Loca l Government Pension 
Scheme and is administered by the London Borough of Enfield (‘The Council’).  The Fund was established 
to provide benefits for employees which include retirement pensions, widows pensions, death grants and 
other lump sum payments. 

 
The following description of the Fund is a summary only. For more detail, reference should be made to 
the Enfield Pension Fund Annual Report 2012/13 and the underlying statutory powers underpinning 
the Scheme, namely the Superan nuation Act 197 2 and the L ocal Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) Regulations. 
 
The Fund is governed by the Supe rannuation Act 1972 and is administered under the following 
secondary legislation: 
 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Members and Contributions ) Regulations 
2007 (as amended) 

 the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 (as amended) 

 the Local Government Pension S cheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009 (as amended) 

 
The Fund is a contributory final salary, defined benefit pension scheme administered by the Council to 
provide pensions and other benefits for pensionable employees of the London Borough of Enfield and 
for the employees of admitted and scheduled bodies eligible to participate in the Fund. 
 
The Fund is financed by contributions from employees, employers and from gains on realised investments, 
interest and dividends on its investments. 
 
The main in vestment objectives are to maximise the overall  return from  income a nd capital 
appreciation without high risk and to maintain the ready marketability of the portfolio to meet the fund’s 
fluctuating cash requirements, and to react to the fund’s increasing maturity. 
 
The London Borough of Enfield has delegated responsibility for the management of the Pension Fund 
to the Pensions Board with the Corporate Director of Finance Resources and Customer Services being 
given delegated authority for the day to day operation of the Fund. 
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Membership 

 
All local gov ernment employees (except casual employees and teachers) are automatically entere d 
into the Fund. However membership of the LGPS is volunta ry and employees are free to choose 
whether to opt out, remain in the Fund or make their own personal arrangements outside the Fund. 

 
Organisations participating in the Enfield Pension Fund include: 

 
 Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are automatically 

entitled to be members of the Fund. 

 Admitted bodies, which are other organisations that participate in the Fund under an admission 
agreement between the Fund and the relevant organisation. Admitted bodies include voluntary, 
charitable and similar bodies or private contractors undertaking a local a uthority function 
following outsourcing to the private sector. 

The Fund consists of the employees of Enfield Council and the following bodies: 
 

Schedule bodies: 
Barnet & Southgate College (formerly Southgate College) 

Capel Manor College 

Enfield Homes 

Hadley Academy 

Enfield Academy 

Aylward Academy  

Cuckoo Hall Academy   

Nightingale Academy  

Kingsmead Academy  

Enfield Grammar School Academy  

 
Admitted bodies: 
Sodexo Ltd  

Churchill 

Enfield Voluntary Groups 

NORSE  

Metropolitan Support Trust  

Fusion Lifestyle (previously Enfield Leisure) 

Kier Group Services 

 



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 
 

London Borough of Enfield 99

Admitted bodies with no active members 

Fitzpatrick  

Birkin Services 

Hughes Gaidner 

Equion Facilities Management 

 
As at the 31March 2013 the Fund Membership was 16,178 compared to 15,102 at 31March 2012.  
This is analysed below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Funding 
 
Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active 
members of the Fund in  accordance with t he LGPS (Benefits, Membe rship and Contribution s) 
Regulations 2007 and range from 5.5% to 7.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31st 

March 2013. Employers also make contributions, which are set based on triennial actuarial funding 
valuations. 
 
The last such valuation was as at 31 March 2010. Current employer contribution rates can be found 
in the Statement to the Rates a nd Adjustments Certificate in the Enfield Fund Annu al Report 
2012/13. While individual rates were set for each employer, the average rate for the Fund is 20.4%. 
The 2013 valuation has now commenced and will be completed by the Autumn of 2013. 
 
Benefits 
 
Pension benefits under LGPS are based on final pensionable pay and length of service, summarised 
below: 
 
  

Service pre  1 April 2008  
 

 
Service post 31 March 2008 

Pension 
 

Each year worked is worth 1/80 x 
final pensionable salary. 
 

Each year worked is worth 1/60 x 
final pensionable salary. 
 

Lumps 
Sum 

Automatic lump sum of 3 x salary.  Automatic lump sum is still the same 
but is optio nal all or p art can be 
converted into pension payments. 
 

 In addition, part of the annual pension 
can be exchanged for a one-off tax-
free cash payment. A 
lump sum of £12 is paid for each £1 of 
pension given up.  

Part of the annu al pension can be 
exchanged for a one-off tax-free cash 
payment. A l ump sum of £12 is paid 
for each £1 of pension given up. 

 
There are a range of othe r benefits provided under the Scheme including early retirement, disability 
pensions and death benefits.  
 

  31 March 2013 31 March 2012 
Current Members 6,447 5,939 
Retired Members 4,279 4,097 
Deferred Members 4,410 3,764 
Frozen/Undecided 1,042 1,302 

 16,178 15,102 
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Benefits are index-linked in orde r to keep p ace with inflation. In June 2010, the g overnment 
announced that the method of indexation would change from the Retail Prices Index to the Consumer 
Prices Index. This change took effect from 1st April 2011. 
 
Following the Independent Public S ector Pension Commission, which reported in 2 011 and 
subsequent negotiations on public sector pension reforms, the LGPS is due to see significant 
changes to the Scheme from 2014 which will impact the benefit structure of the Fund in the future. 
 
A copy of the Pension Fund Annual Council’s Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) together with an 
assessment of Enfield’s compliance with the Myner’s Report a nd the Fu nd’s compliance with the 
Government’s compliance statement are all available on the Council’s website www.enfield.gov.uk.  
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Basis of preparation  
The financial state ments have be en prepared in a ccordance with the Local Governmen t Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) (Benefits, Membership and Contr ibutions) Regulations 2007 and LGPS (Management 
and Investment  of Funds) Regulations 2009. 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund’s transactions for the 2012/13 financial year and its 
position at year-end as at 31 March 2013. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012/13 which is based upon 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector. 
 
The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets avail able to pay 
pension benefits. The a ccounts do not take a ccount of obligati ons to pay pensions and benefits 
which fall due after the end of the financial year. T he actuarial present value of promised retirement 
benefits, valued on an International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 basis, is disclosed in Note 15 of 
these accounts. 
 
Accounting Policies 
 

a) Contributions income 
Normal contributions, both from members and employers, are accounted for on an accruals basis, at 
the percentage rate recommended by the Fund Actuary, in the payroll period to which they relate.  
 
The cost of early retirement contributions are ac counted for in t he period in  which the liability is  
incurred. 
 

b) Transfers to and from other schemes 
Transfer values re present the amounts received and paid durin g the year for membe rs who have 
either joined or left the Fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations. 
 
Individual transfers in/out are accounted for when received/paid, which is normally when the member 
liability is accepted or discharged. 
 
Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their Additional Voluntary Contributions to 
purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included  as Transfers in. 
  
Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on a n accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the 
transfers agreements. 
 
c) Investment income 
 
i) Interest income  
Interest income is recognised in the fund account as it accrues. 
 
ii) Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any a mount not 
received by the end of the reporting is disclosed in the Net Assets Statemen t as other i nvestment 
balances. 
 
iii) Distributions from pooled funds 
Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not received by the 
end of the reporting is disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as other investment balances. 
 
vi) Movement in the net market value of investments 
Changes in the net market value of investments are recognised as income and comprise all realised 
and unrealised gains/losses during the year. 
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d) Benefits payable 
Pensions and lump benefits payable include all known to be due in respect of the financial year. Any 
amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as current liabilities. 
 
e) Taxation 
The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 
2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on 
the proceeds of investments sold. Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the 
country of origin, unless exemption is permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a fund expense 
as it arises. 
 
f) Administrative expenses 
All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Relevant officer costs and other 
overheads are apportioned to the Fund. 
 
g) Investment management expenses 
All investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis as follows: 
 

 Fees of the external in vestment managers and Custodian are agreed in  the 
respective mandates governing their appointments. Broadly, these are based on the 
market value of the inve stments under their ma nagement on either a monthly or 
quarterly basis.  

 The exceptions to this are fees in relation to Private equity funds which are based on 
amounts committed to each fund.  

 Fees in connection with some pooled investments are contained within the unit price, 
and are not separately disclosed.  

 The cost of obtainin g investment advi ce from external consultants is incl uded in 
investment management charges.  

 
h) Investments 
Investments are shown in the Net Assets Statement at fair value as follows: 
 

 Quoted investments 

Valued by reference to their bid price at the close of business on 31st March 2013.  
 
 Unquoted investments 

The estimate of fair value after taking the advice of the Fund’s investment manager. 
 
 Derivatives contracts 

Futures contracts are valued using re levant exchange prices at the accounting date. Exchange 
traded options are valued at the relevant exchange price for closing out the option at the 
accounting date. 

 
 Forward currency contracts 

The cost rate of the origin al transaction is compared to the market rate (bei ng taken as the 
spot rate at the close of business of the day before). 
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 Investment income  

Dividends and interest have been accounted for o n an accruals b asis. Investment income on 
overseas investments has been converted into sterling at the rate of exchange on settlement day.  

 
 Overseas investments 

Investments held in forei gn currencies have been converted into sterling at th e rate ruling on 
31 March 2013.  

 
 Pooled investment vehicles 

Pooled investment vehicles are valu ed at clos ing bid price if both bid and offer pri ces are 
published; or if single priced, at  the closin g single price. In the case of pool ed investment 
vehicles that are a ccumulation funds, change in market value al so includes income which is 
reinvested in the fund, net of applicable withholding tax. 

 
 Foreign currency transactions 

Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in fore ign currencies have been 
accounted for at the  spot market rates at th e date of tran saction. End of ye ar spot market 
exchange rates are used to value cash balan ces in foreign currency bank accounts, market 
values of overseas investments and purchases and sales outstanding at t he end of the 
reporting period. 

 
 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash compromises cash in hand an d demand deposits. Cash equivalents are sh ort term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that a re 
subject to minimal risk of changes in value. 

 
Financial liabilities 
The Fund recognises financial liabilities at fair va lue as at the reportin g date. A financial l iability is 
recognised in the Net Assets Statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the liability. From this 
date, any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the liability are recognised by the Fund. 
 

Assumptions Made about The Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
 
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are b ased on assumptions made by the 
Fund about the future o r that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into consideration 
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot 
be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially dif ferent from the assumptions and 
estimates. 
 
Item Uncertainties  Effect if actual results differ 

from assumptions  

Private equity  Private equity investments are 
valued at fair value in 
accordance with British Private 
Equity & Venture  Capital 
Association guidelines. These 
investments are n ot publicly 
listed and as such there is a 
degree of e stimation involved 
in the valuation.  

The total private equity 
investments in the financi al 
statements are £420 million. 
There is a risk that  this 
investment may be un der- or 
overstated in the accounts  

 
Events after the Balance Sheet Date  
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There have been no eve nts since 31 March 2013 and up to the date whe n these a ccounts were 
authorised, which require any adjustments to these accounts. On 31 May 2012, proposed changes 
were announced in respect of the LG PS which would see the implementation of a n ew Career 
Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) Scheme effective from 1  April 2014. Other proposed changes 
would include retirement ages linked to a person’s state pension age, the move to an accrual  rate of 
1/49, higher member contributions for those e arning over £34,000 and the option for flexibi lity over 
contributions. The changes have been consulted upon and it is anticipated that new legislation will be 
put in place before the end of 2013/14. This would enable Fund Actuaries to take the changes into 
consideration for the next triennial actuarial valuation due to take place as at 31 March 2013. At the 
time of finali sing the accounts, it has not been possible to quantify the im pact of the proposed 
changes.  
 
Additional voluntary contributions (AVCs) 
Members of the Fund are able to make AVCs in ad dition to their normal contributions. The related 
assets are invested separately from the main Fund and in accordance with the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) regulations 2009, are not accounted for 
within the financial statements. If on retirement members opt to enhance their Scheme benefits using 
their AVC fu nds, the am ounts returned to the Fund by the AVC provide r are di sclosed within 
transfers-in. 
 
The current provider is Prudential. Funds held with Prudential are summarised below: 
 

 

 
Opening 
Balance 
at 1 April 

2012 
Contributions 
and Transfers 

Sums 
Paid Out 

Investment 
Return 

Closing 
Balance at 
31 March 

2013 
 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 
With Profits Cash 
Accumulation 840 118 (109) 40 889 
Deposit Fund 
Statement 328 345 (163) 2 512 
Discretionary 
Fund 190 42 (45) 22 209 
 1,358 505 (317) 64 1,610 
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FUND ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2013 
  Note 2012/13 2011/12 
   £000s £000s 
 Contributions and benefits    
 - Contributions receivable 1 35,721 35,945 

  - Transfers in 2 5,170 2,385 
   40,891 38,330 
  - Benefits payable 3 (30,100) (26,752) 
  - Payments to and on account of leavers 4 (1,551) (6,500) 
  - Administrative expenses 5 (582) (718) 
   (32,233) (33,970) 
  Net additions from dealings with members   8,658 4,360 
     
 Returns on investments    
  - Investment income 6 8,290 8,160 
  - Taxation 7 (94) (45) 
  - Investment portfolio expenses  8 (1,289) (1,142) 
  - Changes in market value  9 68,741 25,668 
 Net returns on investments  75,648 32,641 
 Net change in assets available for benefits during the 

year 
  

84,306 
 

37,001 
 Opening net assets brought forward at 1 April   646,877 609,876 
 Net assets carried forward as at 31 March 2013  731,183 646,877 

 
NET ASSETS STATEMENT AS AT 31  MARCH 2013  

 Note 2013 2012        2011 
  £000s £000s £000s 

Investment assets  699,583 648,456 608,710 
Cash deposits  32,709 20,316 28,894 
Other investment balances  1,718 1,665 469 
Investment liabilities  (3,044) (24,489) (27,967) 
 9 730,966 645,948 610,106 
Current assets 10 314 1,136 460 
Current liabilities 11 (97) (207) (690) 
Net assets available to fund benefits as at 
31 March 2013 

 
731,183

 
646,877 

 
609,876 

 
 
The Accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and deal with the net assets at t he disposal of the Pension 
Board. They do not ta ke account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the year end of 
the Fund year.  

 
 
Signed 

 
 
…………………………………….. 
 

 
James Rolfe 
Director of Finance, 
Resources and Customer Services

Date:      25 September 2013  
   
 
Signed: 

 
 …………………………………….. 
 

 
Cllr Tahsin Ibrahim 
Pension Board Chair 

Date:     25 September 2013  
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1. Contributions receivable 
 
Summary 2012/13 2011/12
 £000s £000s
Employees’ contributions 8,613 8,636
Employers’ contributions 27,108 27,309
 35,721 35,945

  
Contributions are further analysed as follows: 
 
Employees’ contributions- Analysed by employees’ status: 

  
 2012/13 2011/12
 £000s £000s
London Borough of Enfield 7,486 7,472
Scheduled Bodies 1,044 1,076
Admitted Bodies 83 88
 8,613 8,636

 
Employers’ contributions - Analysed by employers’ status: 

 
 2012/13 2011/12
 £000s £000s
London Borough of Enfield 23,617 23,763
Scheduled Bodies 3,194 3,224
Admitted Bodies 297 322
 27,108 27,309

 
 Employers’ contributions – analysed by types of contributions: 
 
 2012/13 2011/12
 £000s £000s
Employers’ normal contributions 19,392 19,462
Employers’ deficit contributions 7,141 6,831
Employers’ other contributions 575 1,016
 27,108 27,309

 
Employers' other contributions represent the costs of early retirement, and are recognised fully in the 
year that the cost is incurred. 
 
Deficit contributions represent amounts in relation to past service accruals as determined by the 
scheme actuary. 
 
2. Transfers from other funds  
 
The transfers represent the payments received by the pension Fund in relation to individual members’ 
transfers of benefits in to the Fund. A b ulk transfer was received on 27 March 2013 rela ting to the 
Prospects career service from the LPFA. 
 
 2012/13 2011/12

 £000s £000s
Individual transfers 2,745 2,385
Bulk transfers 2,425 -
 5,170 2,385
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3. Benefits payable 
 
Benefits payable consist of pension payments and lump sums payable upon retirement and death.  

 
 2012/13 2011/12

 £000s £000s
Pensions (23,013) (20,942)
Lump sum retirement/death benefits (7,087) (5,810)
 (30,100) (26,752)

 
4. Payments to and on account of leavers 
 
Transfers represent the payments made by the Pension Fund in relation to me mbers’ transfers of 
benefits out of the Fund.  

 .  
 2012/13 2011/12
 £000s £000s
Transfers to other schemes (1,548) (3,509)
Bulk transfer - (2,970)
Contribution refunds (3) (21)
 (1,551) (6,500)

 
5. Administration expenditure 

 
 2012/13 2011/12
 £000s £000s
 
Staff costs – benefits administration (519) (532)
Actuary fees (28) (135)
Subscriptions, legal fees and other fees (35) (51)
 (582) (718)

 
6. Investment income 

 
 2012/13 2011/12 
 £000s £000s 
Fixed interest and indexed linked securities 4,529 5,048 
Equities and unit trusts 2,808 1,883 
Property unit trusts 892 1,112 
Interest on cash and other 61 117 
 8,290 8,160 

 
7. Taxation 

 
Reciprocal arrangements exist between the UK a nd many coun tries for the recovery of v arying 
proportions of locally de ducted tax. Th e timing of the recovery of this ‘with holding tax’ can vary 
between countries. Certain withholding tax on ove rseas investment income is not recoverable and 
is shown as a tax charge. 
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8. Investment portfolio expenses 

 
 2012/13 2011/12 
 £000s  £000s 
Investment managers’/advisers’ fees  (1,091) (959) 
Custody charges (13) (25) 
Enfield staff costs – investment  (75) (100) 
Other costs (110) (58) 
 (1,289) (1,142) 
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 9. Investment assets 
 

Asset Class Market 
value 

 1 April 
2011 

Purchases at 
cost and 

derivative 
payments 

Sales proceeds  
and derivative 

receipts 

Change in market 
value on 

 investments 

Market value 
31 March 

2012

 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Fixed income securities & ILB 156,126 50,215 (72,714) 17,375 151,002
Derivative contracts (44) 223,105 (223,932) 937 66
Equities  93,289 45,212 (43,613) 3,770 98,658
Equity - unit trusts 127,428 30,000 - 8,807 166,235
Property unit trusts  53,919 - (440) 566 54,045
Private equity  26,360 4,790 (3,157) 1,995 29,988
Infrastructure fund  6,784 4,363 (614) (2,350) 8,183
Currency funds 2,338 - - 4 2,342
Hedge funds  114,543 - (488) (607) 113,448
 580,743 357,685 (344,958) 30,497 623,967
Cash and deposits 28,894   20,316
Other investment balances 469  (4,829) 1,665
Investment assets 610,106   25,668 645,948
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Asset Class Market 
value 

1  April 
2012 

Purchases at 
cost and 

derivative 
payments 

Sales proceeds  
and derivative  

receipts 

Change in market 
value on 

investments 

Market 
value 

31  March 
2013 

 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 
Fixed income securities & ILB  151,002 29,192 (25,157) 13,528 168,565 
Derivative contracts 66 85,831 (85,873) (117) (93) 
Equities  98,658 53,521 (52,317) 11,623 111,485 
Equity - unit trusts 166,235 - - 30,948 197,183 
Property unit trusts  54,045 35,926 (35,943) (5,114) 48,914 
Private equity  29,988 4,825 (4,504) 3,571 33,880 
Infrastructure fund  8,183 703 (758) 1,510 9,638 
Currency funds 2,342 - (2,322) (20) - 
Hedge funds  113,448 7,500 (7,573) 13,641 127,016 
 623,967 217,498 (214,447) 69,570 696,588 
Cash and deposits 20,316   32,709 
Other investment balances 1,665  (829) 1,669 
Investment assets 645,948  68,741 730,966 

 
The changes in market value during the year comprise all increases and decreases in the market value of investments held at the year end, including realised gains 
and losses on sales of investments during the year. 
 
Transaction costs are included in th e cost of purchases and sales proceeds. Transaction costs include costs charged directly to the F und such a s fees, 
commissions, stamp duty and other fees. Transaction costs incurred during the year amounted to £162k (2011/12: £136k). In addition to the transaction costs 
disclosed above, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spre ad on investments within pooled investment vehicles. The amount of indire ct costs is not 
separately provided to the Fund. 
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Total fixed income securities 

 2013 2012 2011 
  £000s £000s £000s 

Fixed interest securities 56,740 53,371 74,010 
Index linked securities 111,825 97,631 82,116 

 168,565 151,002 156,126 
 

Fixed interest securities 
 2013 2012 2011 
   £000s £000s £000s 

  Government securities – UK - 1,615 22,487 
  Government securities – overseas 1,783 196 3,682 
  Corporate bonds - UK 54,957 51,560 47,841 
   56,740 53,371 74,010 

 
Index linked securities 
 2013 2012 2011 
  £000s £000s £000s 

Government securities – UK  111,557 97,631 80,816 
Corporate bonds 268 - 1,300 

   111,825 97,631 82,116 
 

Derivative contracts 
The Pension Board permits the u se of derivates in the Western Asset M anagement global bond 
portfolio. 

 
A summary of derivatives held is set out below: 
    2013       2012      2011 
   £000s       £000s     £000s 
Assets    
Futures 17 45 54
Forward foreign exchange currency contracts 2,934 24,510 27,868
Options - - 1
 2,951 24,555 27,923
Liabilities    
Futures (49) (32) (61)
Forward foreign exchange currency contracts (2,995) (24,457) (27,906)
 (3,044) (24,489) (27,967)
Net assets  
Futures (32) 13 (7)
Forward foreign exchange currency contracts (61) 53 (38)
Options - - 1
 (93) 66 (44)
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Futures 
Futures contracts held at the year-end are detailed further below: 
 
  Values at 31  March 2013
No. of 
Contracts 

 Notional 
cost

Expiration 
date

Asset Liability Net 
asset/ 

(liability)
  £000s £000s £000s £000s
Futures long      
38 Australian T bond 3,173 17 June 2013 - (1) (1)
24 German Euro  3,023    6 June 2013 16 - 16
2 US 10 year note 174  19 June 2013 1 - 1

Total Futures Long 17 (1) 16
Futures short   
51 UK long gilts  6,058 26 June 2013 - (48) (48)

Total Futures Short - (48) (48)
Total Futures 17 (49) (32)

 
Foreign exchange contracts 
Foreign Exchange contracts held at the year-end are detailed further below: 
    Values at 31  March 2013
No of contracts  Currency  Asset Liability Net asset
    £000s £000s £000s
2  Euro  456 (468) (12)
6  Sterling  2,478 (2,527) (49)
    2,934 (2,995) (61)

Objectives and policies for holding derivatives 
Most of the holding in derivatives is to hedge liabilities or hedge exposures to reduce risk in the fund. 
Derivatives may be used to g ain exposure to a n asset more efficiently than holding the underlying 
asset. The use of derivatives is managed in line wi th the investment management agreement agreed 
between the fund and the various investment managers. 

a) Futures  
The economic exposure represents the notional value of stock purchased under futures contracts and is 
therefore subject to market movements. 

b) Forward foreign currency  
In order to maintain appropriate diversification and to take advantage of overseas investment returns, 
fund’s bond portfolio uses forward foreign currency contracts 

 
Equities 
 2013 2012 2011 
  £000s £000s £000s 

 UK equities 32,014 26,921 24,299 
    Europe 17,969 15,801 15,007 
    Middle East 868 - - 
    North America 49,097 44,919 43,161 
    Japan 7,223 6,180 6,988 
    Pacific (excluding Japan) 4,314 3,830 3,834 
    Emerging markets - 1,007 - 
 111,485 98,658 93,289 
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Equity unit trusts 

2013 2012 2011 
 £000s £000s £000s 

UK 8,183 7,005 4,069 
World 180,060 150,906 123,359 
Emerging markets 8,940 8,324 - 

 197,183 166,235 127,428 
 

Property unit trusts 
 2013 2012 2011 

 £000s £000s £000s 

Commercial/industrial  47,183 52,123 51,134 
Venture property 1,731 1,922 2,785 
 48,914 54,045 53,919 

 
Private equity 
Investments in private equity funds are valued based upon the underlying investments within each fund. It is 
less easy to trade private equity than quoted investments. Therefore, when th e assets are realised the 
amount received may not necessa rily be the amount  that they are valued at a nd any difference co uld be 
significant. 

 
The Pension Fund ha s made 10 an nual subscriptions into a priv ate equity fund of funds manager. The 
Fund’s total commitment to these funds is $100 million (£62.6 million) of which $40.5 million (£25.4 million) 
remains uncommitted. 
 
Infrastructure fund 
In June 2 007 the Pension  Fund mad e a €22 million  (£18.3million) investment in the Arcu s European 
Infrastructure Fund. There are no further capital commitments in respect of this fund. 

 
Hedge funds 
 2013 2012 2011 
  £000s £000s £000s 

UK equity long short fund 37,556 32,672 34,778 
World market neutral fund 14,613 12,685 12,405 
Events Driven funds  32,860 35,460 36,815 
Global macro funds 41,987 32,631 30,545 

 127,016 113,448 114,543 
 

Exchange rate conversions on overseas holdings 
The dollar exchange rate has be en set at 0.658 566 (0.62588 2011/12) to £1 and the euro rate at 
0.845664 (0.83348 2011/12) to £1. 

 
Cash 
 2013 2012 2011 
 £000s £000s £000s 

Deposits held by fund managers 32,709 20,316 28,894 
 32,709 20,316 28,894 
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Other investment balances 
 2013 2012 2011 
 £000s £000s £000s 

Debtors    
Dividends and Interest receivable 1,438 2,422 2,657 
Tax recoverable 579 55 570 
Amounts receivable on pending sales - 283 387 
Other 18 45 - 
 2,035 2,805 3,614 
Creditors    
Margin monies  - - (61) 
Amounts due on pending purchases - (843) (2,756) 
Investment management fees (233) (218) (258) 
Other investment expenses  (133) (79) (70) 
 (366) (1,140) (3,145) 

Total other investment balances 1,669 1,665 469 
 

The Council delegates its investment management responsibilities by appointing professional fund managers. The 
portfolio by manager as at 31 March 2013 is shown below: 
Date 
Appointed 

Manager Mandate Market 
Value 

as at 31 
March 

2013 

 Market 
Value 

as at 31 
March 

2012 

 

   £000s % £000s % 
April 1991 RREEF* Property -  38,753 6.00 
 
April 2003 

Western Asset 
Management 

Bonds 100,319 13.72 88,542 13.71 

April 2003 Adam St Partners  Private equity 33,880 4.64 29,988 4.64 
Oct 2005  Blackrock* Global equities 

(passive) / UK  
and Government 
ILB  and property 

205,120 28.06 151,497 
 

23.45 

April 2007 International 
Public 
Partnerships 

UK equity share 
PFI share 

20,586 2.82 18,201 2.82 

June 2007 Arcus  Infrastructure 
Fund 

9,638 1.32 8,183 1.27 

July 2007 Numeric  Global Market 
Neutral – Hedge 
Fund 

14,613 2.00 12,685 1.96 

Oct 2007 Lansdowne Equities 
Long/short 

37,556 5.14 32,672 5.06 

Nov 2007 Trilogy Global equities 93,767 12.83 81,858 12.67 
Nov 2007 Record Active currency -  902 0.14 
Nov 2007 BNP- Overlay Active currency -  1,441 0.22 
Nov 2008 Avenue Event driven 26,385 3.61 23,833 3.69 
Jan 2010 York Capital Event driven 14,049 1.92 11,627 1.80 
Jan 2010 Legal and 

General  
UK property 19,661 2.69 19,192 2.97 

Aug 2010 MFS Global equities 55,791 7.63 44,929 6.96 
Aug 2010 Lazard Global equities 47,584 6.51 41,229 6.38 
Jan 2011 Blue Crest Global macro  24,519 3.35 16,246 2.52 
Jan 2011 Brevan Howard Global macro 17,468 2.39 16,385 2.54 
 Goldman Sachs 

& other balances 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 

10,030 1.37 7,785 1.20 

Total investment assets  730,966 100.00 645,948 100.00 
* RREEF was purchased by Blackrock in December 2012, with funds previously held by RREEF transferring to an equivalent 
Blackrock fund.
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10. Current assets  
 

2013 2012 2011 
£000s £000s £000s 

Contributions due from employers 205 206 293 
Contributions due from members 69 73 102 

274 279 395 
Cash held by London Borough of Enfield - 70 - 
Cash balance 40 787 65 

40 857 65 
Total current assets 314 1,136 460 

 
11. Current liabilities 

 
 2013 2012 2011 
 £000s  £000s £000s 

Death benefits (60) (133) (190) 
Audit fees (26) (39) (39) 
Other  (11) (35) (461) 

 (97) (207) (690) 
  

The creditors and debtors can be summarised to comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as 
follows: 

 
 2013 2012 2011 
Debtors £000s £000s £000s 

External managers    
Other entities and individuals 2,035 2,805 3,614 
Administering Authority    
Other entities and individuals 274 279 395 
Local Authority - 70 - 
 274 349 395 

Total Debtors 2,309 3,154 4,009 
 

 2013 2012 2011 
Creditors £000s £000s £000s 

External managers    
Other entities and individuals (336) (1,140) (3,145) 
Administering Authority    
Other entities and individuals (95) (207) (229) 
Local authority (2) - (461) 
 (97) (207) (690) 

Total Creditors (433) (1,347) (3,835) 
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12. Financial Instruments 
 

a. Classification of financial instruments 
Accounting policies describe how different asset classes of financial instruments are measured and how 
income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the 
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category. No financial assets were reclassified during the 
account period. 

 
 2012/13 2011/12 
Investment type Designated 

at Fair Value 
Loans and 

Receivables 
Financial 
Liabilities 

at 
amortised 

cost 

Designated 
at Fair Value 

Loans and 
Receivables 

Financial 
Liabilities 

at 
amortised 

cost 
 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s 
Financial Assets     
Fixed income  168,565  151,002  
Derivative contracts 2,951  24,555  
Equities  111,485  98,658  
Equity - unit trusts 197,183  166,235  
Property unit trusts  48,914  54,045  
Private equity  33,880  29,988  
Infrastructure fund  9,638  8,183  
Currency funds -  2,342  
Hedge funds  127,016  113,448  
 699,632 - - 648,456 - -

Cash  32,709  20,316 
Other investment 
balances 

 
2,035 

  
2,805 

 

Debtors  314  1,136 
Financial Assets 701,667 33,023 - 651,261 21,452 -

Financial 
Liabilities 

    

Derivative contracts (3,044)  (24,489)  
Other investment 
balances 

 
(366) 

  
(1,140) 

 

Creditors   (97)   (207)
Financial Liabilities (3,410) - (97) (25,629) - (207)
Net Assets 698,257 33,023 (97) 625,632 21,452 (207)

 
 

b. Net gains and losses on financial instruments 
The following table summarises the net gains and losses on financial instruments. As the majority of the 
financial assets and liabilities are reco gnised at fair va lue, these relate to gains or losses on disposal and 
changes in market value of investments. 

 
 31  March 2013 31  March 2012 
 £000’s £000s 
Fair value  69,570 30,497
Loans and receivables (829) (4,829)
 68,741 25,668

 
c. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
The following table summarises the carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities by class of 
instrument compared with their fai r values. The f air value may differ from  the ca rrying value where an 
investment is in a n asset that is not traded such as a local authority company. As at year end there was no 
difference between carrying value and fair value. 
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 Carrying value 
and fair value 

Carrying value 
and fair value 

 31 March 2013 31  March 2012 
 £000s £000s 
Financial Assets  
Fair value  701,667 651,261
Loans and receivables 33,023 21,452
Total financial assets 734,690 672,713
Financial liabilities  
Fair value (3,410) (25,629)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (97) (207)
Total financial liabilities (3,507) (25,836)
 731,183 646,877

 
d. Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value 

The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into th ree levels, according to th e quality and 
reliability of information used to determine fair values. 

 
Level 1  
Financial instruments at level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices 
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, 
quoted fixed securities, quoted index linked securities and unit trusts.  

 
Listed investments are shown at bid  prices. The bid value of the investment is based on the bid market 
quotation of the relevant stock exchange.  
 
Level 2 
Financial instruments at L evel 2 are th ose where quoted market prices a re not available; for example, 
where an in strument is trade d in a market that is  not co nsidered to be active, or where valu ation 
techniques are used to d etermine fair value an d where these techniques use inputs that are ba sed 
significantly on observable market data.  

 
Level 3  
Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on 
the instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data.  

Such instruments include unquoted equity investments and hedge fund, which are valued using various 
valuation techniques that require significant judgement in determining appropriate assumptions.  

The values of the investment in private equity are based on valuations provided by the general partners to 
the private equity funds in which Enfield Pension Fund has invested.  

These valuations are prepared in a ccordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital  
Valuation Guidelines, which follow the valuation principles of IFRS and US GAAP.  

The values of the investm ent in hed ge funds a re based on the net asset val ue provided by the fund  
manager. Assurances over the valuation are gained from the independent audit of the value.  

 
The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund grouped 
into levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable. 
 
 

 Quoted 
market 
price

Using 
observable 

inputs

With significant 
unobservable 

inputs 

 
Total 

 
Values at 31  March 2013 Level 1 

£000s 
Level 2 
£000s 

Level 3 
£000s 

 
£000s 

Financial assets   
Fair value  479,268 178,881               43,518 701,667 
Loans and receivables   33,023 - - 33,023 
Total financial assets 512,291 178,881                43,518 734,690 
    
Financial Liabilities    
Fair value  (366) (3,044) - (3,410) 
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 Quoted 
market 
price 

Using 
observable 

inputs 

With significant 
unobservable 

inputs 

 
Total 

 
Values at 31  March 2013 Level 1 

£000s 
Level 2 
£000s 

Level 3 
£000s 

 
£000s 

Financial Liabilities measured at 
amortised cost (97)

 
- 

 
- 

 
(97) 

Total financial liabilities (463) (3,044) - (3,507) 
    
Net financial assets 511,828 175,837 43,518 731,183 
 
 

 Quoted 
market 
price 

Using 
observable 

inputs 

With significant 
unobservable 

inputs 

 
Total 

 
Values at 31 March 2012 Level 1 

£000s 
Level 2 
£000s 

Level 3 
£000s 

£000s 

Financial assets   
Fair value  443,255 169,835 38,171 651,261 
Loans and receivables 21,452 - - 21,452 
Total financial assets 464,707 169,835 38,171 672,713 
    
Financial Liabilities    
Fair value  (25,629) - - (25,629) 
Financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost 

(207) - - (207) 

Total financial liabilities (25,836) - - (25,836) 
    
Net financial assets 438,871 169,835 38,171 646,877 
 
 

13. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 
 

Risk and risk management 
The Fund’s primary long t erm risk is that the Fund’s assets will be insufficient to meet its liabilities to m embers. 
The Fund maintains positions in a variety of financial instruments, as dictated by the Statement of Investment 
Principles (SIP) with the aim of minimising the ri sk of an overall redu ction in the value of the Fund a nd to 
maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole fund portfolio. 
 
Consequently, the Fund is exposed to credit and liquidity risk, as well as market risk including foreign exchange 
and interest rate risk. A policy of diversif ication for its asset classes and investment managers helps the Fund to 
lower risk arising from fi nancial instruments. Benchmarks for asset allocation and ta rgets against which 
investment managers are expected to perform are further measures put in place to manage risk. 
 
The management of risk is a key objective of the Fund and is part of the ongoing decision making process for the 
Pension Fund Sub-Committee. Risk management policies, such as the Risk Regi ster for the Pension Fund, 
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Council’s pensions operations. Measures to control and manage risks 
are also included within the risk register. Polices and the Risk Register are reviewed by the Pension Board and 
also on a more frequent basis as required. 
 
 
a. Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that  the fair value of future ca sh flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk includes interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risk. The 
Fund holds a variety of investments which expose it to market risk and details o f the Fund’s investment po rtfolio 
are set out in Note 9. 

 
The Fund manages exposure to market risk in the following main areas: 
 

 Regularly reviewing the pension fund investment strategy. 
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 Regular monitoring of asset allocation and investment performance. 

 A policy of security and manager diversification. 

On a daily basis Investment Managers will manage market risk in line with policies and procedures put in place in 
the Investment Manager Agreement and ensure the agreed limit on maximum exposure to any one issuer or any 
class of asset is not breached. 

 
Other price risk 

 
Other price risk is the risk that value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other 
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). 

 
Price risk is managed by constructing a diversified  portfolio of investments traded on various markets. The 
Pension Board regularly reviews its a sset allocation policy and seeks to di versify the a ssets that it hold s. 
Diversification helps to ensure that the Fund ha s a balance of investments which offer different levels of risk a nd 
return. Pooled Funds are used where these represent the most efficient means of investing in an asset class. The 
breakdown between managers and asset class can be seen in Note 9. 

 
Other price risk – sensitivity analysis 
Potential price changes are determined based on the observed historical volatility of asset class returns. ‘Riskier’ 
assets such as equities will display greater potential volatility than bonds as an example, so the overall outcome 
will depend largely on funds’ asset allocations. 

 
Asset Type Potential market 

Movements (+/-) 
Equities  14.8% 
UK bonds  4.9% 
Overseas bonds  5.9% 
Index linked  6.8% 
Pooled property  5.4% 
Alternatives  8.3% 
Cash and cash equivalents  0.0% 

 
The potential volatilities are co nsistent with a one standard deviation movement in the cha nge in value of the 
assets over the latest three years. This can then be applied to the period end asset mix as follows: 

 
Asset Type Balance at 

31 March  
2013 

Change Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

Investment portfolio assets: £000s  £000s £000s 
Equities 308,668 14.8% +45,683 -45,683 
UK bonds  54,957 4.9% +2,693 -2,693 
Overseas bonds  1,783 5.9% +105 -105 
Index linked  111,825 6.8% +7,604 -7,604 
Pooled property  48,914 5.4% +2,641 -2,641 
Alternatives  170,534 8.3% +14,154 -14,154 
Cash and cash equivalents  32,709   0.0% - - 
Other investment balances 1,669 0.0% - - 
Derivatives (Net) (93) 0.0% - - 
Total assets available to pay benefits 730,966  +72,880 -72,880 

 
 

Asset Type Balance at 
31 March  

2012 

Change Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

Investment portfolio assets: £000s  £000s £000s 
Equities  264,893 14.8% +39,204 -39,204 
UK bonds  53,176 4.9% +2,606 -2,606 
Overseas bonds  196 5.9% +11 -11 
Index linked  97,630 6.8% +6,639 -6,639 
Pooled property  54,045 5.4% +2,918 -2,918 
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Asset Type Balance at 
31 March  

2012 

Change Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

Investment portfolio assets: £000s  £000s £000s 
Alternatives  153,961 8.3% +12,779 -12,779 
Cash and cash equivalents  20,316 0.0% - - 
Other investment balances 1,665 0.0% - - 
Derivatives (Net) 66 0.0% - - 
Total assets available to pay benefits 645,948  +64,157 -64,157 

 
The calculations assume that these changes occur immediately. In practice any changes will occur over time and 
the actual funding level will therefore also be affected by  a number of factors includi ng further benefit accruals,  
contributions and differences between expected and actual investment returns. The calculations assume that all 
other factors and assumptions, in particular exchange rates, remain unchanged. 
Private  equity is shown as an alternative asset. 

 
Interest rate risk 
 
The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. These 
investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risk that the fair value of fu ture cash flows of a  
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
 
The Fund’s interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the Council and its investment advisors in accordance with 
the Fund’s risk management strategy, including monitoring the exposure to in terest rates and assessment of 
actual interest rates against the relevant bench mark. Investment Managers will also manage interest rate risk in 
line with policies and procedures put in place in the Investment Manager Agreement. Pension Fund cash held by 
the Administering Authority is invested in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy. 
 
The Fund’s direct exposure to interest rate movement as at 31  March 2013 and 31 March 2012 is set out below. 
These disclosures present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value: 

 
 31  March 2013 31March 2012 
 £000s £000s 
Cash deposits 32,709 20,316 
Cash balances 40 787 
Fixed interest securities 168,565 151,002 
Total 201,314 172,105 

 
Interest rate risk - sensitivity analysis 
 
The Council recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund and the value of the 
net assets available to pay benefits. A 110 basis points (bps) movement in interest rates is consistent with the 
level of sensitivity applied as part of the Fund’s risk management strategy. 
 
The analysis that follows assume s that all other variabl es, in particular ex change rates, remain constant, and 
shows the effects in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 100 bps change in interest rates:- 
 

 
Asset Type Carrying 

amount as at 
31 March 

2013 

Change in year in the net 
assets available to pay 

benefits 
+100 bps       -100 bps 

 £000s £000s £000s 
Cash deposits 32,709 +327 -327 
Cash balances 40 - - 
Fixed interest securities 168,565 +1,686 -1,686 
Total 201,314 +2,013 -2,013 
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Asset Type Carrying 
amount as at 

31st March  2012 

Change in year in the net 
assets available to pay 

benefits 
+100 bps       -100 bps 

 £000s £000s £000s 
Cash deposits 20,316 +203 -203 
Cash balances 787 +8 -8 
Fixed interest securities 151,002 +1,510 -1,510 
Total 172,105 +1,721 -1,721 

 
Currency risk 
 
The Pension Fund may invest in financial in struments and transact in den ominated currencies other than its 
functional currency (£UK). As a result the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative 
to other foreign currencies may change in a mann er that has an adverse impact on the portion of the F und’s 
assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than sterling. 
 
Investment Managers will manage foreign exchange risk by the means of passive hedging and enter into forward 
currency contracts to protect assets which have exposure to currencies other than sterling (further details are in 
Note 9). 
 
The following table summarises the Fund’s fair value exposure to assets denominated in currencies other than 
pound sterling as at 31st March 2013 and as at the previous period end: 
 
Currency Exposure Asset Value 

as at 
31 March 2013 

Asset Value 
as at 

31  March 2012 
 £000s £000s 
Australian Dollar 375 682 
Canadian Dollar 129 1,662 
Danish Krone 665 453 
Euro 22,342 17,900 
Hong Kong Dollar 3,022 2,385 
Israeli Shekel 880 - 
Japanese Yen 7,226 6,286 
Mexico Dollar - 487 
New Taiwan Dollar 55 106 
Norwegian Krone - 882 
South African Rand - 521 
South Korean Won 917 763 
Swedish Krona 1,319 1,865 
Swiss Franc 3,452 2,899 
Turkish Lira 430 - 
US Dollar 140,223 121,152 
Total change in assets 181,035 158,043 

 
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and that  these 
changes occur immediately. In practice any changes will occur over time.  
 
b. Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk tha t a counte rparty to a financ ial instrument will fail  to discharg e an oblig ation or 
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund. 
 
The market value of investments generally reflects an assessment of credit risk in their pricing and consequently 
the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities. 
 
The Pension Fund reviews its exposure to credit and counterparty risk through its external Investment Managers 
by the review of the Managers’ annual internal control reports to ensure that Managers exercise reasonable care 
and due diligence in their activities for the Pension Fund, such as in the selection and use of brokers, clearing 
houses, counterparties and other appointees with whom transactions on behalf of the Fund take place. 
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A counterparty rating is one measure of credit risk. The carrying amounts of investment assets best represent the 
maximum credit risk exposure at the Net Asset Statement date. 
 
A majority of the assets of the Fund are hel d by the Custodian, StateStreet Global Services. Bankruptcy or 
insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund’s rights with respect to securities held by the Custodian to be 
delayed or limited. Cash not forming part of the investment assets is held in the Fund’s current accounts with the 
HSBC and Goldman Sachs money market fund. 

 
The Pension Board  and senior officers monitor this risk by monitoring the credit rating and finan cial positions of 
the Custodian and banks the Fund uses. 

 
Any excess cash from th e Fund’s bank accounts is invested in accordance with th e Pension Fund’s Treasury 
Management Strategy, prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Prudential Code and CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice. The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the criteria for investing and selecting investment 
counterparties and details the approach to managing risk for the Fund’s exposure. 

 
Summary  2013 2012 
 Fitch rating £000s £000s 
Cash  (current Assets)    
HSBC AA- 40 787 
Cash deposits (Investment 
assets) 

  

Goldman Sachs money market 
fund 

AAAm 10,328 8,031 

Blackrock money market fund AAAm 4,420 201 
Cash held by fund managers and 
custodian  

 
AA- 17,961

 
12,084 

  
Total 32,749 21,103 

 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk corresponds to the Pens ion Fund’s ability to meet i ts financial obligations when they fall  due with 
sufficient and readily available cash resources.  
 
The Fund has holdings in private equity, hedge fu nds infrastructure funds, and property funds which can be 
considered ‘illiquid’. The F und, however, has sufficient investments that are of l isted securities (on major security 
exchanges) which are considered readily realisable. 
 
The Fund maintains investments in cash a nd cash equivale nts outside of t he investment assets h eld by the  
Custodian that are highly liquid and can be used for payables and expenses such as pension payments, transfers 
out, etc. The Fund’s cash position is monitored on a daily basis by both the pension administrator and the Financial 
Services team of the Council. 
 
Management prepares periodic cash flow forecasts to understand and manage the timing of the Fund’s cash flows. 
The Pension Board with the Fund’s Actuary regularly review the Funding Strategy which considers the results of 
the triennial valuations to ensure the l ong-term solvency of the Fund as a whole, and that suffi cient funds are  
available to meet all benefits as they fall due for pay ment. This ensures that sufficient cash reserves are available 
to meet forecasted cash outflows. 

 
14. Related party transactions 

 
The Fund is admin istered by the  London Borough of Enfield. The Council is also the single largest employer of 
members of the pensio n fund and contributed £23.6 million to the Fund  in 2012/13 (£23.8million in 2011/12). 
Consequently there is a strong relationship between the Council and the Pension Fund. 
 
The Council incurred administration costs, it also pays for pensioners payments on behalf of the Fund. These costs are 
consequently reimbursed by the Fund. Part of the Pension Fund cash holdings are invested on the money markets by 
the treasury management operations of the London Borough of Enfield. 
 
During the year, no member or Council Officer with direct responsibility for pension fund  issues had undertaken any 
declarable material transactions with the Pension Fund.  
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The Council has decided that Councillors should not be allowed to join the LGPS scheme and receive pension benefits 
from the F und. The employee representatives on the Pension Board Pauline Kettless and Paul Bishop are both 
members of the  Pension Fund. 
 
No allowances are paid to Members directly in respect of the Pensions Board. The Chair of the Pension Board is paid a 
special responsibility allowance. 
 
Several employees of the London Borough of Enfield hold key positions in the financial management of the Fund. As at 
31 March 2013 these employees included: 
 
James Rolfe – Director of Finance Resources & Corporate Services 
Richard Tyler – Assistant Director of Finance 
Julie Barker – Head of Exchequer  
Paul Reddaway - Head of Finance - Treasury 
 
All of these managers are also members of the Pension Fund.  
 
The disclosure required by Regulation 7(2)-(4) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations can be found in the 
main accounts of the London Borough of Enfield. 

 
15. Actuarial position 
 

The Scheme Regulations require that a full actuarial valuation is carried out every third year. The purpose of this is to 
establish that the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund (the Fund) is able to meet its liabilitie s to past and present 
contributors and to review employer contribution rates. The last full actuarial investigation into the financial position of 
the Fund was completed as at 31 March  2010 by Aon Hewitt Limited, in accordance with Regulation 36 of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008. 
 

Actuarial Position 

The valuation as at 31 M arch 2010 showed that the funding ratio of the Fund had decreased since the previous 
valuation with the ma rket value of the  Fund’s assets at that dat e (of £5 69.9M) covering 82% of the li abilities 
allowing, in the case of current contributors to the Fund, for future increases in pensionable remuneration. 

The valuation also showed that the required level of contributions to be paid to the Fund by participating Employers 
(in aggregate) with effect from 1 April 2011 was as set out below: 

 15.1% of pensionable pay to meet the liabilities arising in respect of service after the valuation date. 

      Plus 

 Monetary amounts to re store the a ssets to 100% of the liabilities in resp ect of service p rior to the 
valuation date over a recovery period of 20 years from 1 April 20 11, amounting to £7.8M in 2011/12, 
and increasing by 5.3% p.a. thereafter, before any phasing in or 'stepping' of contribution increases. 

This would imply an average employer contribution rate of about 20.4% of pensionable pay in total, if 
the membership remains broadly stable and pay increases are in line with t he rate assumed at the 
valuation of 5.3% p.a. 

The majority of Employers participating in the Fund pay different rates of contributions depending on their 
past experience, their current staff profile, and the recovery period agreed with the Administering Authority 
and any stepping of contribution increases that are agreed. 

The rates of contributions payable by each participating Employer over the period 1 April 2011 to 31 March 
2014 are set out in a certificate dated 30 March 2011 which is appended to Aon Hewitt's report of the same 
date on the actuarial valuation (the 'actuarial valuation report'). 

The contribution rates were calculated  taking account of the F und’s funding strategy as described in the 
Funding Strategy Statement, and for the majority of Employers using the projected unit actuarial method. 

The main actuarial assumptions were as follows: 
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Discount rate 

Scheduled Bodies 

Admission Bodies 

       In service: 

       Left service: 

 

 6.9% 

 

6.25% 

4.75% 

Rate of general pay increases . 5.3% 

Rate of increases to pensions in payment  3.3% 

Valuation of assets Market 
value 

 

Further details of the assumptions adopted for the valuation are set out in the actuarial valuation report. 

Contribution rates for all employe rs will be reviewe d at the next actuari al valuation of the Fund as at  
31 March 2013, preparation for which i s already under way. The formal actuarial valuation report and the 
Rates and Adjustment certificate setting out the employer contribution rates for the period from 1 April 2014 
to 31 March 2017 are required by the Regulations to be signed off by 31 March 2014. 

This statement has be en prepared by the Actuary to the Fund, Aon Hewitt Limited, for inclu sion in th e 
accounts of the Lond on Borough of Enfield Pensio n Fund. It provides a sum mary of the result s of the 
actuarial valuation which was carried out as at 31 March 2010. The valuation provides a snapshot of the 
funding position at the valuation date and is used to assess the future level of contributions required. 

This statement must not be con sidered without reference to Aon Hewitt's formal actuarial valuation report 
which details fully the context and limitations of the actuarial valuation. 

Aon Hewitt Limited does not accept any responsibility or liability to any party other than ou r client, London 
Borough of Enfield, in respect of this statement. 

The report on the a ctuarial valuation as at 3 1 March 2010 is available from Paul Red daway Head of 
Finance, London Borough of Enfield Civic Centre, PO Box 54, Silver Street, Enfield EN1 3XF. 

 

Actuarial position in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
 
In addition to disclosing the actuarial position of the Fund based on the results of the valuation carried out 
in accordance with the Local G overnment Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008, 
International Financial Reporting Standards require that disclosure is m ade of the Fun d's past service 
liabilities in a manner consistent with International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19), and the requirements 
of International Accounting Standard 26 (IAS26). 
 
It should be noted that some of the assumptions used when calculating liabilities u nder IAS19 are  
different compared to those when producing an on-going funding valuation under the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008. 
 
Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits 
 
Fair value of assets 
 

 31st March 
2010 
£m 

31st March 
2007 
£m 

Fair value of net assets 571.9 537.6 
Actuarial present value of pro mised 
retirement benefits (966.3) (691.7) 
Deficit in the Fund as measured for 
IAS26 purposes (394.4)  (154.1) 
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Assumptions 
The latest full triennial val uation of the  Fund's liabilities in accordance with t he requirements of IAS26  
took place as at 31 March 2010. The principal assumptions used by the Fund's ind ependent qualified 
actuaries were: 
 

 31 March 2010 
(% p.a.) 

31 March 2007 
(% p.a.) 

Discount rate 5.5 5.3 
RPI inflation 3.9 3.2 
CPI inflation 3.0 n/a 
Rate of increase to pensions in 
payment* 3.9 3.2 
Rate of increase to deferred 
pensions* 3.9 3.2 
Rate of general increases in 
salaries** 5.4 4.7 

*In excess of Guaranteed Minimum Pension increases in payment where appropriate 
 
**In addition, we have allowed for the same age related promotional salaries scales as used at the actuarial 
valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2007, as appropriate. 
 
Changes in benefits during the accounting period 
In the UK Budget Statement of 22  June 2010, the Chancellor of the Exch equer announced that, with 
effect from 1  April 2011,  the Govern ment will u se the Consumer Price Index (CPI)  f or the p rice 
indexation of benefits a nd tax credit s.  The CPI p rovides a more app ropriate measure of benefit an d 
pension recipients' inflation experiences than RPI,  because it exclud es the majority of housing costs 
faced by homeowners (low income households are subsidised separately through Housing Benefit, and 
the majority of pen sioners own their homes outright) and differences i n calculation mean it may be 
considered a better representation of the way consumers change their consumption patterns in response 
to price changes.  This will also ensure consistency with the measure of inflation used by the Bank Of 
England.  This change will aslo apply to public service pension through the statutory link to the indexation 
of the Se cond State Pen sion.  Th e Government is also reviewing how the CPI can be used for th e 
indexation of taxes and duties while protecting revenues. 
 
The switch to CPI as the basi s for future revaluatio n and pension increases has a significant impact on 
the actuarial present value of the promised retirem ent benfits.  T his is because all pensions, once they 
come into payment, and the deferred pension of former employees, will now be increased in line with an 
index that is expected, over the lo ng term, to be lo wer than the RPI index it replaces.  Thi s, in turn, will 
reduce the value of the benefits and hence the value placed on those benefits. 
 
The Fund's actuaries have estimated that had the switch to CPI been implemented as at 31 March 2010, 
the actuarial present value of the p romised retirement benefits would have reduced by £111.4m, i.e. the 
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits would have been £854.9m.  

 
Mortality 
As at 31 March 2010, future mortality improvements are expected to be in lin e with CMI 2009 lon g term 
improvement of 1.25% p.a. (31 March 2007: in line with medium cohort). 
 
Current life expectancy from age 65 is summarised below: 

 
 31 March 2010 31 March 2007 
Males Number Number 
Current age 65 

23.7 
18.4 (manuals) 
21.6 (others) 

Current age 45 
25.5 

19.4 (manuals) 
22.8 (others) 

Females   
Current age 65 

26.5 
22.2 (manuals) 
24.0 (others) 

Current age 45 
28.5 

23.2 (manuals) 
25.0 (others) 
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Commutation 
As at 31  March 2010, on retirement each member is a ssumed to exch ange 30% of th e maximum 
permitted amount of their past service pension rights, and 75% of the maximum permitted amount of their 
future service pension rights for an additional lump sum.  As at 31 March 2007, an allowance is included 
for 40% of future retirees to elect to take additional tax-free cash up to HMRC limits. 

 
 

16. International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective 
 

There are no  accounting standards that have be en issued but are not yet effective that impact o n the 
Enfield Council Pension Fund. 

 
17. Contingent liability 

 
The London Borough of Enfield has taken legal advice and requested that a claim be made on the Fund for 
a former employee (now a pensioner) that was found guilty of fraud against the London Borough of Enfield. 
The Council has made a £489k claim on the fund to recover the funds.  The matter is under appeal. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 
PENSION FUND 

Opinion on the pension fund financial statements 

We have audited the pension fund financial statements of the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund for 
the year en ded 31 M arch 2013 under the Audit  Commission Act 1998. The pension fund finan cial 
statements comprise the Fund Account, the Net Asse ts Statement and the re lated notes. The finan cial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012/13. 

This report is made solely to the members of the Lo ndon Borough of Enfield Pension Fund in accordance 
with Part II of the Audit Commission Act  1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 48 of the 
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 
2010. To the fullest extent  permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Authority and the Authority's Members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or fo r the 
opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of the Director of Finance, Resources and Customer Services and 
auditor 

As explained more fully in the St atement of the Dire ctor of Finance, Resources and Customer Services 
Responsibilities, the Di rector of Finance, Resources and Customer Services is responsible for the 
preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts, which includes the pension fund financial statements, 
in accordance with proper prac tices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they give  a true and fair vie w. Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to  comply with 
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the pension fund financial statements 

An audit involves obtaini ng evidence about the am ounts and disclosures in the financi al statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from mate rial misstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by th e Director of Finance, Resources and 
Customer Services; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the 
financial and non-financial information in the explanatory foreword to identify material inconsistencies with 
the audited financial statements. If we become aware of a ny apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

Opinion on other matters 

In our opi nion, the inform ation given i n the explan atory foreword for the financi al year f or which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
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Opinion on the pension fund financial statements 

In our opinion the pension fund’s financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year ended 31 
March 2013 and the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities as at 3 1 March 
2013 and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012/13. 

 

 
 
 
Giles M Mullins 
Director 
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 
 
Grant Thornton House 
202 Silbury Boulevard 
Central Milton Keynes 
MK9 1LW 

 
 
 
 
 



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2012/13 

 

1. Scope of Responsibility 

The London Borough of Enfield (“the Council”) commissions and delivers a range of services to the  
people of the Borough. We employ approximately 3,500 staff1 and work with our partners in the private, 
public and third sector to deliver our objectives. We are responsible for ensuring that our operations are 
conducted in accordan ce with the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded and  
properly accounted for, and used with maxi mum efficiency, economy and effectiveness. The Council 
also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure co ntinuous 
improvement in the way we exercise our functio ns, again having regard to a combin ation of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, and fac ilitating the eff ective exercise of its fu nctions, 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk and opportunities.  The Council has in place a 
governance framework which is consistent with the CIPFA/SOLACE framework ‘Delivering Good  
Governance in Local Government’.  

 

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework  

The governance framework comprises the syst ems and processes, culture and values for the direction 
and control of the Council and it s activities through which it  accounts to, engages with and leads its 
communities. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and t o 
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate cost-effective services.  

The system of internal control is a significant par t of that framework and is designed to manage risk to 
an acceptable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and 
can therefore only provide reasona ble and not  absolute a ssurance of effectiveness. The system of 
internal control is base d on an  ongoing process designed to ident ify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the Co uncil’s policies, aims an d objectives, to evaluat e the likelih ood of those risks 
being realised and the impact should they be re alised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and  
economically. This governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year en ding 31 
March 2013 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts 

 

3. Production of the Annual Governance Statement 

The Annual Governance Statement has been compiled by the Corporate Governance Division. A 
number of sources of information are used to prepare this statement, these include 

 Service Assurance statements that are completed on a bi-annual basis by each department. 
These statements cover a number of areas across the governance framework and enable 
departments to set out any areas that they are currently working on, to strengthen the 
framework. These statements have been reviewed and challenged by the Council’s Internal 
Audit team.  

 The 2012/13 Internal Audit Annual Report, including the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management’s opinion on the statement of internal control. 

 The Council’s Management Board (CMB), the Audit Committee and Performance Officers who 
oversee the assurance mechanisms of their service have been consulted to understand the 
various sources of assurance across the Council 

                                                            
1 Excludes approximately 6,000 local authority staff employed in schools. 129



 

4. The Governance Framework 

This section describes the key elements of the Council’s systems and processes that comprise the Council’s governance arrangements and which 
incorporate CIPFA’s good governance principles. 

Principle 1: Focusing on the corporate objectives and vision of the Council and the outcomes delivered to local people 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

Corporate vision and objectives 

We have a clear vision to make Enfield a better place to live and 
work. Underpinning this commitment there are three strategic 
aims including (1) Fairness for All, (2) Growth and Sustainability 
and (3) Strong Communities.  

The Council’s Business Plan sets out its major actions, working 
with its strategic partners and other stakeholders, to achieve 
these aims. 

Enfield 2020 is the Council’s sustainability programme and 
action plan which sets out actions to save money on energy bills, 
create local jobs, improve the environment, reduce waste and 
improve public health.  

Achievement of objectives  

The Council’s decision making process ensures that all member 
and officer decisions reference the Council’s aims, priorities and 
departmental objectives. In addition, manager HAY grade 
performance objectives are aligned to corporate objectives. 

The Council uses different performance measures (quality, best 
value for money, resident and customer satisfaction) to give an 
overview of the Council’s performance and stimulate 
improvement. 

The Council’s Leaner Programme provides the systems, training 
and development needed to make changes to achieve savings 
and efficiencies in order to meet the aims and objectives.  

One initiative, Customer First, aims to improve our customers' 

Reporting 

All reports to Council, Cabinet and to 
individual executive members for delegated 
action are required to be reviewed for all 
legal, financial, risk management and other 
relevant implications. They also must 
demonstrate synergy with the Council’s 
corporate objectives and related 
performance management process. 

Management information 

Information is published online on a 
quarterly basis reporting how the Council is 
performing against a number of key 
indicators.  

A Customer First Channel Demand 2012/13 
Annual Dashboard is published on the 
Council’s website and provides a summary 
of performance across the main access 
channels of web, telephone, email and 
face-to-face counter services. 

Internal Audit Plan 

The internal audit plan is developed using a 
risk based approach to identify the most 
significant risks that could prevent the 
Council from achieving its objectives.  

Customer Services Excellence 
Standard Accreditation 

The Council, as a whole, achieved 
Corporate Accreditation three years 
ago, along with the Customer 
Services Centre. Since then, the 
Department of Environment achieved 
accreditation and during 2012/13 the 
Department of Finance, Resources 
and Customer Services also achieved 
this accreditation. The Council is 
committed to excellence in Customer 
Service being recognised by external 
accreditation.   
Resident satisfaction levels 

During 2012, 1,150 residents were 
interviewed by ICM Research. The 
survey shows satisfaction among 
people using Enfield Council Services 
is at record levels and has increased 
to 72%. 

Financial resilience audit   

An external review was undertaken by 
Grant Thornton, the Council's external 
auditors, which concluded that, 
overall, whilst the Council faced some 
risks and challenges in the future, its 
historic arrangements for achieving 
financial resilience had been 
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Principle 1: Focusing on the corporate objectives and vision of the Council and the outcomes delivered to local people 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

experience of interacting with us by providing consistent 
messaging, 24-hour access to services and information, and 
resolution at the first point of contact.  

A new Risk Management strategy was rolled out during 2012/13 
to identify key risks and opportunities to assist the Council in 
achieving its objectives.  

 
 

 

Performance Assessment Review 
(PARs) 

Individual ratings discussed in the 
Performance Assessment Review (PARs) 
give assurances that staff are carrying out 
their work in accordance with Council 
priorities and objectives. 
Benchmarking  

Enfield's performance is compared to that 
of all other London Boroughs as part of the 
Council's membership of the London 
Authority Performance Solution (LAPS) 
benchmarking group. This group is 
coordinated by London Councils, and 
involves the collection of performance data, 
on a quarterly basis, from all London 
Boroughs, for approximately 30-40 key 
performance indicators across a range of 
council services.  
Comparative data from LAPS is included in 
the quarterly performance reports to 
Corporate Management Board (CMB) to 
demonstrate how Enfield is performing 
relative to other Boroughs. 

assessed as ‘exceeding adequate 
standards’.  
Leaner 

During 2012/13 the Leaner 
Programme achieved savings of 
approximately £2.4 million and, in 
addition, supported a number of other 
savings initiatives and transformation 
programmes across the Council. 
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Principle 2: Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles. 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

Roles and responsibilities 

The Council has 63 councillors elected every four years. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their 
ward and must agree to follow a code of conduct to ensure high 
standards in the way they undertake their duties and to ensure 
that the Council’s governance arrangements are adhered to.  

Functions and areas of responsibility of Chief Officers, including 
the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer (s151 officer), 
are documented in the Constitution.  

Formal procedures 

Formal procedures and rules govern the Council’s business 
including the Constitution, Scheme of Delegation, Financial 
Regulations and the Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs). During 
2012/13 there were a number of revisions made to some of these 
procedures, which are outlined below. 

Updated Financial Regulations - During 2012/13 the Council’s 
Financial Regulations, which form part of the Council’s 
Constitution, were updated. They contain both strategic and 
operational regulations that underpin the governance framework 
for the financial management of the Council and seek to ensure 
compliance with statutory requirements. 

The updated Financial Regulations include the adoption of the 
CIPFA Accounting Code of Practice based on International 
Financial Reporting Standards, consider changes and 
developments taking effect since the last review and strengthen 
the requirements for effective controls within the Council’s 
financial management procedures and clarity of roles and 
responsibilities. 

To ensure compliance with Financial Regulations, each 
Department is required to have an up to date Scheme of 
Delegation in place that identifies the specific officers authorised 

Overview and Scrutiny Panels – There 
are six Scrutiny Panels (overseen by an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)) 
that provide a strong and independent 
leadership role and allow citizens to have a 
greater say in Council matters by publicly 
scrutinising matters of local concern. Eight 
Councillors can ‘call-in’ for review by the 
OSC, a decision which has been made by 
the Cabinet but has not yet implemented. 
This increases transparent accountability in 
decision making. 

Equality Impact Assessments - Equality 
impact assessments are carried out for 
services on a retrospective three yearly 
basis. In addition if a service significantly 
changes, an impact assessment is 
undertaken. 
Health and Wellbeing Board - The Board 
has been formally established in 
accordance with the Health and Social Care 
Act 2012. The Board comprises 
representatives of the Council, NHS and 
other related partners and has responsibility 
to ensure that the Council and Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) are 
commissioning in line with the Joint Health 
Wellbeing Strategy. 

Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) - The 
Board is a multi agency partnership 
concerned with the safeguarding of 
vulnerable adults in Enfield. The Board has 
the strategic responsibility for overseeing 

Scrutiny and Community Outreach 
Awards 

The Council has received two national 
excellence awards for Scrutiny and 
Community Outreach for bringing 
community engagement into the 
democratic core. 

Equality Framework 

The Local Government Association has 
accredited Enfield Council with the 
‘Excellent’ level under the Equality 
Framework for Local Government. This 
makes us one of only 12 local authorities in 
the country to have attained this 
accreditation - the highest level of 
accreditation for equalities work. 
The Council’s Equality and Diversity 2012 
Annual Report was presented to the OSC 
in June 2013.  

Complaints - Ofsted inspection 

Schools and Children’s Services follows 
the statutory framework for complaint 
handling (which is outside the corporate 
complaint process). Ofsted’s review 
identified that the management of SCS 
complaints in Enfield is very effective and 
close working amongst staff ensures that 
responses to complaints are thorough and 
consistent.  

Enfield Homes  

A report on the future of Enfield Homes 
was presented to Cabinet in 2012, which 
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Principle 2: Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles. 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

to take decisions and sets out the scope and extent of their 
authority in applying the Regulations. 

Updated Contract Procedures Rules (CPRs) - Amended CPRs 
were considered and approved by the Audit Committee on 4 April 
2012. The CPRs are reviewed on an annual basis, and during 
2012/13 there was a fundamental rewrite of the CPRs to take into 
account findings from an internal audit of Procurement, 
undertaken in May 2012; the development of the shared 
procurement service with London Borough of Waltham Forest; a 
general need to simplify CPRs and support them with separate 
best practice guidance; and supporting the local economy through 
greater access to Council contract opportunities. 

Changes in Governance Mechanism 

Enfield Homes - The Council’s arms length management 
company, Enfield Homes, manages the housing stock and is 
delivering decent homes across the borough.  
A Council Assistant Director took up the position of Joint Chief 
Operating Officer on 11 March 2013. Discussions have taken 
place to redefine the role of the former Housing Services Board, 
as a key element of the governance of the HRA Business Plan. 
Membership will include the Chair of Enfield Homes, as well as 
other tenants/ leaseholders and independents from the Board.  

The Government’s new HRA Self-Financing regime began, as 
planned, on 1 April 2012. Enfield Council made a smooth 
transition from the old “subsidy” system, and its first 30-Year HRA 
Business Plan and Asset Management Strategy produced under 
Self-Financing were signed off by the Council in September 2012. 

Moving into 2013/14, the Council intends to further develop its 
governance structures to include more stakeholders in the regular 
monitoring and influencing of its plans. 

Public Health - From 1 April 2013, the Public Health team 

and developing the safeguarding adult’s 
arrangements across the borough. 

Local Safeguarding Children’s board – 
The Board exists as a statutory body and is 
independently chaired. It has a range of 
roles including developing policies and 
procedures and scrutinising and 
challenging local safeguarding practice 
across its partner agencies.  

Enfield Homes Management agreement 

The management agreement sets out the 
arrangements through which Enfield Homes 
and the council will co-operate for the 
management of the Housing Revenue 
Account. In addition a joint 2013-15 delivery 
plan has been developed which sets out the 
key activities and actions to improve 
services for tenants and leaseholders and 
to take the organisation forward. 

The newly appointed Joint Chief Operating 
Officer sits on the Council’s Health, 
Housing and Adult Social Care 
Departmental Management Team (DMT) 
and is required to report Enfield Homes’ 
performance and financial monitoring which 
is scrutinised in the same way as other 
Council services.  
The arrangements for the provision of 
internal audit services are delivered by the 
Council’s Internal Audit service. An annual 
report is produced and is presented to 
Enfield Homes’ Finance and Audit 
Committee as well as the Council’s Audit 

made a number of recommendations. One 
of these related to looking for further 
integration of services between the Council 
and Enfield Homes. This will help to 
reduce duplication and provide more joined 
up services for tenants.  
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Principle 2: Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles. 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

officially joined the Council. The role of the Public Health team is 
to lead the Health and Wellbeing agenda and reduce health 
inequalities (identified in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, 
carried out in partnership with the National Health Service (NHS)).  
The Director of Public Health is a statutory chief officer of their 
authority and the principal adviser on all health matters, to elected 
members and officers, with a leadership role spanning all three 
domains of public health: health improvement, health protection 
and healthcare public health. 

The Director of Public Health’s role is to ensure that the Local 
Authority has the appropriate capability and focus within the 
Public Health Directorate and ensure that Local Authority 
objectives are met in line with its new mandatory and non 
mandatory responsibilities. 

Committee. 
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Principle 3: Promoting the values of the Council and demonstrating good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

The Constitution includes the financial, property and contract 
regulations, the Members and Officers Codes of Conduct, 
members’ allowances and expenses, a member/officer protocol, 
guidance on use of IT for members, guidance to officers and 
members representing the Council on outside bodies and 
Partnership Procedure Rules. 
The members’ statutory register of interests and related party 
transactions are updated at least annually. Councillors are also 
reminded annually of their obligations regarding the receipt of gifts 
and hospitality.  
Members’ code of conduct 

The purpose of the Members’ Code of Conduct is to assist 
member’s in discharging their obligations to the Authority, the 
local communities and the public at large by: 

 setting out the standards of conduct that are expected of 
members when acting in that capacity; and 

 providing the openness and accountability necessary to 
reinforce public confidence in the way members perform 
activities. 

The Code of Conduct is reviewed annually and further changes 
are due to be made following a review of the code of conduct and 
recommendations presented to full council.  
Officers code of conduct 

This code of conduct applies to all employees of the Council. The 
purpose of the code is to ensure high standards, and to avoid 
both impropriety and any appearance of impropriety. This code of 
conduct is provided to everyone who is employed by the Council 
so that they know the high standards that are expected of them 
and that they are treated fairly. 

Councillor Conduct Committee 

The Council has established a Councillor 
Conduct Committee to implement the 
relevant requirements of Section 28 of the 
Localism Act 2011. These include 
arrangements for dealing with allegations 
that a councillor or co-opted member has 
failed to comply with the Authority’s Code of 
Conduct. The Councillor Conduct 
Committee comprises four members of the 
Council and two independent persons. It 
deals with promoting high standards of 
conduct, complaints against councillors and 
issues concerning the members’ Code of 
Conduct.  
Monitoring Officer Meetings 

Through the monthly Monitoring Officer 
Meetings, chaired by the Chief Executive, 
the Council has a well established and 
effective process for reviewing and 
monitoring governance and internal control 
compliance issues. Such matters can also 
be reported to the Audit Committee on a 
regular basis, which may also request 
officers to attend, in order to challenge them 
on improvements made in that area. 
This forum provides assurance that risks 
are being identified and driven forward to 
invoke changes and improvements within 
the Council. 

Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) 

The LGO have issued a letter confirming 
that, during 2012/13, they received 80 
complaints relating to Enfield Council. This 
is consistent with the average number 
received across other local authorities 
(79). (Note: The LGO no longer provide 
detail on the number of complaints upheld 
in the annual report to the Council.) 
External quality assurance audit of 
safeguarding adults  

An external quality assurance review of 
safeguarding arrangements for adults at 
risk of harm was undertaken in March and 
April 2013. The review identified the 
following positive improvements:   
- There is better recording and follow-

through action, in relation to individuals 
or organisations that have caused 
harm. 

- There has been some improvement in 
protection planning however more can 
be done in the medium to-long term.  
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Principle 4: Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and management of risk and opportunities 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

Transparent decision making 

The Council has a Cabinet/Leader model of decision making with 
a strong and influential scrutiny function. This is contained within 
the Constitution which is regularly reviewed by a cross-party 
group of leading members. This is available on the Council’s 
website and intranet. The roles and responsibilities of the full 
Council, Cabinet and Council officers are set out within the 
Scheme of Delegation in Part 3 of the Constitution. Detailed 
guidance notes in relation to all aspects of the decision making 
process (e.g. Forward Plan, report writing, call-in) are available on 
the Council’s Intranet. Annual briefings are given to staff. 
The Key Decision list is published monthly and sets out the key 
decisions to be taken by the Council on a monthly basis. This is a 
public document, available 14 days before its publication date. 
Key decisions in Enfield relate to expenditure/income of £250,000 
or above and/or issues that are likely to have a significant impact 
in one or more wards. 
Scrutiny 

Scrutiny provides a constructive challenge to the Executive 
through its reviews and recommendations. The Council also 
operates a call-in process which allows members to call to 
account decisions taken by the Cabinet collectively and 
individually (or in the case of officers, a key decision). Decisions 
taken by members, plus officer key decisions, are published twice 
weekly and made available to members, officers and the 
community.  
Scrutiny also adopts a community leadership role when required. 
The community and the general public are encouraged to 
participate in the scrutiny process, for example through co-options 
and public meetings. They are also permitted to raise issues at 
panel meetings. 
Scrutiny also plays an important part in the annual budget 
process through the Budget Commission, which is a dedicated 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Leader 
and Deputy Leader attend the Commission to present the 
Cabinet’s proposals and answer questions from councillors and 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)  

This committee coordinates the work of the 
six Scrutiny Panels, considers matters 
called in by Councillors, receives petitions, 
provides Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) - 
a service that provides ward councillors 
with the ability to raise local issues of 
concern formally through scrutiny, 
scrutinises the annual budget and produces 
an Annual Report. In addition the OSC has 
set up a Budget Consultation Meeting to 
consider the proposals within the Council’s 
2013/14 budget information and 
consultation paper. 
Internal Audit  

The arrangements for the provision of 
internal audit are delivered by the Director 
of Finance, Resources and Customer 
Services through the Corporate 
Governance Division. This is managed by 
the Assistant Director, Corporate 
Governance. Within that Division, the 
internal audit function is managed 
independently by the Head of Internal Audit 
and Risk Management who has direct 
reporting lines to the Section 151 officer on 
relevant issues, as well as to the Chief 
Executive and Chair of the Audit 
Committee, in accordance with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government.  
The Council has a co-sourced internal audit 
contract with PwC which allows the Council 
to draw down on specialist skills and 
knowledge.  
Audit Committee 

Internal audit 

Based on the work undertaken during the 
year, the opinion of the Head of Internal 
Audit and Risk Management is that the 
systems of internal control continue to be 
adequate, reducing the likelihood of 
significant risks of a strategic, operational 
and financial nature from materialising.  

Comparison of assurance levels from 
internal audit work 

 Percentage of audits 

Assurance level 12/13 11/12 10/11 

High  3 1 3 

Reasonable 51 51 62 

Limited 9 19 9 

No  1 1 0 

N/A Management letter 17 10 0 

Sub total 82 82 74 

Deferred/Cancelled 18 18 26 

Total 100 100 100 

Service Assurance 

There is a Service Assurance process that 
involves holding meetings with directors to 
better understand the risks they are 
currently managing, and to help 
management understand areas of 
heightened risk arising from the work of 
Internal Audit. Directors are required to 
complete a self assessment to assure 
themselves that key controls are operating 
as intended across the Department. The 
Service Assurance Self Assessments are 
reviewed by the Head of Internal Audit and 
Risk Management, are challenged to 
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Principle 4: Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and management of risk and opportunities 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 
the public. Consultation on the budget is also carried out through 
an information booklet and via Area Forums. 
Risk and opportunity management 

Risk and opportunity management is integrated into departmental 
planning. Risks and opportunities together with relevant actions 
are reviewed each quarter. The Risk Manager offers support to 
Departmental Management Teams. In addition to minimise risk, 
there has been an increased emphasis on maximisation of 
opportunity arising from change. 
Identified risks help inform the internal audit plan and internal 
audit adopt a risk based approach to their reviews and 
recommendations. 
Schools Causing Concern Group 

The aim of the Schools Causing Concern group is to enhance the 
intelligence that the School Improvement Service already holds 
on schools (excluding academies) through School Improvement 
Advisor visits, inspection and performance data with information 
from other Council services. This supports the Intervention and 
Support Strategy which sets out the process by which the Local 
Authority works with its schools to ensure that they continue to 
provide the highest quality education and best outcomes for our 
children and young people. 
Safeguarding Information Panel  

The Safeguarding Information Panel is independently chaired and 
its members include Enfield Officers, Care Quality Commission 
Inspectors and Enfield Clinical Commissioning Group. The aim of 
the panel is to share information on Enfield providers across 
organisations and to identify the need for intervention with 
individual providers and where appropriate make referrals and 
recommendations to- providers, key stakeholders and both 
internal and external partners that will assist in information 
gathering, reducing risk to service users and drive up the quality 
of services and prevent abuse.  
 

The Council has an independent Audit 
Committee set up in accordance with 
CIPFA guidance to ensure best practice in 
corporate governance and to enable the 
Council to discharge its fiduciary 
responsibilities in preventing fraud and 
corruption and arranging proper 
stewardship of public funds. The Audit 
Committee also provides independent 
assurance to the Council on risk 
management and over the design and 
effectiveness of the internal control 
arrangements that the Council has in place. 

The Committee has an agreed work 
programme that is agreed annually and 
reported to Council, and produces an 
annual report.  
Risk Management  
In January 2013, the Council rolled out a 
new Risk Management Strategy. The Risk 
Manager has also undertaken an exercise 
to identify our major partnerships, to raise 
awareness of the risks of these 
partnerships, and there is ongoing work to 
ensure that these risks are managed 
appropriately. 
 

Counter Fraud arrangements  
The Council has an established Counter 
Fraud team, covering all types of fraud 
including benefits, internal, housing and 
local council tax scheme fraud. 
The Council takes a zero tolerance 
approach to fraud and corruption. Through 
the application and delivery of the Council’s 
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy and 

ensure that results are in line with audit 
findings during the year, and to ensure the 
assurance obtained is taken into account 
for the Internal Audit Opinion and Annual 
Governance Statement. This process also 
informs the annual risk assessment 
process when developing the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan.  

Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee 2012/13 Annual 
Report was considered at the Audit 
Committee on 9 July 2013. The report 
details the activities that the Audit 
Committee has carried out during 2012/13 
to effectively carry out their role.  
Risk Management 

During 2012/13 an external review was 
undertaken by PwC over the Council’s risk 
management framework to understand and 
examine existing risk management delivery 
structures and to make recommendations, 
based on observations and experience, on 
how the Council can improve and 
strengthen its risk management processes. 
An Action Plan was produced recording 
findings and suggested actions which have 
been agreed by management. 
Through 2012/13 the Council’s Risk and 
Opportunity Management Framework has 
continued to operate effectively identifying 
and findings ways to mitigate the 
organisations key risks. 
Counter Fraud arrangements 

The Council has undergone health checks 
by Grant Thornton, the Council's external 
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Principle 4: Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and management of risk and opportunities 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 
Whistle Blowing Policy, the Council has 
adequate arrangements in place to identify, 
and investigate, potential fraud and 
irregularities. 
Whistle Blowing Policy  
The Council’s Whistle Blowing Policy is 
managed by the Head of Internal Audit and 
Risk Management, on behalf of the 
Monitoring Officer. The Policy was updated 
and presented to the Audit Committee in 
April 2012. The register of cases is 
maintained by the Counter Fraud Manager 
and is reported to the Audit Committee 
where appropriate. The policy, together with 
the Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy, is 
included as part of the annual staff 
governance briefings. 

auditors, and recently by PwC, the 
Council’s Internal Audit co-sourced 
partner. Both health checks identified a 
number of areas of good practice and have 
provided recommendations as to how the 
Council can enhance its anti fraud 
arrangements, policies and controls.  
The Counter Fraud team has also received 
the Fighting Fraud award and worked with 
the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to 
produce good practice guides.  
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Principle 5: Developing the capacity and capabilities of members and officers to be effective 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

Officer training 

The Council is committed to empowering and training staff and 
also building opportunities for young people through its 
apprenticeship scheme.  

The Council provides regular training and development 
opportunities for both members and officers. During 2012/13 a 
new suite of Computer Based Training (CBT) modules was rolled 
out for a number of key areas including fraud awareness and 
information governance.  

The Council also launched its new Senior Leadership 
Programme, Shaping the Future, in December 2012.  This 18 
month programme will support managers who are at the forefront 
of thinking and practice in leading the Council and, by helping 
leaders develop a broader vision for Enfield’s success, this 
programme will help grow the next generation of high potential 
leaders. 

Competency Framework 

The Council operates a competency framework that sets the 
standard for outstanding behaviours. It is intended for use as an 
ongoing assessment and development tool to help staff work 
more effectively in order to improve services. 

Member Training 

The Council has a member development programme which is 
agreed by the Member and Democratic Services Group. This 
builds on an extensive induction programme after each local 
election. One to one personal development sessions are also 
available with professional officers. 

 

CBT training 

The completion of CBT modules (e.g. 
Health and Safety, Information Governance 
and Fraud Awareness) is monitored to 
ensure that officers complete the relevant 
training. Opportunities are being examined 
to roll this training out to members.  
In addition staff attendance at training 
sessions and staff seminars is monitored.  
Performance Assessment Review 
(PARs) 

Officer training is focussed through the 
annual personal appraisal process and the 
corporate training plan. A comprehensive 
appraisal process, that ensures training and 
development is available to all staff, is 
embedded within the Council. A tailored 
system, MI Portal, is used to help manage 
staff development and training needs and 
align staff objectives to those of the service 
they work in and those of the Council. 

Member training 

The activities and training are agreed with 
councillors, evaluated and coordinated to 
ensure they are effective in their roles. 

Health and Safety 

The Council was awarded a RoSPA Gold 
Award for Health and Safety after 
demonstrating first rate systems designed 
to minimise the risk of harm, ill health and 
accidents to staff. The awards are non-
competitive and are based on the 
organisations individual H&S performance 
judged against strict criteria. 
External Ofsted review - Looked After 
Children and Care Leaver services 

During 2012/13 the Council underwent an 
unannounced inspection of Looked After 
Children and Care Leaver services. The 
review identified that: 
- Objectives in the Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment (JSNA) provided a clear 
framework for effective partnership 
working;  

- Senior managers have a clear 
understanding of the strengths and 
weaknesses of services for children 
and young people, with strategies in 
place to address issues together with 
partner agencies; and  

- Information is generally shared 
effectively between partner agencies 
and established protocols lead to 
effective planning and intervention. 
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Principle 5: Developing the capacity and capabilities of members and officers to be effective 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

Apprenticeships 

The Council runs an apprenticeship programme offering a wide 
range of opportunities including business administration, catering, 
cleaning, social care and cultural arts. Over the last three years, 
171 young people have secured employment and training as part 
of the Council’s apprenticeship scheme. With a completion rate of 
99%, participants have gone on to advanced apprenticeships, 
further education or permanent employment, with 52 recruited into 
permanent posts in the Council. This has increased the number of 
young people employed in the Council by 50%. 

Schools 

The Council has developed a Continuous Professional 
Development (CPD) programme for School Business Managers 
which addresses the national drive for qualified School Business 
Managers and locally identified needs. A SBM Forum is 
supported by the Council to provide support, guidance, sharing of 
best practice and networking opportunities for School Business 
Managers. 

London Social Care Partnership Peer 
review  

During 2012/13 a peer review was carried 
out over elements of the Council’s social 
care arrangements. The review team 
consisted of a number of individuals from 
Boroughs across London. The review 
identified a number of strength areas 
including good examples of innovative 
practice in all service areas. 
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Principle 6: Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

The Council has a formal complaints process and publishes an 
annual report, which includes organisational learning and what 
changes have been implemented.  Quarterly reports of complaints 
and Departmental learning and improvements are reported to the 
Council’s Management Board.  The Ombudsman’s annual letter, 
commenting on complaints received in the last year, is also 
published on the Council’s website. 

Councillor Conduct Committee 

The Council replaced its Standards Committee with a Councillor 
Conduct Committee to deal with policy, complaints against 
councillors and issues concerning the members’ Code of 
Conduct. A new Code and a streamlined process for dealing with 
member complaints was also implemented during 2012/13. 

Strategic partnerships 

Enfield Council takes a strategic approach to consultation and 
public engagement as outlined in the Enfield Strategic 
Partnership’s Engagement Framework. The framework is 
cognisant of national, regional and local considerations and is 
open, transparent, responsive, proportionate, and provides 
accurate and quantifiable information to inform decision-making 
and service delivery. 

The Enfield Strategic Partnership’s Engagement Framework 
provides guidance and support to those agencies, and individuals, 
undertaking consultation and engagement activities. It is 
supported by the Communities Team in the Chief Executives Unit 
at Enfield Council.  

Engagement with residents and key stakeholders 

Effective, joined-up and well coordinated consultation and 
engagement enables the participation of a broad range of 
stakeholders including residents, customers, voluntary and 

Area Forums  

This mechanism allows local residents to 
raise local issues directly with their ward 
councillors and to have a forum for 
expressing opinions. This enables 
councillors to pick up on any concerns or 
areas for improvement that residents may 
have. 

Scrutiny Panels  

As part of the governance framework for 
the local authority, scrutiny panels enable 
opposition and non-portfolio members to 
scrutinise Cabinet decisions. Throughout 
the scrutiny process, the emphasis is on 
engagement between members and local 
people though for example, working groups, 
co-options and  public involvement in 
meetings 

Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) 
Inspection 

The Council has a robust process in place 
to capture potential information governance 
breaches including reporting breaches to 
the ICO where appropriate. These have 
included investigations of potential 
breaches and actions plans developed to 
ensure that improvements are made. 

During 2012/13 the Council agreed to a 
consensual audit by the ICO of its 
processing of personal data which resulted 

Annual Residents’ Survey  

The 2012 survey showed outstanding 
results with 72% of people saying the 
quality of services provided was good or 
very good and 71% saying they were 
satisfied with the way the borough was run. 
No services experienced a drop in 
satisfaction, with many showing 
satisfaction levels of between 80-90%. 

ICO Inspection 

The audit identified that the Council has a 
well-structured information governance 
framework. In all areas visited, processes 
were in place to control the quality of 
personal data processed, predominantly 
through the use of operational process 
guides, exception reports and sample file 
audits. 
External Audit  

The external auditors undertake a review 
of the effectiveness of internal audit on a 
three yearly basis. Grant Thornton have 
confirmed that they have not identified any 
issues with the quality of the work 
undertaken by the Council’s Internal Audit 
function.  
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Principle 6: Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability 

Description of Governance Mechanism Source of Assurance  Review of effectiveness 

community sector organisations, businesses, staff, members and 
other stakeholders. 

During 2012/13 the Council employed a range of methods for 
consulting with key stakeholders and advertises all consultation 
events on the Consultation Portal which is available to the public, 
via the Council’s website.   

The Council also uses social media sites (i.e. Facebook, Twitter, 
YouTube and Flickr) to communicate with residents, businesses 
and charities across the borough. 

Enfield Youth Parliament (EYP) 

EYP is a democratically elected body of 16 young people aged 11 
- 19 years (up to 25 with learning difficulties or disabilities) who 
represent young people from the four Area Youth Forums (AYFs) 
and across the whole of Enfield.  

Parent Engagement Panel (PEP) 

The overall aim of the PEP is to build community capacity and 
resilience by engaging positively with and empowering Enfield 
parents and their children in our most deprived wards who often 
face complex challenges and are at risk of getting into difficulties 
as a result.  

 

in a reasonable assurance opinion.  

In response to an ICO recommendation, the 
Council has commenced a project to pull 
together an Information Asset Register to 
allow the Council to undertake risk 
assessments of key systems and to raise 
awareness/identify key areas in which to 
undertake further work. 

Information Governance Board  

The Information Governance Board was set 
up to initiate, commission, monitor, enforce 
and approve on behalf of CMB, the 
Council's information management policies 
and processes.  

External Audit 

The Council’s external auditors are Grant 
Thornton LLP. Council officers meet with 
Grant Thornton on a monthly basis to 
discuss relevant issues, the Council’s 
medium term financial plan and the 
progress of the respective audit plans. 
Grant Thornton attends every Audit 
Committee and participates fully through 
written reports, discussions and by giving 
advice to members where appropriate.  

Grant Thornton meets privately with the 
Audit Committee to discuss areas of 
interest/concern.  
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5. Areas for development identified during 2012/13 

The Council is able to confirm that its financial management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of 
the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010), as set out in the Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework. 
The Council has used CIPFA’s guidance and has not identified any significant governance and control weaknesses that may have a direct impact on the 
organisation’s ability to achieve its strategic objectives.  We have identified the areas where further work is required to manage key risks and challenges and 
have developed the following action plan 

 

Areas of focus Current Status and Action plan 

Welfare Reform 

Enfield is a changing borough where the Council serves a rapidly 
increasing population while having to deal with a reduction in 
expenditure and ongoing changes to the benefit system. 
Localism of Council Tax Benefit 

A local scheme of Council Tax support has been put into place to 
replace statutory Council Tax Benefit. There will be 12% reduced 
funding from central Government, with the Council having to find this 
funding, or passing this on to claimants in reduced benefits. Issues are 
compounded by a rising caseload. This could entail significant 
reductions in Council Tax support (other than to pensioners and the 
vulnerable), resulting in increased financial pressures on affected 
individuals and families and a possible decrease in the council tax 
collection rate as a result.  
Implementation of Universal Credit  

- Uncertainty over impact of replacement of Housing Benefits by 
the Universal Credit from 2013 to 2017;  

- An administration grant is to be based on 2013 caseload; 
- Issues include levels of staffing, impact on customer demand, 

and Benefit Cap as from April 2013; and 
- Risk to Enfield of increasing caseload (local funding risk).  

Clear communications have been provided about the local scheme to all 
relevant stakeholders including affected individuals;  
Established processes are in place for the collection and enforcement of 
debt. Income collection and debt levels are being continually monitored.  
A Hardship Fund has been established to support those directly impacted 
by the change.  
The Council is undertaking caseload analysis of service levels and 
monitoring trends.  
Rigorous scheme review process post-implementation (to be ready for 
the scheme in 2014/15). 
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Areas of focus Current Status and Action plan 

Housing Supply and Homelessness 

Welfare reforms including reductions in Housing Benefit, Local 
Allowance Caps and disability benefits could see landlords refusing to let 
homes to tenants on benefits leading to an increase in homelessness. 
Universal credit capped at £26,000 and housing costs paid direct to 
tenants further threatens the supply of available housing. 
Impact of "importing poverty" on other Council services.  Compounded 
by the transition to Universal Credit and caps on what can be paid via 
the Local Housing Allowance. 

Funding available to meet shortfall in housing payments will come to an 
end at the end of July, so potentially more people could present to 
housing services from now on, due to impact of welfare changes.  
All adult social care clients on ‘at risk’ list have been contacted and 
provided with an offer of support should they need it. There is a new 
project underway to maximise disability benefits for all Adult Social Care 
clients not currently receiving them.  

Transformation and change 

The Council’s LEANER team is leading transformation across the 
Council to enable the Council to deliver services in a new and more 
efficient way. 

As the organisation continues to experience reduced resources, 
increased demands on services and new and innovative forms of 
delivery, there is a need to ensure that the Council’s control environment 
remains robust, proportionate and is as efficient and effective as 
possible, which will include moving to a greater use of automated rather 
than manual based controls. 

 

The Council’s transformation and change programme is overseen by the 
Strategic Transformation Board. This Board includes all members of the 
Council’s Corporate Management Board. 

Work is ongoing to finalise a blue print for how the Council will operate 
going forward. This blue print will help to drive future change and the 
focus of how the Council delivers services. 

An activity analysis has been completed for all services across the 
Council to identify areas for further focus to ensure that the Council 
maximises its resources on delivering quality services to its residents. 

Internal Audit has developed a risk based audit programme, working with 
colleagues in the LEANER team, to provide ongoing assurance over key 
projects and programmes. 

Information Governance 

A lot of work was carried during 2012/13 to improve information 
governance processes across the Council. This work was led by the 
Information Governance Board. Further work is continuing to fully embed 
these new processes across the Council.  

During 2012/13 the Council agreed to a consensual audit, by the ICO, of 
its processing of personal data, which resulted in a reasonable assurance 
opinion. The audit identified that the Council has a well-structured 
information governance framework. In all areas visited processes were in 
place to control the quality of personal data processed, predominantly 
through the use of operational process guides, exception reports and 
sample file audits. Within Adults Services, a data quality working group 
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Areas of focus Current Status and Action plan 

meets on a periodic basis, to discuss issues and any relevant data quality 
issues. The Council’s Access to Information Working Group is tasked 
with ensuring that appropriate training is available to all Council staff to 
ensure that statutory responsibilities are complied with, and good practice 
developed.  

The Council uses specific requirements in its Information Sharing 
Protocols to stipulate, in detail, how data will be shared, who can access 
the data, what it will be used for, security and destruction of physical and 
electronic records and accepted methods of movement of files. 

Housing Services 

In 2008 the Council set up an Arms Length Management Organisation, 
Enfield Homes, to manage the Council’s housing properties and deliver 
services to the tenants of those properties. Since then Enfield Homes 
has successfully received Decent Homes funding and has been 
delivering this programme, which will be completed in 2015.  A report on 
the future of Enfield Homes was presented to Cabinet in July 2012, 
which made a number of recommendations. One of these related to 
looking for further integration of services between the Council and 
Enfield Homes. This will help to reduce duplication and provide more 
joined up services for tenants.  

The current management agreement with Enfield Homes runs until 
March 2015, at which point the services run by Enfield Homes will return 
to direct council control, subject to a further review in 2014. As more 
services are integrated back into the Council, between now and March 
2015, appropriate governance arrangements need to be put in place to 
mitigate the risks that may emerge around a lack of clarity around roles 
and responsibilities, a potential loss of corporate knowledge from Enfield 
Homes, contractor issues and resource pressures. 

A Joint Operating Officer has been appointed who oversees Council 
housing operations at both the Council and Enfield Homes. This person 
will oversee the further integration of any services. 

A regular update by the Joint Operating Officer is delivered to 
Departmental Management Team. 

A project manager has been appointed to oversee the reintegration of 
services.  
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

London Borough of Enfield 

 
 
 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

 
ACCRUALS  

 
Amounts charged to the accounts for goods and services received 
during the year for which payments or transfers of economic benefit 
are expected to be made in the next or a subsequent reporting period. 
Amounts credited to the accounts for goods and services provided 
during the year for which payments or transfers of economic benefit 
are expected to be received in the next or subsequent reporting 
period. 

  
ACTUARY One who calculates projections for pensions and insurance purposes. 
  
AMORTISE To liquidate (a debt, such as a mortgage) by instalment payments, or 

payment into a sinking fund; or to write off an intangible asset by pro-
rating the cost or income over the life of the related asset.  

  
APPROPRIATION The assignment of revenue to a specific purpose. 
  
BALANCE SHEET A statement of all the assets, liabilities and other balances of the 

Authority. 
  
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 
 
 
 
 

Payments for the acquisition, replacement or enhancement of assets 
that are considered to be of benefit to the Authority over a period of 
more than one year, e.g. buildings and land, vehicles and equipment. 
Payments of grants and financial assistance to third parties towards 
the cost of capital expenditure. 
Expenditure that is classified as capital following a ministerial 
direction, e.g. capitalised redundancy costs. 
 

CAPITAL FINANCING  
REQUIREMENT 

The measure of the Council’s underlying need to borrow to fund 
capital expenditure. 

  
CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT 
ACCOUNT 

This reserve includes amounts set aside from revenue,  capital 
receipts and capital grants to fund capital expenditure and makes 
contributions in the Movement in Reserves Statement to offset net 
depreciation charges included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. It also includes the transfer of the balance on 
the Fixed Asset Restatement Account as at 1st April 2007 following the 
creation of the Revaluation Reserve.  

  
CAPITAL GRANTS Grant received from Government departments, other statutory bodies 

and external parties to finance capital expenditure. 
  
CAPITAL RECEIPTS Income received from the sale of land, buildings and other capital 

ssets. 
  
COLLECTION FUND A separate account that discloses the income and expenditure relating 

to Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates. 
  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
AND EXPENDITURE 
STATEMENT 
 

A statement showing the net cost for the year of all the services for 
which the Authority is responsible and how that cost has been 
financed from general government grants and income from local 
taxpayers. 

  
CONTINGENT LIABILITY A possible liability to future expenditure at the balance sheet date, 

depending on the outcome of future uncertain events. 
  
COUNCIL TAX  A local tax on domestic property values. 
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

London Borough of Enfield 

CREDITORS Amounts owed by the Council for goods received or services 
provided but not yet paid for as at 31 March 2013. 

  
DEBTORS Amounts owed to the Council but not received at 31 March 2013. 
  
DEPRECIATION The consumption of an asset due to normal wear and tear and 

deterioration in the day to day provision of services. 
 

  
EARMARKED RESERVES  Reserves set aside from revenue funding to meet future expenditure 

for specific purposes. 
  
FUNDED SCHEME A pension scheme that is supported by a fund of money, which is 

maintained at a level sufficient to meet all future liabilities under the 
scheme. 

  
GENERAL FUND A statutory account that summarises the cost of providing Council 

services excluding the provision of council housing. 
  
GROSS EXPENDITURE The total cost of providing services before taking into account 

income, e.g. from government grants or fees and charges. 
  
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
(HRA)  

A statutory account maintained separately from the General Fund 
for the recording of income and expenditure relating to the provision 
of council housing. 

  
IMPAIRMENT Additional charges above normal depreciation representing the 

reduction in asset values arising from a fall in market values or 
deterioration/obsolescence. 

  
INTEREST The amount received or paid for the use of a sum of money when it 

is invested or borrowed 
  
MINIMUM REVENUE 
PROVISION 

The statutory minimum amount that the Council must charge to 
revenue to provide for the reduction in the Capital Financing 
Requirement.    

 
NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC 
RATES (NNDR) 

A flat rate in the pound set by Central Government and levied on 
businesses in the borough.  This money is collected by Enfield and 
then passed to Central Government, which reallocates the income to 
all councils in proportion to their population. 

  
NET EXPENDITURE Total expenditure less any income due to the Council. 
  
NON CURRENT ASSETS Tangible and intangible assets that yield benefits to the Authority 

and the services it provides for a period of more than one year.  
  
PRECEPT 
 

A charge on the Collection Fund by the Greater London Authority.  

  
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT An adjustment applicable to prior years arising from changes in 

accounting policies or from the correction of material errors.  
  
PROVISION An amount set aside for liabilities and losses, which are likely to be 

incurred, but where the exact amount and the date on which they will 
arise is uncertain. 

  
PUBLIC WORKS LOANS 
BOARD 

Central Government agency, which is used to fund local government 
borrowing.  

  
REVENUE EXPENDITURE 
 

Spending on day-to-day items including salaries and wages, 
premises costs, and supplies and services. 
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

London Borough of Enfield 

REVENUE EXPENDITURE 
FUNDED FROM CAPITAL 
UNDER STATUTE 
 

Expenditure of a capital nature not in connection with a Council-
owned asset e.g. private sector renewal grants, Disabled Facilities 
Grants and funding for Voluntary Aided Schools. 

  
REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT The main grant paid by Central Government to the Authority towards 

the cost of all its services. 
  
RESERVES The difference between cumulative income and cumulative 

expenditure.  Reserves are resources available to the Council  
  
SUPPORT SERVICES These are services provided centrally in support of the corporate 

management of the Council and the delivery of front line services. 
They include financial, legal, HR, IT, property and general 
administrative support services. 
 

  
UNFUNDED SCHEME A superannuation scheme that is not supported by a fund of money. 
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